
Rutland County Council                  
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 DX28340 Oakham

      

Meeting: PEOPLE (CHILDREN) SCRUTINY PANEL

Date and Time: Thursday, 4 May 2017 at 7.00 pm

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER, CATMOSE, OAKHAM, 
RUTLAND, LE15 6HP

Clerk to the Panel: Samantha Ramsay 01572 750907
email: corporatesupport@rutland.gov.uk

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at 
www.rutland.gov.uk/haveyoursay

A G E N D A

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

1) RECORD OF MEETING 
To confirm the record of the meeting of the People (Children) Scrutiny Panel held 
on 23 February 2017 (previously circulated).

2) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any personal 
or prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those interests in respect 
of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3) PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS 
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions received from Members of 
the Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 217.

The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes.  Petitions, declarations 
and questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received.  
Questions may also be submitted at short notice by giving a written copy to the 
Committee Administrator 15 minutes before the start of the meeting.

The total time allowed for questions at short notice is 15 minutes out of the total 

mailto:corporatesupport@rutland.gov.uk
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/haveyoursay


time of 30 minutes.  Any petitions, deputations and questions that have been 
submitted with prior formal notice will take precedence over questions submitted 
at short notice.  Any questions that are not considered within the time limit shall 
receive a written response after the meeting and be the subject of a report to the 
next meeting.

4) QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE FROM MEMBERS 
To consider any questions with notice from Members received in accordance with 
the provisions of Procedure Rules No 219 and No. 219A.

5) NOTICES OF MOTION FROM MEMBERS 
To consider any Notices of Motion from Members submitted in accordance with 
the provisions of Procedure Rule No 220.

6) CONSIDERATION OF ANY MATTER REFERRED TO THE PANEL 
FOR A DECISION IN RELATION TO CALL IN OF A DECISION 
To consider any matter referred to the Panel for a decision in relation to call in of 
a decision in accordance with Procedure Rule 206.

SCRUTINY 
Scrutiny provides the appropriate mechanism and forum for members to ask 
any questions which relate to this Scrutiny Panel’s remit and items on this 
Agenda.

7) RALSS PERFORMANCE REPORT 20 min
To receive Report No. 102/2017 from the Director for People.
(Pages 5 - 34)

8) RUTLAND STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION (SACRE) ANNUAL REPORT 2015-17 

30 min

To receive Report No. 101/2017 from the Chair of SACRE.
(Pages 35 - 80)

9) OFSTED: NEXT STEPS PLAN 40 min
To receive Report No. 99/2017 from the Director for People.
(Pages 81 - 120)

10) FOSTERING SERVICE: INTERNAL AUDIT 10 min
To receive a verbal update from the Director for People.



11) POVERTY IN RUTLAND - GREEN PAPER 10 min
To receive Report No. 91/2017 from Scrutiny Commission.
(Report circulated under separate cover) 
(Pages 121 - 188)

PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS AND TOPICS 5 min

12) REVIEW OF FORWARD PLAN 2016/17 
To consider Scrutiny issues to review.  

Copies of the Forward Plan will be available at the meeting.

13) ANY OTHER URGENT  BUSINESS 5 min
To receive any other items of urgent business which have been previously 
notified to the person presiding

14) DATE AND PREVIEW OF NEXT MEETING 5 min
Date to be agreed at Annual Council.

---oOo---

TO: ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE PEOPLE (CHILDREN) SCRUTINY PANEL

Mr J Dale (Chairman)
Mr E Baines Mr N Begy
Mr O Bird Mr K Bool
Mr G Conde Mrs D MacDuff
Mr M Oxley Mrs L Stephenson
Miss G Waller

TO: CO-OPTED MEMBERS OF THE PEOPLE (CHILDREN) SCRUTINY PANEL

Mrs L Youngman
Ms S Gullan-Whur Mr A Menzies





Report No: 102/2017
PUBLIC REPORT

SCRUTINY PANEL
4 May 2017

RUTLAND ADULT LEARNING AND SKILLS SERVICE (RALSS)
Report of the Director for People

Strategic Aim: Sustainable Growth

Exempt Information No

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible:

Mr D Wilby, Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning

Contact Officer(s): Tim O'Neill, Director for People and 
Deputy Chief Executive

01572 758402
toneill@rutland.gov.uk

Gill Curtis , Head of Service - Lifelong 
Learning

01572 758460
gcurtis@rutland.gov.uk

Ward Councillors All

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Panel:

1. Notes the arrangements for post 16 provision by Rutland Adult Learning and Skills 
Service in partnership with Peterborough Regional College.

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To inform Scrutiny Panel of the work of RALSS

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 Rutland Adult Learning and Skills Service (RALSS) produces an Annual Report, 
which also acts as a self-assessment report (SAR) in line with the requirements of 
both the Skills Funding Agency (SfA) and Ofsted.

2.2 All data referred to in this report relates solely to the academic year 2015/6 unless 
otherwise stated.

3 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Due to the timing of the report, which takes place at the end of the academic year, 
it is primarily reflective of the previous years activities and as such provides a 
retrospective view of the progress of the service in addition to the actions 
undertaken to maintain continuous improvement. 

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS


3.2 The Annual Report draws together a range of reviews, data, views and 
judgements, to celebrate our successes as well as to identify emerging issues and 
areas for improvement (as identified from quality monitoring processes). It is a key 
management tool in highlighting and supporting continuous improvement.

4 BACKGROUND PAPERS (IF NOT STATE ‘THERE ARE NO ADDITIONAL 
BACKGROUND PAPERS TO THE REPORT’)

4.1 There are no additional background papers to the report

5 APPENDICES (SIMPLY STATE IF THERE ARE NO APPENDICES)

5.1 Appendix A – RALSS Annual Report (SAR) 2015/16

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 



1

      
RALSS



2

RUTLAND ADULT LEARNING AND SKILLS 
SERVICE

ANNUAL REPORT (SAR) 2015/16

    Contents Page(s)

1 The Annual Report (SAR) - Process and Rationale 3

2 Overview of the Provision 4

3 The Rutland Population 6

4 Overview Effectiveness 8

5 Leadership and management 10

6 Quality of teaching, learning and assessment 13

7 Personal development, behaviour and welfare 15

8 Outcomes for Learners 18

9 Appendices – Data 20

10 Quality Improvement Plan 24



3

1 The Annual Report (SAR) - Process and Rationale         

1.1 Rutland Adult Learning and Skills Service (RALSS) produces an Annual Report, which 
also acts as a self assessment report (SAR) in line with the requirements of both the 
Skills Funding Agency (SfA) and Ofsted. Quotes from Ofsted are given within the 
report in italics. Internally, this acts as both a reflective action as well as a blueprint 
for the future, as part of our drive to reach outstanding. We create this by drawing 
together and highlighting progress in a range of organisational actions such as skills, 
community learning, classroom based learning, workplace learning and 
apprenticeships. 

1.2 Due to the timing of the report, which takes place at the end of the academic year, it 
is primarily reflective of the previous years activities and as such provides a 
retrospective view of the progress of the service in addition to the actions 
undertaken to maintain continuous improvement. 

1.3 The Annual Report draws together a range of reviews, data, views and judgements, 
to celebrate our successes as well as to identify emerging issues and areas for 
improvement (as identified from quality monitoring processes). It is a key 
management tool in highlighting and supporting continuous improvement.

1.4 The Annual Report activities are undertaken by all members of staff within RALSS 
including members of Senior Management and the Portfolio Holder. These activities 
include reports from the RALSS Performance Board, end of course reports, 
observations of teaching and learning including learning walks, data exercises, 
internal and external moderation and validation as well as benchmarking exercises 
to name a few. This year, the report will reflect the progression from the most recent 
Ofsted visit which graded the provision as good in all aspects, to help pinpoint any 
areas for improvement as well as celebrate our achievements.

1.5 The layout of this report reflects best practice, as well as mirroring the layout of the 
Common Inspection Framework (CIF) 2015, in utilising a judgement-rich approach.

1.6 All data referred to in this report relates solely to the academic year 2015/6 unless 
otherwise stated. 

1.7 Areas for improvement are collated in a Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) and are 
given in section ten. These highlight the key actions for moving the service to 
outstanding.



4

2 Overview of the Provision                 

2.1 Whilst they lack the resources and status of schools and universities, both adult skills 
and community education have a unique importance in British life. Not only do they 
contribute to the skills needs of the local economy, they also provide new chances 
for people whose encounters with the school system may have been less than 
satisfactory, and are responsive to the demands of employers as well as students. 
Adult and community education is often a lifeline for people in deprived regions and 
rural areas for whom distance to mainstream activities and participation in a large 
further education setting is a distant and unfamiliar notion.

2.2 Whilst community education varies depending on the geographical region and the 
demographics it serves, it has a unifying norm in that it is resilient and innovative. 
Our staff are a unique resource for learners who are often lacking in confidence. 
They are at the forefront of developing students’ existing skills as well as teaching 
them new ones. We recognise and nurture abilities which students undervalue or do 
not realise they possess.

2.3 Rutland Adult Learning and Skills Service’s (RALSS) mission is to; establish and deliver 
an outstanding learning and skills platform for the County; to work effectively with 
partners, stakeholders and customers; to deliver provision which develops the skills, 
achievements and aspirations of communities, families, employers and learners in 
Rutland in order to both support and improve the economic, social and educational 
outcomes and quality of life in Rutland. This is reflected in the service strategic and 
business plans. 

2.4 Rutland Adult Learning and Skills Service is an important service provided by Rutland 
County Council designed to influence, support and improve the quality, 
achievements and social and economic prospects of adult learners in Rutland. 

2.5 Our vision is summarised by the following Mission Statement:

Mission Statement

To work effectively with partners, stakeholders and 
customers to plan and deliver provision which develops 
the skills, achievements and aspirations of communities, 
families, employers and learners in Rutland in order to 

support the economic, social and educational outcomes 
and quality of life in Rutland.



5

2.6 RALSS is proud to be part of the services provided by Rutland County Council and 
strives to meet all of the Council’s aims but in particular contributes to the Council’s 
strategic aim of ‘Rutland is a great place to live, learn, work, play and visit’. RALSS 
seeks to meet the key actions of RCC in terms of sustainable growth, safeguarding 
and economic growth.

2.7 During the 2015-6 academic year, Rutland Adult Learning and Skills Service (RALSS) 
restructured the methodology of delivery from both a personnel and a curriculum 
standpoint.

2.8 The Adult Skills budget is delivered in partnership with Peterborough Regional 
College (PRC). This is subject to annual performance review and has been extended 
for 2016/7 following a Senior Management Review. The partnership is monitored by 
RALSS Management and good relationships have been formed. Joint marketing 
actions are now in place. We have continued to adapt to the changing priorities of 
the Skills Funding Agency such as developing the Apprenticeship programme as well 
as responding to changes in funding levels for some of the core curriculum areas that 
had been offered over many years. 

2.8 The work undertaken by the team saw RALSS achieving a ‘Good grade’ with some 
outstanding elements for all of its provision  and therefore the service is unlikely 
receive another full Oftsed inspection until 2019 at the earliest.

2.9 Service locations within the county are now centralised at the Oakham Enterprise 
Park. All mainstream courses will now be offered from this site. There is significant 
partnership work planned with local RAF and Army bases to deliver learning to 
Forces communities.



6

3 The Rutland Population 

3.1 Rutland is one of the rural counties within England and Wales as 100% of the 
population live in ‘rural towns’ and villages or are dispersed (DEFRA – LA 
Classification Dataset post April 2009) – over some 151.5 square miles (392.5 square 
km). The County Council is ranked 149/152 County Councils in terms of deprivation 
according to the ‘Rank of average score’ indicator (Indices of Deprivation 2015), 
moving down one place since 2010 to a lower deprivation scoring, and 301/326 Local 
Authorities by the same report. The Level of Happiness in Rutland is high, with an 
average (mean) rating of 7.65/8.0 (ONS Wellbeing Analysis Reference Table 3: 
Happiness, 2015), which is 0.32 higher than the national average.

3.2 Although the County enjoys low rates of deprivation, there are nevertheless 
embedded pockets of relative deprivation within it. In particular, with reference to 
attainment levels (Census 2011, Qualifications), the wards of Greetham and Oakham 
NorthWest demonstrate significantly higher levels of residents with no qualifications 
than is apparent in other wards. The percentage for those with no qualifications and 
for those with a highest qualification of level 1 is also greater than in other areas for 
these wards. The main RALSS accommodation at the Oakham Enterprise Park is close 
to and serves this area of deprivation.

3.3 A key factor which creates barriers to participation in Rutland is transport. 
Population density is low, at 87 persons / km2 in Rutland compared to 267 / km2 
and 383 / km2 in the East Midlands region and in England respectively. As a result, 
learners with similar needs tend to be widely dispersed throughout the county and 
may be unable to access facilities due to infrequent or non-existent public transport 
links. RALSS is working with other officers within the County Council to address this 
deficiency.

3.4  Rutland has a total population of 37,369 (ONS – Usual Resident Population by five-
year age group, 2011 Census) with a small proportion of ethnic minority groups. In 
2011, 5.72% of Rutland's resident population declared non-white ethnicity, and 
94.3% of the population identified themselves as “White British” This compares with 
a figure of 95.74% of the population who declared themselves “White British” in 
2001 (ONS 2001 census – Ethnic Group (UV09)) and indicates that over the course of 
the last decade, the proportion of Rutland residents of “non-White” and “White, 
non-British” ethnic origin has increased. However, on both a regional and national 
basis, the proportion of non-white ethnic groups is substantially higher, at 24.18% 
and 29.17% respectively (ONS 2011 Census – KS201EW Ethnic Group).

3.5 From those people of non-White British origin, according to the ONS Census the 
greatest increase has been in the proportion of “White: Other White” residents, 
from 1.69% in 2001 to 2.1% in 2011, and “Asian or Asian British” residents, up from 
0.40% to an estimated 1.9 % over the same period (sources as previously). Thus, the 
ethnic composition of the county can be seen to be gradually shifting over time. 



7

Early indications from the 2011 Census indicate that the ethnic minority population 
of the county has indeed increased.

3.6 The county will see a significant increase in the over 65 population, between 2014-
2030 as an increase of 8.5% as a proportion of the total population is forecast, with a 
decreasing supply of those in younger age groups adding pressure to an already tight 
labour supply (ONS Subnational population projections, May 2014). Much of this 
growth will be accommodated in the Oakham Urban Extension and in other smaller 
developments around the county.

3.7 The mean age of residents in Rutland was 42.40 years in 2011, set against a mean of 
39.90 in 2001 for Rutland. The mean age in the East Midlands region in 2011 was 
40.00 and for England as a whole, the figure is 39.3 (ONS – 2011 Census: Age 
Structure (KS102EW). The census also reflect a lower proportion (61.10%) of 
residents of working age as compared to the East Midlands (64.76%) and England as 
a whole (64.45) and thus overall, the county has a generally older population with 
more residents of above retirement age than is the case in the region or nation as a 
whole. 

3.8  Rutland has 17,400 total workforce jobs and a job density of 0.87 (the proportion of 
jobs in an area to the number of people ages 16-64) and is consistent with net-in 
commuting which is likely to reflect the older population structure (Experian & 
NOMIS 2011 data from Peterborough SHMA July 2014). 

3.9 Median earnings based on individuals living in Rutland (£24,271) are significantly 
higher than individuals working in Rutland (£22,091) suggesting that significant 
proportions of our more highly skilled people work elsewhere. Data for Rutland is 
influenced by its small population. Whilst the 2012 data for resident’s earnings are 
below the East Midland’s regional average provisional 2015 data from the Annual 
Survey of Hours & Earnings suggest earnings which are significantly above the 
regional average, £25,065 compared to £21,093.

3.10  Rutland has retained its major manufacturing employers over the last 20 years and 
has successfully diversified into a home for many service based SMEs. Key sectors in 
terms of work based employment are education, manufacturing, accommodation 
and food services, minerals, wholesale & retail and public administration. Existing 
areas of delivery for Workplace Learning provide appropriate opportunities in some 
of these areas. As part of the strategic planning for the Service, the areas not 
covered by our in-house provision can be covered by the partnership contract and 
the Service is reviewing additional resource to expand the offer.



8

4 Overall Effectiveness     Grade 2     

Judgement

4.1 The Adult Skills budget is delivered in partnership with Peterborough Regional 
College (PRC). This is subject to an annual performance review and has been 
extended for 2016/7 following a Senior Management Review. The partnership is 
monitored by RALSS Management and good relationships have been formed.

4.2 RALSS has a clear focus on vocational education and the skills agenda. ‘RALSS has 
high aspirations for all learners and constantly strives to meet the needs of our 
communities, local businesses and employers.’

4.3 ‘Leadership and Management at RALSS are graded as good.  RALSS is led by a strong 
and determined management team who are driving the organisation towards 
outstanding by combining effective strategic direction and high expectations for 
learner success. The management team have significantly increased the liaison with 
other providers at a local and regional level to enhance and develop both the service 
and its reputation.’

4.4 Teaching, learning and assessment in Community Learning and Skills Development 
are good.  

4.5 RALSS offers good personal development and actively promotes good behaviour and 
strong leaner support. It seeks to develop the whole person as part of the learning 
programme and as such delivers actions to help the learner develop both their own 
skills base and employability whilst at the same time understanding their role in the 
health of Britain.

4.6 RALSS offers a safe working environment for young people, giving them skills to help 
them stay safe outside of the learning environment and to act as good citizens.

4.7 ‘Outcomes for learners show good and consistent success rates which are in the main 
significantly above national averages.’ 

4.8 Leaders and managers target funding at those of most need, helping learners to 
overcome their barriers to employment and/or independence. Learning programmes 
give participants the skills and confidence to help build a cohesive and integrated 
society.

4.9 The service has successfully attracted and delivered all of the funding available to it.

Evidence and Impact



9

4.10 ‘Teaching, learning and assessment are good across the provision enabling learners 
to develop good vocational and employability skills.’ 

4.11 ‘Learners have high aspirations and continue to receive good education and training. 
They make good progress on most courses and a large majority complete their main 
vocational qualifications in a timely manner.’ 

4.12 ‘Managers know their provision well and have planned a broad and accessible 
curriculum to meet regional and local needs well and prepare learners for 
employment.’ 

4.13 Excellent (timely success rates) and overall Apprenticeship success rates significantly 
above the national average with the exception of 16-18 apprenticeships which are 
only around national averages and are subject to actions in the QIP

4.14 Excellent internal quality assurance of work-based learning provision

4.15 Good partnership work is evident throughout all aspects of the provision

4.16 Excellent response to local need with a strong placement of the service throughout 
the County and surrounding areas.

Areas for Improvement

4.17 Earlier delivery of adult education budget (AEB) totals with particular reference to 
individual account lines under the new funding methodology

4.18 Seek out expanded opportunities for funding under both education funding agency 
(EFA) and European social funds (ESF) to provide a wider and expanding service.

4.19 Target-setting, so that learning targets focus on improving learners’ skills and 
personal development needs for the more able learner.

4.20 Attendance and retention of learners to some sessions 

4.21 Expansion of the 14-19 frameworks across all providers within Rutland to provide 
young people with improved life chances.



10

5 Leadership and Management                                              Grade 2    

Judgement

5.1 ‘Leadership and Management at RALSS are graded as good.’  The management team 
have significantly increased the liaison with other providers at a local and regional 
level to enhance and develop both the service and its reputation. ‘Councillors and 
senior managers promote high standards and these are subject to a rigorous and 
challenging review as part of the RALSS Performance Board.’  Leaders and managers 
set and achieve extremely ambitious objectives for the service to provide a very 
high-quality, responsive curriculum in collaboration with a broad range of partners. 
The clear objectives for the service align closely with those of the council and are set 
within a well-developed strategic plan which is understood by managers and staff

5.2 The creation and usage of data is outstanding and the self-assessment processes 
which take into consideration the views of learners, staff, managers and Councillors, 
are inclusive, established and continuous throughout the year. ‘Accurate and reliable 
management information linked to the results of observations, in-year outcomes and 
monthly monitoring underpin the processes.’ 

5.3 Surveys of staff, students and employers have been undertaken, and their views 
taken into consideration, within the improvement processes. RALSS produces a 
series of “you said we did” posters showing our responses and how we have dealt 
with the requests. RALSS operates a quality improvement calendar which helps to 
ensure the smooth running of the provision.

5.4 ‘Equality and diversity are addressed well throughout the provision and promoted 
through meetings, reviews and performance management.’  Tutors and assessors 
demonstrate good awareness in their delivery through Initial Assessment although 
additional work is required to ensure embedded activities.  E & D is introduced at 
Induction in an activity suitable for each curriculum area.  

5.5 RALSS safeguarding of learners is effective with outstanding features. ‘RALSS has a 
strong and consistent approach with policies, designed to ensure the effective 
safeguarding of staff and learners.’ We have effective mechanisms in place to ensure 
that all staff and learners feel safe and that if they have any issues then they know 
who to report them to. All safeguarding concerns are addressed and signed off. 
Prevent’ training has increased staff awareness of the risks of radicalisation and 
extremism and improved their confidence in how to recognise risks and how to 
increase learner understanding and address issues raised. Learners’ raised 
awareness has led to them gaining a better understanding of how to identify risks 
and what actions to take, as well as understanding communications from their 
children’s schools regarding the ‘Prevent’ agenda



11

Evidence and Impact

5.6 ‘Rutland Adult Learning and Skills Service (RALSS) offers a good overall level of 
provision with outstanding features, demonstrating high aspirations and success 
rates for all areas of its provision. This is evidenced in the current Ofsted grading.’

5.7 Self-assessment is ongoing and rigorous. All courses have a completed tutor course 
review report. Surveys are completed for all learners. Work-based learners and 
employers both receive a survey at 3 months and end of the program.

5.8 RALSS is embedded throughout the County and is continuing to develop a holistic 
approach through its partnerships with PRC and local schools and businesses. As 
examples of actions in these areas, RALSS is an active member of the schools forum 
representing the interests of Post 16 students. We have had direct engagement with 
over 50 local businesses. 

5.9 The Performance Board, which consists of both management leads and councillors, 
has established systems and a culture that enables learners and staff to achieve their 
targets and ambitions. We set high expectations for learner acievement and  staff 
conduct and these are monitored on a monthly basis. Working relationships 
between staff and learners are good. The actions have maintained strong outcomes 
for learners. Minutes are maintained and all actions completed.

5.10 The monthly monitoring board meetings establish an accurate real time 
understanding of the quality of education being delivered by RALSS and PRC staff. 
This action enables the RALSS provision to monitor and refine actions to improve all 
key aspects of the provision.

5.11 Teachers and managers contribute to improving teaching and learning through self-
assessment and course reviews. Continuous professional develoment (CPD) and 
professional industry development (PID) ensures that good practice is embedded 
across the entire curriculum through shared training. All staff are supported in 
developmental lesson observations. Details of individual reviews are held centrally in 
human resources.

5.12 The service seeks to actively ensure that the range and content of the provision is 
aligned to local and regional priorities. Managers regularly attend local groups and 
meetings including the Local Strategic Partnership group, DWP partnership meeting 
and Voluntary Action Rutland. We work closely with local secondary schools, deliver 
careers talks and have been working closely with the Skills Service to engage with 
year 10 students across the county. Sector based work academies have been 
developed in partnership with the DWP to provide unemployed people the 
opportunity to develop their employability skills and gain sector specific accredited 
qualifications. RALSS is an active member of both the local enterprise partnership      
(LEP) and local education authorities further education association (LEAFEA).

5.13 The development of key skills in English, Mathematics and ICT underpin much of the 
work of the provision, as a strategic priority, resulting in success rates which are 
higher than national averages and helping students improve their skills and 
qualifications in these subjects. 



12

5.14 Councillors, via the Performance Board, hold management to account for all aspects 
of the performance, ensuring value for money mechanisms lead the deployment of 
staff and resources to deliver good or outstanding outcomes for learners.

5.15 Learning programmes are well designed to cover the needs of all learners so that 
they can achieve their ambitions. As part of the process we provide strong and 
impartial advice and guidance (IAG) to ensure that learners can make informed 
decisions about both their courses of study as well as their next steps. The service 
holds the Matrix kitemark. All learners have access to an Information Advice and 
Guidance Officer and a work club runs once a week. Learners coming to the end of 
their learning have an exit IAG interview and are encouraged to look at next steps 
and progression routes. Where necessary learners are signposted to the National 
Careers Service.

5.16 All learners’ destinations are monitored and recorded. Learners destinations are 
captured at point of exit and employment outcomes are recorded. We have 
improved the provision by offering progression i.e. from L3 to L4 Early Years, 
introduction of AAT accounts courses and access to hospitality and catering courses.

5.17 The promotion of equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) through teaching and 
learning is good and has improved. All new staff have attended the PRC teaching and 
learning induction to support planning and EDI is promoted in planning, resources 
and ideas are shared by the teams to raise awareness. EDI and safeguarding are 
covered at induction to raise awareness and promote discussion through various 
activities, quizzes and fact finding exercises. EDI is clearly evidenced in work-based 
learning assessment practice.

5.18 The service has a thorough and proactive safeguarding system that is effective. We 
risk assess all situations, taking action where appropriate, to ensure that we prevent 
harm. We work closely with the Council safeguarding teams and have effective 
strategies for both recording incidents and closing the loops, to ensure successful 
completion of actions. We actively raise awareness and provide training in relation 
to safeguarding. 

5.19 Management and staff work to actively protect learners from any form of 
radicalisation and extremism. The service has trained not only its own staff and 
students but is also the lead for PREVENT training across the authority. Leaders at 
RALSS are part of the cross county PREVENT team. Staff are actively encouraged to 
develop and carry out open discussion with learners in relation to these issues. 
British values are promoted in planning, and resources. All staff attend the teaching 
and learning induction to raise awareness and share ideas. The equality calendar 
encourages staff to promote important dates and events that relate to different 
faiths and beliefs to ensure those with different backgrounds feel valued.

Areas for Improvement

5.20 Earlier delivery of AEB budget totals with particular reference to individual account 
lines under the new funding methodology



13

5.21 Seek out expanded opportunities for funding under both EFA and ESF to provide a 
wider and expanding service.

5.22 Develop a thorough approach to identifying and recording learners’ destinations 
with a view to understanding better the impact of the service.

5.23 Development is needed to ensure parents the local authority and schools view 
apprenticeships as an aspirational route.

5.24 Expand the delivery of work related programmes to ensure that we meet the needs 
of businesses in the local area.



14

6 Quality of teaching, learning and assessment

Judgement

6.1 ‘Teaching, learning and assessment in both Community Learning and Skills 
Development are good.’  

Evidence and Impact

6.2 Leadership and Management were judged good or outstanding by tutors on all 
courses and outstanding on 65% of courses. 

6.3 All tutors have high expectations of their learners.  The work is highly differentiated, 
especially in the English, maths and ICT classes.

6.4 ‘The quality of education and training for learners and apprentices is good.’ Generally 
lessons are well planned with a range of differentiated activities to engage and 
motivate learners.  Individual learning plans are effective and improving and they 
demonstrate improved SMART target setting and regular feedback to learners. 
Additional support given to learners is good and learners who require 1-1 support 
benefit from structured, well planned provision.

6.5 The tutors have specific subject knowledge to a high level and most have degree-
level qualifications in the subject they are teaching.  Learners benefit from a wide 
range of approaches deployed to fully meet their needs and to ensure that sessions 
engage their interest and promote individuals to take charge of their own learning.  
Most learners commented highly favourably on the support they received from their 
tutor.

6.6 Continuing Professional Development (CPD) plans have been developed from 
Personal Development Reviews and from the observations of teaching learning and 
assessment (OTLAs).  All tutors have access to training which addresses the main 
areas for improvement.  This ensures that they can, for example, incorporate ICT 
into their sessions more effectively.

6.7  Initial assessment is comprehensive and accurately identifies learners’/apprentices’ 
starting points. BKSB and a skills scan are used to both assess learners current skills 
levels or to record prior learning, and GCSE qualifications are also taken into account 
to ensure apprentices/learners are on the correct programme of study.

6.8 Learners understand how to improve as a result of individual, detailed feedback, 
face-to-face with the tutors and through their Individual Learning Plans.  In most 



15

cases, tutors provide highly detailed and timely feedback that gives learners a clear 
insight into their progress and how they can best continue to develop their skills.

6.9 Tutors and Managers engage with support staff at Brightways and Rutwel to ensure 
that the teaching sessions incorporate information from the LLDD groups’ Person-
Centred plans.  

6.10 Tutors have attended ‘Prevent’ training and have been provided with ice-breaker 
and other activities to promote ‘British Values’ with their groups.  Learner feedback 
reflects their enjoyment of opportunities to socialise and discuss current topics 
which in turn increases their confidence in both topic and social interaction.

6.11 Progress of work-based learners is good and learners benefiting from assessor 
contact that is well above the minimum requirement which encourages learners to 
progress to the next level. Work-based reviews with learners and employers are 
supportive and identify potential issues.

6.12 ‘Teachers and assessors promote learners’ understanding of equality and diversity 
effectively either embedding in the classroom provision or part of the review process.’ 
Most lessons allow learners to develop good personal skills, where they demonstrate 
positive behaviour and attitudes, which prepare them well for independent learning 
and their next steps.

6.13 English, Maths and ICT are naturally embedded into some sessions but would benefit 
from more development with clearer links to how these skills would be beneficial for 
employers or to achieve personal learning goals. 

6.14 The majority of learners accessing Community Learning courses do so in order to 
explore interests and develop skills as well as to seek employment outcomes.  An 
overwhelming majority of learners achieve outstanding results with positive 
feedback on how well they have developed new skills; the impact learning has had in 
terms of gaining confidence and their increased feelings of achievement in general.   

Areas for Improvement

6.15 It was noted by Ofsted Inspectors and the Management Team during OTLAs that the 
volunteers are not being used as effectively as they could be.  Training will be 
provided in September 2016 by a current volunteer and ex-Ofsted Inspector.

6.16 Not enough teaching, learning and assessment are outstanding and embedding of 
English and maths into sessions could be improved.

6.17 Better engagement of tutors in CPD opportunities.  

6.18 Target-setting, so that learning targets focus on improving learners’ skills and their 
personal development needs for the more able learner.



16



17

  7 Personal Development, Behaviour and Welfare

Judgement

7.1 RALSS offers outstanding personal development and actively promotes exemplary 
behaviour and strong learner support. It seeks to develop the whole person as part 
of the learning programme and as such delivers actions to help the learner develop 
both their own skills base and employability whilst at the same time understanding 
their role in British society.

7.2 RALSS offers a safe working environment for young people giving them skills to help 
them stay safe outside of the learning environment and to act as good citizens.

Evidence and Impact

7.3 Learners are confident and offer assured feedback in sessions. This is translated in 
the pride they demonstrate in the classroom. In addition the learners’ attitudes to 
learning are positive as evidenced in end of course reports.

7.4 Reviews of attendance data shows that most learners are punctual and prepared for 
learning and this is evidenced in both OTLA reports as well as the results of learning 
walks. In addition, regular reviews of registers are carried out as part of the monthly 
monitoring meetings, and show that there are minimal absentees recorded.

7.5 Employer surveys show that 92% of employers think that their qualification has 
benefitted their employee and the organization. The majority of learners stay and 
complete their course with successful outcomes.

7.6 All apprentices benefit from high quality work placements and have all successfully 
secured employment with their employer once their apprenticeship has been 
successfully completed. Learners on traineeships completed work experience with 
local employers that were relevant to their personal goals and supported interns 
completed work-experience with a job coach relevant to their outcomes.

  7.7 Learners benefit from Impartial Advice and Guidance (IAG) as pre and post learning 
actions to ensure that they are undertaking the appropriate qualification and level. 
This enables them to not only succeed in obtaining qualifications but also prepares 
them for their further education, employment or self-employment. This has had a 
positive impact on both retention and destinations.

7.8 Staff promote clear messages about safeguarding in all aspects including prevent 
awareness, prejudice, staying safe on line and bullying. This is evidenced in 



18

observations and reinforced by the use of posters. The recent learner survey showed 
that 100% of learners felt safe whilst attending RALSS provision.

7.9 Learners develop personal, social and employability skills including English, 
mathematics and ICT required achieving their core learning aims.

7.10 Learning programmes allow learners to explore personal social and ethical issues to 
promote good citizenship.

7.11 Maths and English are integral to our provision of programmes. Apprentices attend 
one day a week and work together to produce an apprentice newsletter for 
employers which is published every six months. Overall completion of English and 
Mathematics courses is good. Timely achievement for apprentices is above the 
national average. In some cases apprentices have the ability to progress to the 
higher level of English and maths and if appropriate will progress to take GCSE 
English, maths and ICT.

7.12 100% of apprentices who successfully completed gained paid employment and one 
out of two traineeships moved into full time employment. Learners who took part in 
the early year’s sector based work academy moved into work experience, 
apprenticeship and maths and English courses. Learners appreciate the importance 
of gaining Mathematics, English and ICT at the appropriate levels, especially in terms 
of access to higher education related to specific areas e.g. nursing and teaching.

Areas for improvement

7.13 Target-setting, so that learning targets focus on improving learners’ skills and their 
personal development needs for the more able learner.

7.14 Attendance and retention of learners to some sessions 

7.15 Expansion of the 14-19 frameworks across all providers within Rutland to provide 
young people with improved life chances.



19

8. Outcome for Learners

Judgement

8.1 ‘Outcomes for learners show good and consistent success rates which are 
significantly above national averages.’ 

8.2 Leaders and managers target funding at those of most need helping learners to 
overcome their barriers to employment and/or independence. Learning programmes 
give participants the skills and confidence to help build a cohesive and integrated 
society.

8.3 Leaders and managers work together with employer networks, Job Centre Plus and 
community organisations to ensure that the provision helps to meet not only local 
need but also supports both local and national priorities.

Evidence and impact

8.4 Success rates on accredited programmes are consistently high and most are higher 
than the respective national rates. The proportion of learners achieving their 
qualifications in planned timescales is consistently very high. Retention and 
achievement are both much higher than the respective national averages. Almost all 
learners who enrolled in 2015/16 have remained on their programme/course. 
Success rates for learners are very high on all qualifications at all levels. Different 
groups of learners achieve equally well when analysed by gender, ethnicity or 
disability.

8.5 ‘Leaders and managers have high expectations for learners and seek to improve 
success rates by delivering monthly monitoring activities where progress, retention 
and skills destinations are monitored.’  Any areas causing concern are dealt with in a 
timely manner.

8.6 All learners have the opportunity for independent advice and guidance which 
ensures that an individual’s prior learning as well as their aptitude is reviewed to 
ensure that learners are on the right course and at the right level.

8.7 The majority of learners complete their learning goals in a timely manner and timely 
success rates for apprentices are significantly above the national average. Learners 
successfully meet challenging targets and move on to higher level qualifications.

8.8 Positive feedback without actions from all awarding body visits. On completing their 
programme, most learners have the confidence and opportunity to progress to 
further learning, training, employment or an apprenticeship.



20

8.19 ‘Destinations are known for the vast majority of leaners and progression rates into 
employment and education are provided.’

8.10 Observations of teaching learning and assessment are carried out on every member 
of staff with 30% outstanding, 66% good and 4% needing improvement. The results 
of these are reviewed and form the basis of both continual performance reviews as 
well as specific training actions.

8.11 Learner progress is regularly reviewed and actions plans put in place to ensure that 
learners who have fallen behind are given the opportunity to catch up on progress.  
Community learners have individual targets which are reviewed at the end of each 
session and at the end of each programme of study.

8.12 Apprentices acquire qualifications that either enable them to move to higher level 
qualifications or move into regular paid employment. Unemployed learners on 
sector based work academies have moved to further learning and in some cases 
work experience and apprenticeships. Tracked destinations show that the majority 
of learners progress into paid employment. Statistics from the LEP, DWP and 
Economic Development at the local authority show priorities in the local area which 
can aid advice and guidance into specific courses, or planning of courses.

8.13 Unemployed learners and non-apprentices are able to access courses that can lead 
them into paid employment that fits their individual circumstances and goals e.g. 
accounting, early years and teaching assistant courses, GCSE maths and English GCSE 
for access to HE.

8.14 Learners demonstrate and develop good employability skills. Employers’ 
requirements for maths, English and ICT are being met and in some cases exceeded 
by learners achieving higher levels than required by the framework.  Learners 
receive impartial advice about qualifications that may benefit them the most.

8.15 Learners with EHC/LDA plans improve and progress to employment/ further learning 
or specialist provision. Their range of life/employability skills, confidence and social 
skills are enhanced as a result of the teaching/work experience they receive. They 
can see a clear path for development.

8.16 Overall learner achievement between different age groups showed no significant 
differences between the two main groups. For the period 2015/2016 success rates 
are currently significantly above national average. There are no significant 
differentials in achievement between different groups accessing the provision.

8.17 Staff promote clear messages about safeguarding in all aspects including prevent 
awareness, prejudice, staying safe on line and bullying. This is evidenced in 
observations and reinforced by the use of posters. The recent learner survey showed 



21

that 100% of learners felt safe whilst attending RALSS provision. Most learners have 
a very good understanding of equality and diversity and show extremely high levels 
of mutual respect and tolerance. Most learners have a good understanding of 
safeguarding and the risks of radicalisation and extremism.

8.18 Learners develop personal, social and employability skills including English, 
mathematics and ICT required to achieve their core learning aims and appreciate 
these skills. Learning programmes allow learners to explore personal social and 
ethical issues to promote good citizenship.

Areas for Improvement

8.19 Develop a thorough approach to identifying and recording learners’ destinations 
with a view to understanding better the impact of the service.

8.20 Development is needed to ensure parents the local authority and schools view 
apprenticeships as an aspirational route.

8.21 Target-setting, so that learning targets focus on improving learners’ skills and their 
personal development needs for the more able learner.

8.22 Monitor functional skills to achieve a significant improvement to at least 5% above 
national averages.

8.23 Monitor 16-18 apprenticeships to achieve a 5% minimum increase in success rates.

8.24 Attendance and retention of learners to some sessions 

8.25 Not enough teaching, learning, and assessment is outstanding and embedding of 

English and maths into sessions to identifying and recording learners’ 
destinations with a view to understanding better the impact of 
the service.

5.22 Development is needed 



22

9 Appendices - Data

Table 1: Overall Grading of Provision

Common Inspection Framework Criteria 
(CIF)

13-14 14-15 15-16

Overall Effectiveness 3 2 2

Leadership and Management 3 2 2

Quality of Teaching Learning and Assessment 2 2 2

Personal Development Behaviour and Welfare 2 2 1

16-19 Learners 2 2 2

Outcomes for Learners 2 2 2

Adult Skills 2 2 2

Community Learning 2 2 2

Apprenticeships 2 2 2

Safeguarding of Learners 2 2 1



23

Table 2: Classroom Learning/Education & Training 4 year trends

Overall
Provider Full Year Provisional Variance National (All 

Institutions)
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 + or - 

National
2014/15

Leavers 9 8 9 8
Achievement Rate 88.6% 62.5% 77.8% 100% +20.2% 79.8
Pass Rate 91.7% 100% 83.3% 100% +11.8% 88.2
Retention Rate 88.9% 75% 77.8% 100% +9.5% 90.5

16-18

Leavers 464 283 203 1157
Achievement Rate 84.5% 80.2% 93.6% 92.1% +5.1% 87.0
Pass Rate 94.5% 88.6% 89.0% 95.1% +1.5% 93.6
Retention Rate 90.3% 90.8% 96.1% 96.5% +2.6% 92.9

19+

Leavers 473 291 212 1165
Achievement Rate 84.6% 79.7% 93.0% 92.2% +8.8% 83.4
Pass Rate 93.7% 88.2% 97.5% 95.1% +4.2% 90.9

Total

Retention Rate 90.2% 90.4% 95.3% 96.5% +4.8% 91.7



24

Table 3: Apprenticeship 4 Year Trends (Overall)

Overall
Provider Full Year Provisional Provider 

Group
National (All 
Institutions)

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2014/15
Leavers 5 14 19 18
Achievement Rate 60.0% 64.3% 78.9% 72.2% -0.7% 72.9
Pass Rate 92.9%

16-18

Leavers 7 16 16 21
Achievement Rate 57.1% 75.0% 81.3% 81.0% +8% 73.0
Pass Rate 89.5%

19-23

Leavers 25 55 19 8
Achievement Rate 60.0% 58.2% 78.9% 87.5% +17.6% 69.9
Pass Rate 100%

24+

Leavers 37 85 54 47

Achievement Rate 59.5% 62.4% 80% 78.7% +7% 71.7
Pass Rate 92.5%

Total

Table 4: Apprenticeship 4 Year Trends (Timely)

Overall
Provider Full Year Provisional Provider 

Group
National

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2014/15
16-18 Leavers 5 14 19 18

Achievement Rate 60.0% 64.3% 78.9% 61.1 -1.4% 62.5
Pass Rate 93

Leavers 9 16 16 21
Achievement Rate 44.4% 62.5% 75.0% 76% +15.4% 60.6
Pass Rate 89.5%

19+

Leavers 51 55 19 8
Achievement Rate 27.5% 41.5% 63.2% 87% +31.7% 55.3
Pass Rate 100

24+

Leavers 37 85 54 47
Achievement Rate 32.3% 50.7% 72.2% 72.3% 13.4% 58.9

Total

Pass Rate



25

Table 5: Community Learning - 5 Year Success Rates

Starts Retention Achievement Success
2011/2 862 97% 93% 89%
2012/3 931 95% 90% 85%
2013/4 695 95% 99% 94%
2014/5 492 95% 98% 93%
2015/6 776 98% 94% 93%

Table 6: Observations of Teaching and Learning - 5 Year Profile
Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade3 Grade 4

2011/2 4% 83% 13% 0%
2012/3 7% 77% 12% 4%
2013/4 45% 45% 10% 0%
2014/5 40% 56% 4% 0%
2015/6 30% 66% 4% 0%



26

10 Appendices – Quality Improvement Plan (QIP)

Issue Actions Measurement of Success 
(Milestones)

Target Dates Responsible 
Officer

Earlier delivery of AEB budget 
totals with particular 
reference to individual 
account lines under the new 
funding methodology (4.17)

Carry in completed
Process targets set with PRC
Monthly monitoring meetings
Monthly updates to PRC
Additional funding sought

Carry in implemented
Meet PRC to review No’s
100% delivery of AEB
PFR sent
Additional funding achieved

Aug 2016
Aug 2016
Monthly
Termly Review
Jan 17

RS
RS/JH/TB
RS/JH/TB
RS
RS

Seek out expanded 
opportunities for funding 
under both EFA and ESF to 
provide a wider and expanding 
service. (4.18)

Monitor delivery to fully meet 
AEB
Apply for additional funding for 
apprenticeships.

AEB Met

Additional funding attracted

Monthly

Dec 16

RS

RS

Target-setting, so that learning 
targets focus on improving 
learners’ skills and their 
personal development needs 
for the more able learner.
(4.19)

Appropriate ‘smart’ targets set 
for all CL learners.

ILPs checked and monitored for 
all CL courses.

All learners have appropriate 
targets which are 
challenging and realistic.

September  2016 DM

DM

Attendance and retention of 
learners to some sessions. 
(4.20)

CPD development raise 
awareness
Individual action plans where 
applicable
Monitor Actions

All staff informed

Any person falling behind 
has adjusted targets
95% retention 

September 2016

As required

Monthly

RS/DM

DM

Management 
Team

Expansion of the 14-19 
frameworks across all 
providers within Rutland to 
provide young people with 
improved life chances.(4.21)

 Schools invited to participate

14-19 Plan established

Meeting takes place

Plan commenced

Nov 16

Jan 17

MF

Designated 
officer

Identify and record learners’ 
destinations with a view to 
understanding better the 
impact of the service. (5.21)

All learner destinations logged on 
MIS

95% learner destinations 
logged

July 17 MIS

Ensure parents the local 
authority and schools view 
apprenticeships as an 
aspirational route.
(5.22)

Actions to be led by 14-19 
partnership

All year 11 students informed.

Medium for information 
agreed

All schools open / careers 
evenings attended

Nov 16

By April 17

RS

RS

Expand the delivery of work 
related programmes to ensure 
that we meet the needs of 
businesses in the local area.
(5.23)

Meet companies
MIS review to ensure offer meets 
need
New programmes in place

20 local companies met
Programme offer meets local 
need
WRP impact on delivery

Dec 16
Jan 17

July 17

PRC
MIS

Management 
Team

Not enough teaching, learning 
and assessment is outstanding 
(6.16)

Tutors made aware before 
observations of what  a grade 1 
session looks like

CPD to concentrate on striving 
for excellence at all times

50% of OTLAs graded as 
outstanding.

CL meetings to include 
training.

Nov 2016

Termly

DM

DM

Embedding of English and 
maths into sessions measured 
at OTLA
 (8.25)

Tutors to address English and 
maths skills wherever relevant 
and appropriate

Opportunities taken and 
evidenced at  OTLA

November 2016 DM



27

Better engagement of tutors 
in CPD opportunities.  (6.17)

Staff training day
Quarterly CPD

PDR in place for all staff

100% attendance
All staff attend

All staff complete a PDR and 
have needs met

Sept 16
Staff updates 
given
Feb 17

RS/DM
DM

RS/DM

Monitor functional skills to 
achieve a significant 
improvement to at least 5% 
above national averages. 
(8.25)

Targets set at beginning of year
Monthly monitoring

Actions plans in place for 
individuals

All students targets set
All students meeting ILP

Retention up to 90%

Success at 90%

Sept 16
Monthly

Quarterly review

July 17

PRC
Management 
Team
Management 
Team
Management 
Team

Monitor 16-18 
apprenticeships to achieve a 
5% minimum increase in 
success rates. (8.26)

Targets set at beginning of year
Monthly monitoring

Actions plans in place for 
individuals

All students targets set
All students meeting ILP

Retention up to 90%

Success at 90%

Sept 16
Monthly

Quarterly review

July 17

PRC
Management 
Team
Management 
Team
Management 
Team





Report No: 101/2017
PUBLIC REPORT

PEOPLE (CHILDREN)SCRUTINY PANEL
4 May 2017

RUTLAND STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE)

Report of the Director for People

Strategic Aim: Reaching our full potential

Exempt Information No

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible:

Cllr. Richard Foster, Portfolio Holder for S Children and 
Young People (Safeguarding)

Cllr. David Wilby, Portfolio Holder for Lifelong Learning

Contact Officer(s): Ms Gill Curtis, Head of Service -
Lifelong Learning 

01572 758460
gcurtis@rutland.gov.uk 

Cllr. Gale Waller
GWaller@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors All

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of the document is to report on the activity of the SACRE for the 
years 2015-17.  This Rutland SACRE Annual Report for 2015-17 is a statutory 
requirement and outlines how Rutland SACRE continues to meet its statutory 
duties.

1.2 It also provides wider information on the provision and standards in RE, including 
findings from OFSTED and SIAMS inspections.  

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Scrutiny Panel considers the content of the Rutland SACRE Annual Report 
2015-17.  

3 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

3.1 SACREs were established by the 1944 Education Act and their functions set out in 
the 1988 Education Act.  The main function is to advise the LA on matters related 
to Collective Worship in community schools and the Religious Education to be 
given in accordance with the Locally Agreed Syllabus.

3.2 The Rutland Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE) is 
therefore a statutory body which has a key role in monitoring the provision of 

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
mailto:gcurtis@rutland.gov.uk
mailto:GWaller@rutland.gov.uk


Religious Education in schools in Rutland. It has an important role working on 
behalf of the local authority to advise on the provision of religious education in all 
forms of schools and educational establishments in the local area.

3.3 This Annual Report indicates how these functions and duties have been 
discharged during the year.  The report also aims to provide wider information 
about the provision for RE and the standards that students are achieving, about 
the provision for Collective Worship, and about SACRE's own activities

3.4 The DfE guidance emphasises the importance of Religious Education and draws 
out three key contributions it makes to the educational experience of young people 
in schools:

i. Spiritual, moral, social and cultural development
ii. Personal development and well-being
iii. Community cohesion

3.5 Ofsted inspections are required to report on the spiritual, moral, social and cultural 
development of pupils at the school and introduces them to diversity and the wider 
society. The outcome of Ofsted inspections for 14-15 are outlined in the report.

4 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS

The report highlights that SACRE has reviewed its SACRE Development Plan for 2015-17.  
SACRE will establish its new priorities at its meeting in the summer term 2017, along with 
developing a new plan. 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 



1

Rutland
Standing Advisory Council

For
Religious Education

Rutland
Standing Advisory Council

For
Religious Education

(SACRE)

Report September 2015 – March 2017

“Philosophy and Ethics has given me a way to express my opinions and have them 
challenged by other students.  My mind set has already been affected for the good 

and I believe I am more open-minded because of it.” (VI Form Student)

Rutland SACRE

Standing Advisory Council on
Religious Education

Supporting Rutland Schools in delivering Religious Education

http://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/en/councilservices/EducationandLearning/services/sacre/Pages/about-sacre.aspx


2

Contents

Page

1. Introduction ……………………………………………………………..  3

2. The Role of SACRE …………………………………………………….  5

3. Religious Education ……………………………………………………  6

4. Collective Worship ……………………………………………………..  6

5. Ofsted Inspection Reports 2015-2017 ………………………………  7

6. SIAMS/DCIR Reports 2015-2017 ……………………………………..  9

7. Validated KS4 7 KS5 Results 2016 …………………………………. 11

8. Reporting to Parents ………………………………………………….. 12

9. Links to Local Authority and National Priorities …………………. 12

10. Complaints about Collective Worship ……………………………… 12

11. SACRE Development Plan 2015-2017 ………………………………. 12

12. Religious Education Training Programme …………………………. 13

13. Links with Partners and other Bodies ……………………………….. 13

14. SACRE Budget …………………………………………………………… 14

Appendix  A – Rutland SACRE Membership and Attendance 2015-2017 …… 15

Appendix B  – List of Links to Ofsted Reports …………………………………… 17

Appendix C – SIAMS and DCIR Inspection Reports 2015-2017 ………………. 18

Appendix D – Key Stage 4 Results 2016 …………………………………………. 44

This information can be made available in other languages and formats on request. 



3

1 INTRODUCTION

Rutland Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education (SACRE) is a statutory 
body which has a key role in monitoring of Religious Education in schools in 
Rutland. It has an important role working on behalf of the Local Authority (LA) to 
advise on the provision of Religious Education in all forms of schools and 
educational establishments in the local area.

The roles and responsibilities of a SACRE are clearly set out in Section 3 of 
Religious Education in English schools: Non-statutory guidance 2010 published by 
the Department for Children, Schools and Families.  This guidance can be found 
at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-
english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010

SACREs were established by the 1944 Education Act and their functions set out in 
the 1988 Education Act.  The main function is to advise the LA on matters related 
to Collective Worship in community schools and the Religious Education to be 
given in accordance with the locally Agreed Syllabus.  

The SACRE also has the duty to require that the locally Agreed Syllabus be 
reviewed every five years to keep it relevant and appropriate and to ensure that 
the Local Authority checks that schools under their control comply with the 
legislation. 

This Report indicates how these functions and duties have been discharged.  The 
Report also aims to provide wider information about the provision for RE and the 
standards that students are achieving; about the provision for Collective Worship, 
and about SACRE's own activities.   

It is hoped that the Report will inform the continuing developments in RE and 
Collective Worship in Rutland and continue to be an effective support for school 
improvement.

The local SACRE congratulates those primary schools who received good and 
outstanding grades in this year's Ofsted inspection reports for the Spiritual, Moral, 
Social and Cultural (SMSC) development of their pupils and also the schools who 
have achieved good and outstanding judgements in their Statutory Inspection of 
Anglican and Methodist Schools (SIAMS) reports and in the Diocesan Canonical 
Inspection Report (DCIR). The SACRE will continue to encourage schools to 
broaden knowledge and understanding of all cultures and faiths.

Thank you to Rutland County Council for their assistance in the support and 
running of the Rutland SACRE and also to Rutland pupils, students and staff for 
allowing us to quote their words in this report.

This report covers more than one academic year in order to be as up to date as 
possible.  Public examination results are normally verified in early spring and in 
order to incorporate these in future, SACRE’s Annual Report will cover the period 
April to March.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/religious-education-guidance-in-english-schools-non-statutory-guidance-2010


4

I should like to commend this report.

Cllr Gale Waller
Chair of SACRE



5

2 THE ROLE OF SACRE

“Furthering my knowledge on the basis of religious studies has widened my 
presupposition pool to new theories in which I have improved my overall 
knowledge and helped me become more open minded to those who believe in 
the concept of God and just others in general.” (VI Form Student)

2.1 Background

The 1988 Education Reform Act confirmed the statutory requirement for all LAs to 
form a permanent body for Religious Education – The Standing Advisory Council for 
Religious Education (SACRE).  The Rutland SACRE exists to advise the LA on 
matters concerned with the provision of Religious Education and Collective Worship.

2.2 The world of education has changed, and continues to change as successive 
governments strive to find ways to improve educational outcomes.  Recently there 
have been proposals to reduce the role of Local Authority involvement in schools, 
however, SACRE continues to be a statutory body.  Lord Nash, Under Secretary of 
State for Education, wrote to the Chair of Rutland’s SACRE in March 2016: 

“The Government firmly believes in the importance of R.E.  Good quality R.E. can 
develop children’s knowledge of the values and traditions of Britain and other   
countries and foster understanding amongst different faiths and cultures….

We do not currently have any plans to remove the duty on local authorities to 
establish a SACRE…….Local Authorities continue to have a statutory duty to support 
the activities of SACRE….”

2.3 By law the SACRE comprises of four groups:

Group One: Representatives of Christian denominations other than the 
Church of England and other religions, reflecting the principal 
religious traditions of an area (Rutland in our case)

Group Two: Church of England Representatives

Group Three: Teacher Associations

Group Four: LA Representatives

Each group has equal status and voting rights. See Appendix A for membership.

In Rutland SACRE is supported by a clerk and a professional officer.  The 
professional officer left the authority in early spring 2017 and has been replaced by a 
part-time appointee who also supports SACREs in Northamptonshire, Peterborough 
and Cambridgeshire.

2.4 The broad role of the SACRE is to support the effective provision of Religious 
Education and Collective Worship in maintained schools through:



6

 advising the LA on methods of teaching the Agreed Syllabus for Religious 
Education;

 advising the LA on the provision of training for teachers;

 monitoring inspection reports on Religious Education, Collective Worship and 
SMSC development of pupils;

 considering complaints about the provision and delivery of Religious Education 
and Collective Worship referred to SACRE by the LA;

 obtaining support from the LA to review its Locally Agreed Syllabus;

 contributing to community cohesion.

2.5 The Rutland SACRE meets at least three times each academic year and, since July 
2015, this has been at Rutland County Council’s Catmose building reflecting 
SACRE’s position as a committee of the Council.  SACRE meetings are open to the 
public who may attend as observers and minutes are published on Rutland County 
Council’s website.

3 RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

“RE teaches me that everyone is not the same; it teaches me there are lots of 
other religions and more about the world.”  (Year 3 pupil)

3.1 There is a legislative requirement that a Local Authority should undertake a review of 
its locally Agreed Syllabus every 5 years.  Since 1997, when Rutland became a 
unitary authority, Rutland has adopted the Northamptonshire locally Agreed Syllabus. 
This is called ‘Growing Together’ and Rutland County Council agreed to adopt this 
Syllabus in February 2011. This Agreed Syllabus is currently under review. Rutland 
County Council, in partnership with Northamptonshire, Peterborough and 
Cambridgeshire is writing a new Agreed Syllabus.  English Martyrs Catholic 
Voluntary Academy follows ‘Come and See’, the RE syllabus for schools within the 
Nottingham Roman Catholic Diocese.

4 COLLECTIVE WORSHIP

“This course has allowed me to listen to, understand and consider other 
people’s ideologies whilst also being able to analyse their epistemology and 
reasoning.  It has been fundamental in opening my mind to the huge variety 
of possibilities in this uncertain world.”  (VI Form Student)

4.1 In the Autumn of 2016 SACRE received a report on Collective Worship compiled by 
two head teacher members from a review of Rutland schools’ collective worship 
polices, termly collective worship calendars and discussion with school staff.  There 
were a number of common threads across all primary schools:

 Collective Worship provides an opportunity for the whole school to come 
together at least three times a week to reflect on a theme/value of the week;



7

 The themes/values give focus.  Some are based around the school’s values, 
some around SEAL (social and emotional aspects of learning) and some 
around important days of the academic year, including festivals across a range 
of cultures;

 A wide range of teachers lead collective worship although every school had a 
collective worship lead;

 Every school has “celebrating success” assemblies;

 Schools invite visitors to speak at collective worship.  These included retired 
teachers, clergy and lay-readers;

 Collective worship provides an opportunity for whole school singing;

 All schools also had class-based collective worship.

4.2 In addition to collective worship, faith schools also offer the opportunity for 
morning/end of day/lunchtime prayer.  Pupils in these schools regularly recite the 
Lord’s Prayer and children themselves write and lead prayers.  Church of England 
schools use the Bible to support worship and pupils also have opportunities to 
worship in church.

4.3 It is far more difficult in secondary schools to have whole school collective worship 
because of the demands of timetabling large numbers of young people and the 
space that is required for all young people in a secondary school to meet together.  
However, it does happen but more frequently collective worship takes place in 
smaller groups such as Year Group or House Assembly.  In secondary schools in 
Rutland there is an emphasis on Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural Education and 
British Values.

5 OFSTED INSPECTION REPORTS 2015-2017

“In RE we get to ask questions about the World.”  (Year 3 Pupil)

5.1 The following Rutland Primary Schools were inspected by Ofsted in the period 
covered by this report:

 Oakham CofE Primary School (November 2015)
 Langham C of E Primary School Academy (November   2015)
 The Parks School (February 2016)
 English Martyrs Catholic Voluntary Academy (July 2016) – Short Inspection
 Empingham CofE Primary School (June 2016) – Short Inspection
 Great Casterton CofE Primary School (June 2016)
 Casterton College, Rutland (February 2017)
 Harington School (February 2017)

“Good provision for pupils’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural education means 
that pupils become considerate, thoughtful and reflective young people. The 
school is particularly effective in teaching pupils about, and promoting respect for, 



8

other religions and cultures. Teachers give pupils first-hand experiences to meet 
visitors from other countries and to visit places of worship, such as a Sikh 
Gurdwara. This means that pupils have a good understanding of other religions 
and this, in turn, prepares them well for life in modern Britain.” Oakham Church 
of England Primary School: Ofsted Report

“The school provides strong social, moral, spiritual and cultural education. Pupils 
have a good sense of justice, fairness and equality. They told inspectors how they 
feel safe at school and how their lives differ from those of refugees, for example. 
Pupils say there is no bullying and that they know who to turn to if they have a 
problem. They understand the rule of law and democracy, comparing it to those 
who do not enjoy such freedoms. Pupils know that the school does not tolerate 
discrimination of any kind and that they are responsible for their own actions. They 
are well prepared for life in modern Britain. 

“Pupils of different ages discuss democracy, elections, laws of the land, unfairness, 
equality and respect for the beliefs of others. They are positive about the role of the 
school in helping them learn more about life in modern Britain and about the role 
they will play in society. Pupils respect the views of each other and have a well-
developed sense of collaboration when asked to work together.

“The school’s values and teaching prepare pupils well for life beyond the school 
gates.  They understand fundamental British values and treat each other with 
respect, care and consideration.

“The school’s work to promote pupil’s personal development and welfare is good.  
Pupils take pride in their school, their appearance and their work.  They are 
confident individuals who know how to deal with disappointment as well as 
success.”  Langham CofE Primary School Ofsted Report 

“Attitudes to learning are extremely positive.  Adults have very high expectations for 
each child.  Personal and social skills are sensitively developed to enable all 
children to learn through play either individually with an adult or in a small group.  
The school’s work to promote children’s personal development and welfare is 
outstanding.  Adults miss no opportunities to promote the development of personal 
and social skills in all activities.

“Many opportunities are provided for children to learn about different cultures and 
world celebrations.  All of these rich experiences allow children to begin to develop 
an understanding of life in modern Britain.  During a slide show children sat 
enthralled as they looked at photographs of their past learning, especially when 
they noticed that not everyone dressed the same as they do.”  The Parks School 
Ofsted Report 

 “Pupils conduct themselves extremely well in class and around the school. 
Their attitudes towards learning and towards one another are exemplary. This 
is testament to the school’s strong ethos of care, support and tolerance. Pupils 
participate in school life eagerly and readily help others less able or less 
fortunate than themselves.” English Martyrs Catholic Voluntary Academy: 
Ofsted Report 



9

“Pupils’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural development is good.  Pupils have 
opportunities to lead collective worship and Class 3 visited both a mandhir and a 
mosque in Peterborough to develop their knowledge of other faiths.  To celebrate 
Her Majesty’s 90th birthday, each class learned about the cultures of different 
countries belonging to the Commonweath.”  Empingham CofE Primary School 

“The promotion of pupils’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural development is 
exceptional. Pupils learn about others’ faiths and beliefs through religious 
education lessons and thoughtful assembly themes; pupils engage keenly in 
discussions about different cultures. A group of Years 5 and 6 pupils learning 
about Sikhism listened avidly to the description of a ‘Langar’ and, seating 
themselves on the floor in a similar arrangement, enthusiastically debated the 
pros and cons, while making insightful comparisons with other faiths. Pupils 
understand the school’s Christian values and ethos, and every opportunity is 
taken to promote a shared understanding of modern British values. Great 
Casterton C of E Primary School: OfSTED Report

“Pupils’ very positive views of the school are reflected in their comments to 
inspectors. Pupils confirmed that the school teaches them about things such 
as e-safety and potential dangers from drugs, alcohol and radicalisation. 
Pupils report that they feel very safe.” Casterton College Rutland: Ofsted 
Report.

“Students contribute to lessons in an articulate and mature manner, especially 
those lessons that include extended debate and discussion. For example, in a 
philosophy and ethics lesson, students participated confidently in a discussion 
about ‘conscience’ and were comfortable handling some very complex 
concepts and ideas.”  Harington School: Ofsted Report.

5.2 A link to the full reports is attached at Appendix B.

6. SIAMS/DCIR Reports 2015-17

“I feel proud learning about Christianity.” (Year 2 Pupil)

6.1 The following SIAMS (School Inspection Anglican and Methodist Schools) and 
DCIR (Diocesan Canonical Inspection Report) were carried out during the period of 
the report.  SIAMS and DCIR inspections focus on religious teaching, collective 
worship and academic attainment.

 Ryhall C of E Academy (November 2016)
 Empingham C of E VC Primary School (March 2016)
 Great Casterton C of E Primary School (March 2016)
 Exton and Greetham C of E VC Primary School (September 2016)
 English Martyrs’ Catholic Voluntary Academy (February 2017)

“The school, through its distinctive Christian character, is outstanding at meeting 
the needs of all learners.  Parents are clear that this is a church school. They 



10

regard the Christian ethos of welcome and acceptance as its most distinctive 
feature. It is the key to how the school successfully integrates pupils of all abilities 
and their families. Everyone is recognised as a unique human being made in the 
image of God. The potential in every pupil is acknowledged and teachers are 
continually developing their systems for tracking pupils’ progress so that each one 
can fulfil the school’s aim to ‘Look back with pride and move forward with 
confidence’. The achievement of pupils overall has been on an upward trend with 
disadvantaged pupils making progress at least as rapidly as their peers.” Ryhall 
School: SIAMS Inspection

“The school, through its distinctive Christian character, is good at meeting the 
needs of all learners. This small, rural primary school holds the Christian values of 
hope, endurance, forgiveness and friendship at the heart of everything it does. It 
provides a nurturing learning environment where pupils are proud to belong. This 
is because the school is a welcoming, inclusive, happy family community, rooted in 
the Christian faith and the school’s Anglican tradition. At Empingham, the 
wellbeing of the whole community is of utmost importance. Consequently, 
relationships and behaviour are good. In addition, attendance is well above 
average and there have been no exclusions. The school attributes this to leading 
by example and living out the school’s chosen core Christian values, such as 
forgiveness.” Empingham School: SIAMS Inspection

“Pupils can explain the school’s newly chosen Christian values in their own 
words.  They have a good understanding of right and wrong and behaviour is 
good because spiritual, moral, social and cultural development is strongly 
promoted. Pupils understand the importance of a family and want to come to 
school because of the Christian ethos. Pupil progress meetings are 
underpinned by the school’s Christian ethos as each child matters as a child of 
God.  As a result, the large majority of children are making good progress. 
Pupils enjoy religious education [RE]. The RE day in November, based on the 
life and death of Jesus, was a very successful cross-curricular day. Pupils 
have a very good level of religious literacy and can explain the Christian 
narrative well. They speak of incarnation as ‘Jesus coming down from heaven 
as a human and he was not a ghost/spirit. He had flesh on his body’. They go 
on to explain salvation as ‘when Jesus came down from heaven to die on the 
cross to save us from our sins’.  Daily worship, based on Christian values and 
the church year, brings the whole school community together. It involves and 
engages pupils and makes a difference to the lives of adults, including 
parents. This is because worship is recognised and valued as an important 
part of the school day. It informs attitudes, relationships and behaviour. Pupils 
relate the results of forgiveness as moving on, not looking at the past, looking 
at the present and the future. They also speak of Jesus and the hope he 
brings. Great Casterton C of E Primary School: SIAMS Report

“The school, through its distinctive Christian character, is good at meeting the 
needs of all learners.  Central to this small rural primary school is a strong 
commitment to value all the children and families it serves. The school’s Christian 
values are linked to its vision and mission statement to ‘Explore and Grow’, which is 
underpinned by the importance placed on developing the children spiritually as well 
as educationally, morally and culturally. This is truly at the heart of the school’s 



11

positive learning environment where pupils value their friends and teachers. 
Attendance is good, although there is some mobility. Family requests for absence 
are always treated with compassion. These include those from HM Armed Forces 
as well as the travelling community, who all feel accepted here. Consequently, 
relationships are very good. There have been no exclusions as there is a strong 
behaviour and safeguarding policy as well as a gender equality policy, built around 
Christian teaching. These provide a secure, collaborative and purposeful learning 
culture where all pupils and staff are valued, listened to and challenged to be the 
best they can be. In practice this enables all to flourish within a spirit of honesty and 
forgiveness.”  Exton and Greetham: SIAMS Report

“The exemplary behaviour of pupils reflects the efficacy of the school’s behaviour 
policy and is founded on Gospel values and the teachings of the Catholic Church.  
A member of staff said ‘I love coming to work here’ and a child stated ‘It is a really 
loving school’.  The school is well led and managed by the executive head teacher, 
head of school, subject leader for Religious Education and a strong governing body.  
They rightly value and closely guard the strong Catholic identity of the school.  They 
are strategic in ensuring that this is sustained as the school meets new challenges 
including welcoming a higher proportion of pupils who are of faith backgrounds 
other than Catholic.  The school’s behaviour policy, firmly rooted in Gospel values, 
results in exemplary behaviour throughout the school and the living out of the 
school Mission Statement, ‘We follow as a family in the footsteps of Jesus.’  There 
is a strong sense of belonging within the school.  Staff and pupils described the 
school as ‘like a family’.  The genuine care was evident in many of the responses 
such as ‘I am very happy at this school’, ‘Everyone is kind to one another’ and ‘I 
love coming to work each day’.”  English Martyrs’ Catholic Voluntary Academy:  
DCIR Report

6.2 Copies of the full reports are attached at Appendix C.

7. VALIDATED KS4 AND KS5 RESULTS 2016

“I think RE is cool because I like hearing about peoples’ life stories and you 
can listen to what they do and how they make decisions about how to live 
their lives.”  (Year 6 Pupil)

7.1 Validated KS4 and KS5 data for 2016 attainment outcomes was provided to 
SACRE in Spring 2016 and is provided at Appendix D.  

7.2 SACRE members were particularly pleased to note the high achievement levels of 
students taking Philosophy and Ethics as both Full and Short Course GCSE RE 
and we are sure that the skills in evaluation and reasoning, key to success in this 
course, has had positive impact on the success these students had in other 
subjects.  We were pleased to see the numbers entering from Catmose College for 
the Full Course GCSE in Philosophy Ethics programme and the success those 
students had.  



12

7.3 We also celebrated the success Uppingham Community College and Casterton 
College had for the Short Course programme.  The Short Course provides the 
opportunity for young people, particularly those who do not wish to study a full 
GCSE programme, to achieve a qualification in RE.  RE is compulsory to age 18 for 
students in state schools.

8. REPORTING TO PARENTS

“I like RE because we talk about the meaning of stories and how to live our 
lives as better Christians.  It encourages us to go to church and it’s fun 
because the Christmas story was brought to life by the adults dressing up on 
our pilgrimage.”  (Year 3 Pupil)

8.1 Schools are legally required to report to parents annually on pupils’ progress in R.E. 

9. LINKS TO LOCAL AUTHORITY AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES 

“I enjoy Mr Singh teaching us about the ‘Circle of Life’ as a Sikh.”  (Year 6 
Pupil)

9.1 The inspection reports for both Section 5 (Ofsted) and Section 48 (SIAMS and DCIR) 
present a sound baseline for the monitoring of Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural 
Education in Rutland schools. 

9.2 The SACRE endeavours to respond to the proposed priorities of the Local Authority 
‘Children and Young Peoples’ Plan’; for example, the extent to which the RE 
Syllabus meets the needs of the community.

9.3 The SACRE also endeavours to promote and develop the importance of resilience in 
young people through relevant areas of the curriculum in school including Religious 
Education.

10. COMPLAINTS ABOUT COLLECTIVE WORSHIP

10.1 There were no complaints about Collective Worship received by the Rutland SACRE 
from parents in the period of this report. 

11. SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2015-17 

“I like RE when our answers are challenged and we have debates.”  (Year 6 
Pupil)

11.1 The SACRE reviewed its Development Plan for 2015-17.  

The Development Plan aimed to address the following issues over the two years:

 identifying common strengths and areas for development in RE.

 identifying the required professional development for raising standards in RE 
and providing quality Collective Worship

.



13

 contributing to the priorities of the Local Authority strategic partnership in 
relation to community cohesion.

11.2 The success of any Development Plan will depend on the level of support provided 
by Rutland County Council but the priority of the next 3 years will be the production 
of a new Agreed Syllabus (see Section 11 below) and the training of school staff to 
use it.

12. RELIGIOUS EDUCATION TRAINING PROGRAMME

I established philosophy and ethics at A-level as a constructively challenging 
subject with numerous interesting and exciting aspects within it.  I greatly 
believe it to be one of the best academic subjects due to the differences in 
the way of thinking it involves when engaging with the topics compared to 
any other subjects.  It is interesting and enables a student to have an open 
mind and learn to accept the opinions of others.”  (VI Form teacher, Rutland)

12.1 SACRE has created an RE network for RE co-ordinators in Rutland schools.  This 
network will develop support to schools and, because the review of the Agreed 
Syllabus being undertaken in 2017/18, will ensure there is appropriate training 
available for Rutland Schools.

12.2 The SACRE is required to review Rutland’s recommended RE syllabus every five 
years through the establishment of an Agreed Syllabus Conference.  Rutland, since 
its establishment as a Unitary Council twenty years ago, has adopted the Syllabus 
created by Northamptonshire County Council.  Northamptonshire have decided to 
work with Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and to this end have established a 
joint Agreed Syllabus Conference.  These authorities have also agreed to have 
representation from Rutland at this Conference and once a new syllabus is agreed 
by this Conference it will be submitted to Rutland County Council for approval and 
adoption.  By working with Northamptonshire, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
Rutland will achieve economies of scale.  In addition, Rutland’s schools will have 
the benefit of sharing ideas with colleagues across these other authority areas.

13  LINKS WITH PARTNERS AND OTHER BODIES

“I enjoy gaining knowledge of different religions.” (Year 6 pupil)

13.1 Rutland SACRE is actively involved in the National Association of SACREs 
(NASACRE) and has been represented at its meetings and conferences. 

    
13.2 Educational establishments in Rutland and Rutland Local Authority work closely 

with both the Anglican and Roman Catholic Diocese and with Churches Together.

13.3 SACRE considered the highlights of the NASACRE conference 2016:

Key notes speakers included: Baroness Elizabeth Butler‐Sloss - former High 
Court Judge, President of the Family Division of the High Court of Justice and 
Chair of the Commission on Religion and Belief (CORAB) in British Public Life. 
She spoke about the CORAB report.



14

Professor Adam Dinham of Goldsmith’s College - Professor Dinham was one of 
the authors of RE for Real: The future of teaching and learning about religion and 
belief.

His report suggested that although the landscape of belief has changed sharply in 
recent years, Religious Education has not. The report concludes that the subject 
needs a total overhaul to bring it into the 21st century: as Professor Dinham says, 
“Content should reflect the real religious landscape.”

14. SACRE BUDGET

14.1 SACRE has a small budget. This has been allocated for clerking of meetings, the 
taking up of SACRE business by the clerk, taking forward special projects and to 
maintain the links with and the support of NASACRE, including sending a delegate 
to the Annual NASACRE Conference. 



15

APPENDIX  A 

Rutland SACRE Membership and Attendance 2015-2017

The Rutland SACRE met on the following occasions in 2015-2017 

Date Venue

13th October 2015 Council Chamber

12th January 2016 Council Chamber

17th March 2016 Council Chamber

12th July 2016 Council Chamber

11th October 2016 Council Chamber

24 January 2017 Council Chamber

Group One – Representative of other Churches and Faiths

Name Representing Actual Attendance Eligible Attendance

Mr A Menzies Roman Catholic 
Church

4 6

Mrs E. Ray The Methodist 
Church

2 6

Mrs J. Barnwell The Baptist 
Church

1 1

Group Two – Church of England Representatives

Mrs Barbara Crellin Peterborough 
Diocese

4 6

Mr Michael Kee* Peterborough 
Diocese

0 6

Rev Jane Baxter* Rutland Deanery 0 6

Mrs Joanna Harley* Rutland Deanery 0 6

*The Deanery and Diocese are providing replacements for April 2017 onwards



16

Group Three – Teacher Associations

Mr Neil Rawes Association of 
School and College 
Leaders (ASCL)

2 6

Mr David Sharpe Association of 
Teachers and 
Lecturers (ATL)

3 6

Mrs Megan Davis National 
Association of 
Head Teachers 
(NAHT)

3 6

Group Four – Local Education Authority Representatives

Miss Gale Waller 
(Chair)

RCC 6 6

Mrs Lucy 
Stephenson

RCC 4 6

Co-opted Groups

Ms Katy Walker Rutland 
Headteachers’ 
Forum

2 6

Rutland LA Officer Supporting the Rutland SACRE

Dr Rashida Sharif, Specialist Education Officer, Learning and Skills (from July 2015 
till January 2017)
Ms Amanda Fitton (from April 2017)

Clerk to the Rutland SACRE

Miss Jane Narey (ceased July 2016)
Mrs Claire Snodin (from October 2016)



17

APPENDIX B

The following Ofsted Inspection Report for 2015-2017 can be found on the following 
website:

http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/inspection-reports/find-inspection- report

Please quote the Unique Reference Number (URN) as follows:

Oakham CofE Primary School Unique Reference Number (URN):  120181

Langham CofE Primary School - Unique Reference Number (URN): 139858

The Parks School - Unique Reference Number (URN): 120355

English Martyrs’ Catholic Voluntary Academy – Unique Reference Number 
(URN):  139611

Empingham CofE Primary School – Unique Reference Number (URN): 120177

Great Casterton CofE Primary School – Unique Reference Number (URN): 120185

Casterton College – Unique Reference Number (URN):  137340

Harington College – Unique Reference Number (URN):  141965

http://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/inspection-reports/find-inspection


18

APPENDIX C - SIAMS and DCIR Inspection Reports in 2015–2017

Statutory Inspection of Anglican and Methodist Schools (SIAMS) Report

Ryhall C of E Academy Church Street, Ryhall, Stamford, Lincs. 
PE9 4HR 

Current SIAMS inspection grade Outstanding 
Diocese/Methodist District Peterborough 
Previous SIAMS inspection grade: Satisfactory 
Date of academy conversion 1October 2014 
Name of multi-academy trust Peterborough Diocese Education Trust (PDET) 
Date/s of inspection 3 November 2016 
Date of last inspection 26 November 2010 
School’s unique reference number 120182 
Headteacher Katy Walker 
Inspector’s name and number Jane Lewis (27) 

School context 

Ryhall Church of England Academy is a smaller than average primary school 
serving a rural village in Rutland. There are currently 161 pupils on roll. The 
proportion of pupils eligible for free school meals is below the national average. The 
proportion with special educational needs is around the national average. The 
school converted to academy status on 1st October 2014 and is part of the 
Peterborough Diocese Education Trust (PDET). Since becoming an academy the 
school has appointed a substantive headteacher who was previously acting 
headteacher for 1 month prior to academy conversion. 

The distinctiveness and effectiveness of Ryhall C of E Academy as a Church 
of England school are outstanding 

 The clear Christian vision of the headteacher has brought about rapid 
improvement of Ryhall as a church school. 

 Christian values are fully embedded so that all members of the school 
community talk about them in everyday conversations and clearly link their 
behaviour and actions to these values. 

 The contribution of clergy and foundation governors ensures the school’s 
Christian character is secure and sustainable for the future. 

Areas to improve
 

 To embed a more strategic approach to aspects of diversity and difference to 
ensure that pupils are more able to understand and express what it means to 
live in a diverse world. 

 In order to further enhance the distinctiveness and effectiveness of Ryhall 
school its outstanding practice should be shared so as to contribute to the 
development of other church schools. 



19

The  school, through its distinctive Christian character, is outstanding at 
meeting the needs of all learners
 
Parents are clear that this is a church school. They regard the Christian ethos of 
welcome and acceptance as its most distinctive feature. It is the key to how the 
school successfully integrates pupils of all abilities and their families. Everyone is 
recognised as a unique human being made in the image of God. The potential in 
every pupil is acknowledged and teachers are continually developing their systems 
for tracking pupils’ progress so that each one can fulfil the school’s aim to ‘Look 
back with pride and move forward with confidence’. The achievement of pupils 
overall has been on an upward trend with disadvantaged pupils making progress at 
least as rapidly as their peers. The last 2 years’ data shows that they have made 
greater progress than their peers. This is because staff set aspirational targets for all 
pupils and they are supported on their journey to achieve them with the Christian 
values of endurance and perseverance as central. The wellbeing of pupils is a 
priority. Values of compassion and friendship are expressed through the work of the 
‘Jigsaw Club’ run by a teaching assistant. The club supports pupils with a range of 
needs. The local Methodist Outreach Worker provides a range of activities for pupils 
one lunchtime per week. He is involved in transition work with Year 6 pupils 
providing a link to the local secondary school where he also works. Year 6 pupils 
therefore talk with confidence about when they move up to secondary school 
because he will be there to support them. He helps them to remember that they take 
God with them when they leave Ryhall. Pupils enjoy school and there are few 
attendance issues. This is because they are supported in their learning by dedicated 
staff who provide care and support, reflecting the Christian values in all they do. 
Pupils speak positively about being in ‘a house’ where they can take on 
responsibility of organising events, acts of worship and share together in whole 
school themed days. These houses are named after the 4 gospel writers and pupils 
have spent time finding out about their saint. As a result of this, pupils are confident 
about helping one another and working together reminding themselves that they 
should try to live out life together following the example of their house saint. An 
attractive display in the school entrance has the title ‘Living the Fruits of the Spirit’ 
and this, along with a range of other displays, clearly marks out this school as a 
church school. This living out of faith, however, is not just limited to displays. It is 
truly lived out by everyone. Pupils are keen and confident to explain the importance 
of the school’s core values, particularly compassion and trust. They have a secure 
knowledge of Bible stories and do not hesitate to talk about why the values are 
distinctively Christian explaining that ‘if we trust in God then he will guide us in the 
right way’. The behaviour of all pupils is exemplary. They apply Christian values to 
the way they conduct themselves and visitors to the school comment on their 
courteous and compassionate attitudes to others. Religious education (RE) makes a 
strong contribution to the school’s Christian character. Lessons challenge pupils in 
how they think of the person of Jesus and his teaching and about how we judge 
others. They refer to specific Bible stories to explain why any kind of bullying and 
prejudice is wrong and this plays a key part in the harmonious relationships that are 
everywhere around the school. Consequently, there are no recorded incidents of 
bullying, since any friendship issues are addressed and supported before they 
develop. Opportunities are provided to explore big questions of faith and belief, 
diversity and difference. This means that pupils are articulate and able to provide 
reasoned points of view influenced by the work they have done in RE. The school 



20

takes seriously its commitment to ensure that all pupils have opportunity to explore 
and develop respect for diverse and different communities. Visits to places of 
worship alongside visitors from different cultures have been beneficial but as yet the 
provision is not sufficiently embedded to have a significant impact. Pupils’ spiritual, 
moral and social (SMS) development is excellent. Teachers and school leaders 
recognise it as ‘the core of what the school is about’. All areas of SMS are 
underpinned by Christian values. Approaches to encouraging moral behaviour, for 
example, are explicitly focussed on the teachings of Jesus. Pupils understand that 
living life in this way helps to make the world ‘the sort of place God wants it to be’. 
Lesson planning identifies which Christian values are being encouraged in the 
pupils learning. All extra-curricular school activities hold the values as core to their 
purpose too. Involvement in fund raising activities is proving transformational in 
pupils’ lives. Support for a local fundraising charity ‘Hope Against Cancer’ has 
helped pupils to respect their own bodies and to thank God that they are healthy. 

The impact of collective worship on the school community is outstanding 

There have been significant changes to worship over recent years that have been 
monitored and evaluated by leaders so that they understand the impact worship is 
having. They can therefore plan worship that is inspiring, challenging and 
transformational. Pupils appreciate school worship and enjoy the time of coming 
together ‘as family’. They are given opportunities to take on leadership of worship 
which means that they are confident about leading prayers or sharing in liturgy. 
Pupils know the central features of Anglican worship and that worship is about a 
response to God. One member of staff described collective worship as ‘sewing 
together everything about the school’. It is planned so that the school’s Christian 
values are explored and developed through the use of Bible stories. These stories 
are well chosen to make clear the significance of the person of Jesus and other key 
Christian concepts such as Trinity. Pupils talk about the way in which stories and 
teaching they receive in worship help them to think through the everyday issues 
they face. They understand that the teachings from the Bible are there to help them 
make choices and to live ‘as God wants us to live’. Pupil evaluation of an act of 
worship recorded that ‘St Matthew showed trust in Jesus to leave his job to be with 
him as a disciple and showed us that Jesus is better than money’. Prayer is a key 
part of worship but is also a natural part of the school day. Each class has reflection 
and prayer areas where pupils take time to pause and write or say a prayer. They 
know that prayer is a way of talking with God and sharing anything that troubles 
them. A Year 6 boy had placed a concern on the prayer wall so that he and others 
could pray about it. Pupils have learnt that they can frame their prayers by using key 
words represented by a finger on the hand. Consequently, they speak with clarity 
about different needs they can bring to God. A reflection room which was designed 
by the pupils and the Methodist Outreach Worker provides a place where pupils and 
staff can go when they need to pray. The room has been designed for multi-faith 
use and can therefore be used by all children across the school. Resources 
available in the room provide everyone with a calm, quiet space that means ‘we can 
talk and listen to God when we need to’. Worship is led by a range of leaders 
including the incumbent and the Methodist minister whose different approaches 
enable the school community to experience a breadth of worship styles. This 
supports their spiritual development and deepens the relationship between the 
churches and the school. The celebration of festivals takes place in the parish 



21

church and these times of worship are well supported by parents and members of 
the church giving pupils a strong sense of belonging to a faith community. Staff 
speak of the way in which worship in school has been transformational in their own 
spiritual journey, providing them with opportunities to explore Christian faith and 
belief. 
 
The effectiveness of the leadership and management of the school as a 
church school is outstanding 

The distinctive Christian character of the school is now well established. Since her 
appointment the headteacher has brought vision and a fresh perspective to the 
school as an excellent place of learning. The vision that the school should be 
‘enveloped in God’s love’ is promoted across the school community. She has given 
this distinctively Christian vision a new energy and urgency to ensure that even the 
most vulnerable of pupils are given the best chance of success. She is ably 
supported in this by committed foundation governors who visit the school regularly. 
They see the school in action and talk to pupils, staff and parents. These 
discussions no longer take a piecemeal approach but are used to rigorously 
evaluate individual aspects of the school’s Christian character so that clear links are 
made between its character and decisions made by governors. Governors are 
therefore clear about the next steps forward for the school. School leaders engage 
actively with PDET. The Trust speaks highly of the school and the approach leaders 
have taken to develop its distinctiveness in partnership with them. This means that 
the strength of the partnership has become a model for other schools considering 
joining PDET. The potential for Ryhall to share its outstanding practice is 
considerable as PDET continues to develop. Partnerships with the local churches 
are beneficial to all. The incumbent is described as a ‘constant presence’ in school 
and he is committed to the school being represented at meetings and services in the 
church. A welcome service for the headteacher was held there and she has 
presented to the PCC about the work of the school. Pupils speak of the relationship 
as a friendship saying, ‘it is good to know the people at the church are our friends’. 
The Methodist church holds a monthly service in the school which is well attended 
by pupils and their families. This has arisen from the developing partnership 
between the Minister and the school. The service has opened up Christian worship 
to families in an accessible way and parents cite this as an example of the way in 
which the school takes its partnerships with the local community seriously. Parents 
are enthusiastic in their support for the school and its Christian distinctiveness. This 
is because they know that the school is concerned about them as well as their 
children. They say that the school does not ‘push Christianity’ on anyone but makes 
it relevant and part of everyday life. One mother spoke of the way in which the 
school had transformed her child from being withdrawn and introverted into a 
confident and happy child who loves attending school. She is confident that this is a 
result of the ethos that pervades everything they do and are. The RE subject leader 
receives outstanding support from school leaders. Link governors and the 
Headteacher work with her to observe RE lessons and set targets for development 
of the subject. As a result, RE teaching is of a high standard and pupils speak of 
how their RE lessons support them in their understanding of the wider world. The 
school meets statutory requirements for RE and collective worship. The church 
school standards group, whose role is to monitor the work of the school as a church 
school, has had a significant impact on the rapid progress the school has made. 



22

They have ensured that the development points from the previous inspection have 
been fully met and their impact monitored. The school is well placed for sharing 
good practice with other church schools and moving forward confidently into the 
future. 

SIAMS report November 2016 Ryhall C of E Academy, Rutland PE9 4HR



23

Statutory Inspection of Anglican and Methodist Schools (SIAMS) Report 

Empingham Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School 

School Lane 
Empingham 
Rutland 
LE15 8PQ 

Previous SIAMS grade: Good 

Current inspection grade: Good
 
Diocese: Peterborough 
Local authority: Rutland 
Date of inspection: 9 March 2016 
Date of last inspection: March 2011 
School’s unique reference number: 120177 
Headteacher: Anne Platt 
Inspector’s name and number: Lizzie McWhirter 244 

School Context

Empingham Primary School is a small, rural school which is federated with 
neighbouring Great Casterton Church of England Primary School. There are good 
links with St Peter’s Church. Almost all of the 73 pupils are from a White British 
background. The proportion of pupils who have special educational needs is below 
average. There are a number of families who are serving in HM Armed Forces. A 
small number of pupils belong to the Plymouth Brethren. There have been significant 
staffing changes since the last inspection. The executive headteacher took up post in 
August 2015. 

The distinctiveness and effectiveness of Empingham as a Church of England 
school are good 

 This close-knit Christian family community produces confident, well-rounded 
children. 

 The quality of the pupils’ religious literacy is highly developed, well supported 
and recognised. 

 Strong leadership, with a dedicated staff team and good governance is rooted 
in the mutual and substantial partnership between church and school. 

Areas to improve 

 Deepen pupils’ understanding of Christianity as a worldwide faith and enable 
them to meet people of other faiths to enrich their learning and support their 
spiritual and cultural development. 

 Extend the experiences which pupils have to plan and lead collective worship
 



24

The school, through its distinctive Christian character, is good at meeting the 
needs of all learners 

This small, rural primary school holds the Christian values of hope, endurance, 
forgiveness and friendship at the heart of everything it does. It provides a nurturing 
learning environment where pupils are proud to belong. This is because the school is 
a welcoming, inclusive, happy family community, rooted in the Christian faith and the 
school’s Anglican tradition. At Empingham, the wellbeing of the whole community is 
of utmost importance. Consequently, relationships and behaviour are good. In 
addition, attendance is well above average and there have been no exclusions. The 
school attributes this to leading by example and living out the school’s chosen core 
Christian values, such as forgiveness. Children want to come to this school as every 
member of the community is valued as a child of God. Regular pupil progress 
meetings demonstrate the importance of each individual child. Pupils feel able to 
make a positive contribution to school life. Christian values enhance their 
understanding of their place in the world and their responsibility to others. Learning to 
learn values, such as resilience, complement the school’s Christian values. Pupils 
show respect for the community they belong to. Their understanding is enriched by 
visits to their parish church. They show good knowledge of St Peter, who is ‘the saint 
of Empingham Church. He was a disciple of Jesus and originally a fisherman. He 
chopped the guard’s ear off but Jesus healed it immediately’. Whilst pupils can name 
the Archbishop of Canterbury and know he is ’the principal leader of the Church of 
England’; they are less secure in their knowledge of the Ascension. This will have a 
focus as a continuing part of the Easter story. They enjoy RE. They ask important 
questions, such ‘Why don’t some people believe in God?’ and ‘Do humanists have 
different values?’ However, the school acknowledges that deepening pupils’ 
understanding of the worldwide Christian Church is an area for development. This 
includes awareness of how Anglicans worship in different countries to enrich their 
understanding of the worldwide Anglican family. The school has also correctly 
identified that pupils’ experiences of diversity of faith would be further enriched by 
meeting more people of faith and visiting their places of worship. 

The impact of collective worship on the school community is good 

Collective worship at Empingham involves and engages pupils and is making a real 
difference in their lives and in the lives of their parents. Good examples include 
children saying Evening Prayer at home. This is because worship is recognised as an 
important part of the school day. Prayer features strongly in school life. This includes 
the school prayer, Lord’s Prayer, lunch and home time prayers. In addition, prayer 
and reflection areas are well used in classrooms. The prayer tree in the entrance hall 
currently reflects values and Bible stories for Lent. The prayer tree in the hall includes 
prayers for the appropriate season of the church year. Adults, including parents, 
value the close links with the parish church. Pupils are growing in their understanding 
of the Trinity. They speak of how ‘God is three things, three sides, all good’. They 
explain God as Father, Son and Holy Spirit ‘just like you can be a daughter/son, 
sister/brother, niece/nephew’. Key festivals in the church year take place in St Peter’s 
Church, such as Harvest and the Christmas Carol Service. Whilst the benefice has 
been in an interregnum, without a rector, the school has been well supported by the 
Associate Minister. Good examples include helping the children to appreciate the rite 
of Christian baptism in church as well as leading worship in school fortnightly. He 



25

finds the children ‘so responsive’. Children whose parents serve in HM Armed Forces 
work closely with a learning mentor. They visited the parish church to see the war 
memorial and then planned and led worship for Remembrance-tide in school. In this 
way they are able to share how proud they are of their parents who serve their 
country. Small groups of children plan and lead worship. They want to be more 
involved, which the school recognises. 

The effectiveness of the leadership and management of the school as a church 
school is good
 
The Christian vision and dedication of the headteacher in conjunction with the staff 
and governors ensures the school’s distinctive Christian character is proudly 
proclaimed to the whole school community. The governors are all committed to 
ensuring that every person, whether adult or child, flourishes in this Christian 
community. Consequently, children succeed and achieve well. With a new 
headteacher in post, there is a renewed emphasis to move the school forward, in its 
own right; and with the school at Great Casterton, with its joint vision and strategic 
plan. Governors regularly focus on the distinctive Christian character of their church 
school in governing body meetings. All areas from the previous inspection have been 
addressed and there are clear priorities identified, going forward. The wellbeing of 
pupils is a priority and their voice is valued. The wellbeing of staff is equally well 
supported and governors ensure they receive relevant training for the roles and 
responsibilities they hold. Clergy as well as the Bishop’s Visitor are welcome and 
regular visitors to school. Links are developing with the Methodist Church in 
Stamford. Staff and governor expertise is shared across the two schools. Stable 
staffing now provides excellent role models in their dedication and commitment to this 
school, benefitting the children and their parents. This includes the subject leadership 
of RE. Hence RE and worship meet the statutory requirements. However, the school 
has correctly identified the development of the RE leader in her role of monitoring 
and evaluation, and the diocese are providing local support for this. The monitoring 
that the senior leadership team and governors have done of RE gives an accurate 
picture of the subject. Parents are full of praise in saying how this family school 
embodies a caring, nurturing environment, producing ‘confident, well rounded 
children’. Community links are very good. These include the school, church and 
village coming together for Remembrance Day and the Christmas and summer fairs. 
In addition, Empingham School welcomes new staff at the beginning of the year in St 
Peter’s Church.
 
SIAMS report March 2016 Empingham Church of England Voluntary Controlled 
Primary School, Rutland LE158PQ



26

Statutory Inspection of Anglican and Methodist Schools (SIAMS) Report

Great Casterton Church of England Voluntary Controlled Primary School

Pickworth Road
Great Casterton
Rutland
PE9 4AU

Previous SIAMS grade: Good

Current inspection grade: Good

Diocese: Peterborough
Local authority: Rutland
Date of inspection: 1 March 2016
Date of last inspection: March 2011
School’s unique reference number: 120185
Headteacher: Anne Platt
Inspector’s name and number: Lizzie McWhirter 244

School context

Great Casterton Primary School is a small, rural school which is federated with 
neighbouring Empingham Church of England Primary School. There are good links 
with St Peter and St Paul’s Church. Almost all of the 96 pupils are from a White 
British background. The proportion of pupils who have special educational needs is 
below average. There are a number of families who are serving in HM Armed 
Forces. A small number of pupils belong to the Plymouth Brethren. There have been 
significant staffing changes since the last inspection. The executive headteacher 
took up post in August 2015

The distinctiveness and effectiveness of Great Casterton as a Church of 
England school are good

 The level of pastoral care in this nurturing and inclusive Christian family 
community serving the children and their families.

 The dedication and Christian commitment of the headteacher, governors and 
staff ensures the school’s core Christian values are at the heart of school life.

 The positive attitudes of the children who love learning and achieve well within 
this supportive Christian environment.

 The partnership with the church and its vicar is instrumental in the worshipping 
life of this school.

Areas to improve

 Deepen pupils’ understanding of Christianity as a worldwide faith and enable them to 
meet people of other faiths to enrich their learning and support their spiritual and 
cultural development. 

 Extend the experiences which pupils have to plan and lead collective worship. 



27

The school, through its distinctive Christian character, is good at meeting the 
needs of all learners

This small, rural primary school holds the importance of a family at the heart of 
everything it does. It provides a very positive learning environment where pupils are 
proud to belong. This is because the school is an inclusive, happy and family 
community, rooted in the Christian faith and the school’s Anglican heritage. Pupils 
can explain the school’s newly chosen Christian values in their own words. They 
have a good understanding of right and wrong and behaviour is good because 
spiritual, moral, social and cultural development is strongly promoted. Pupils 
understand the importance of a family and want to come to school because of the 
Christian ethos. Consequently, attendance is good and there have been no 
exclusions. The Christian ethos of the school underpins the hard work of the 
dedicated staff to make provision for the children even better. Consequently, Key 
Stage 2 results last year were the highest Great Casterton had experienced. Pupil 
progress meetings are underpinned by the school’s Christian ethos as each child 
matters as a child of God. As a result, the large majority of children are making good 
progress. Pupils enjoy religious education [RE]. The RE day in November, based on 
the life and death of Jesus, was a very successful cross-curricular day. Pupils have a 
very good level of religious literacy and can explain the Christian narrative well. They 
speak of incarnation as ‘Jesus coming down from heaven as a human and he was 
not a ghost/spirit. He had flesh on his body’. They go on to explain salvation as 
‘when Jesus came down from heaven to die on the cross to save us from our sins’. 
Pupils say that whilst Class 2 studied Christians around the world, they would like 
their parish priest and others to help them know more about the bigger family to 
which they belong. However, the school acknowledges that deepening pupils’ 
understanding of the worldwide Christian Church is an area for development. This 
includes awareness of how Anglicans worship in different countries to enrich their 
understanding of the worldwide Anglican family. The school has also correctly 
identified that pupils’ experiences of diversity of faith would be further enriched by 
meeting more people of faith and visiting their places of worship.

The impact of collective worship on the school community is good 

Daily worship, based on Christian values and the church year, brings the whole 
school community together. It involves and engages pupils and makes a difference 
to the lives of adults, including parents. This is because worship is recognised and 
valued as an important part of the school day. It informs attitudes, relationships and 
behaviour. Each half term there is a focus on a Christian value, such as endurance, 
hope or forgiveness. Bible stories are effectively used as exemplars for each 
Christian value. For example, the story of David and Goliath encourages children to 
grow in their self-esteem. They speak of ‘David as small and Goliath as armoured 
and tall. David believed in himself’. One of the strengths of this school is the parish 
priest who is instrumental in the worshipping life of this school. She leads worship 
every week in school. Pupils say, ’she talks about our values and links it with a Bible 
story’. For pupils, she is a welcome and regular visitor. Pupils speak of important 
milestones, such as the Leavers’ Service, which takes place in church. They also 
enjoyed sharing lunch and prayers with pupils from Thorpe Wood School at their 



28

school when visiting the mosque near their school in Peterborough. Pupils relate the 
results of forgiveness as moving on, not looking at the past, looking at the present 
and the future. They also speak of Jesus and the hope he brings. Pupils happily 
make the sign of the cross when addressing The Holy Trinity and regularly sing a 
hymn of praise The Trinity in their trinity song. They say, ’when Jesus rises from the 
dead, his spirit spreads around everyone and is in everyone’. They agree that 
‘praying builds your confidence’. The school council plan and lead worship by 
themselves each term. However, they comment, ‘other children should do that’ and 
would like to plan and lead worship more frequently, which the school recognises. 
Children whose parents serve in HM Armed Forces work closely with a learning 
mentor. They visited the parish church to see the war memorial and then planned 
and led worship in school at Remembrance-tide. They are able to show how proud 
they are of their parents who serve their country. 

The effectiveness of the leadership and management of the school as a church 
school is good

Governors hold dear to their mission statement in allowing each child to grow as an 
individual with the mutual respect offered in a Church of England school. The 
Christian vision and dedication of the headteacher in conjunction with the staff and 
governors ensures the school’s distinctive Christian character is proudly proclaimed 
to the whole school community. The governors are all committed to ensuring that 
every person, whether adult or child, flourishes in this Christian community. 
Consequently, children succeed and achieve well. With a new headteacher in post, 
there is a renewed emphasis to move the school forward, in its own right; and with 
the school at Empingham, with its joint vision and strategic plan. Governors regularly 
focus on the distinctive Christian character of their church school in governing body 
meetings. All areas from the previous inspection have been addressed and there are 
clear priorities identified, going forward. The wellbeing of pupils is a priority and their 
voice is valued. The wellbeing of staff is equally well supported and governors 
ensure they receive relevant diocesan training for the roles and responsibilities they 
hold. Clergy as well as the Bishop’s Visitor are welcome and regular visitors to 
school. Links are developing with the local Methodist Church. Staff and governor 
expertise is shared across the two schools. Stable staffing now provides excellent 
role models in their dedication and commitment to this school, benefitting pupils and 
parents. Succession planning for RE means that a new leader is being developed in 
her role. However, the school has correctly identified that the development of the RE 
leader in her role of monitoring and evaluation needs development and the diocese 
are providing local support for this. The senior leadership team and governors are 
monitoring RE to give an accurate picture of this key subject. They are encouraged 
by monitoring in RE, noting that pupils’ recall of the life of Jesus could be a resource 
they could draw on in future life. Hence RE and worship meet the statutory 
requirements. Parents are full of praise for this family school. They are kept well 
informed by newsletters which celebrate the values in a biblical context. Good 
examples include endurance, which helps them to become life-long learners. Links 
with parents are strengthened through ‘chance to share’ days when parents can 
spend time with their children in school, reading books together. Community links are 
good. These include the school, church and village coming together for Grounds 
Day, Remembrance Day and the summer fair.



29

SIAMS report March 2016 Great Casterton Church of England Voluntary Controlled 
Primary School, Rutland PE9 4AU



30

Statutory Inspection of Anglican and Methodist Schools (SIAMS) Report

Exton and Greetham Church of England 
Voluntary Controlled Primary School 

Garden Road 
Exton 
Rutland 
LE15 8AY 

Current SIAMS inspection grade Good 
Diocese Peterborough 
Previous SIAMS inspection grade: Good 
Local authority Rutland 
Date of inspection 14 September 2016 
Date of last inspection September 2011 
School’s unique reference number 120178 
Headteacher Megan Davis 
Inspector’s name and number Lizzie McWhirter244 

School Context 

Exton and Greetham is a small rural primary school, serving village communities in 
Rutland. A significant number of its 48 pupils come from outside the catchment area 
and almost all pupils are from a White British background. There are a number of 
pupils whose parents serve in HM Armed Forces. In addition, there are a small 
number of pupils from the circus/fairground travelling community whose families are 
very committed to the school. The proportion of pupils who have special educational 
needs is below average. There have been recent staffing changes. The headteacher 
has been in post for two years. 

The distinctiveness and effectiveness of Exton and Greetham as a Church of 
England school are good 

 The family feel of this small village school thrives on its Christian approach to 
learning, its focus on Jesus’ teaching and the partnership with its parish and 
church community. This is led by a visionary and dedicated headteacher, thus 
ensuring everyone in the community feels nurtured and treasured. 

 Pupils positively enjoy their learning and value their friendships and teachers 
within this accepting Christian community where every child matters to God and 
the school community. As a result, they become confident, honest and non- 
judgemental individuals. 

 The importance placed on collective worship, prayer and reflection is enabling 
pupils to develop a personal spirituality for everyday life. 

Areas to improve 

 Embed the governors’ systematic monitoring of collective worship and 
religious education [RE]. This is to give them an accurate understanding 
about the effectiveness and impact of these key aspects of Christian 
distinctiveness in order to develop effective strategies to support ongoing 
improvement. 



31

 Enrich the programme of visits and visitors to enable pupils to meet people of 
faiths other than Christianity more frequently to enhance their learning and 
support their spiritual and cultural development. 

 Deepen pupils’ knowledge of key Christian beliefs to extend their 
understanding of the school’s Anglican heritage and Christianity as a 
worldwide faith.

The school, through its distinctive Christian character, is good at meeting the 
needs of all learners 

Central to this small rural primary school is a strong commitment to value all the 
children and families it serves. The school’s Christian values are linked to its vision 
and mission statement to ‘Explore and Grow’, which is underpinned by the importance 
placed on developing the children spiritually as well as educationally, morally and 
culturally. This is truly at the heart of the school’s positive learning environment where 
pupils value their friends and teachers. Attendance is good, although there is some 
mobility. Family requests for absence are always treated with compassion. These 
include those from HM Armed Forces as well as the travelling community, who all feel 
accepted here. Consequently, relationships are very good. There have been no 
exclusions as there is a strong behaviour and safeguarding policy as well as a gender 
equality policy, built around Christian teaching. These provide a secure, collaborative 
and purposeful learning culture where all pupils and staff are valued, listened to and 
challenged to be the best they can be. In practice this enables all to flourish within a 
spirit of honesty and forgiveness. This is because the school is an inclusive, happy 
and family community, as the school’s vision states, ’living with and having an 
understanding of, Christian values and faith’. Everyone understands the importance of, 
and lives out, its chosen core values of love, trust, honesty, friendship, happiness, 
forgiveness and respect. Targeted support for vulnerable children is resulting in good 
progress, with all children making good progress over time, given their starting points. 
This is because the school’s leaders have worked hard over the last two years, driven 
by the school’s Christian ethos valuing every individual. Whilst attainment on entry 
tends to be below average and varies due to the small cohorts and high mobility, 
results have significantly improved. Consequently, results for Key Stage 2 in 2015 
improved with the vast majority of children achieving Level 4 and above for reading, 
mathematics and writing. In 2016 Key Stage 2 results showed most children reached 
age related expectations, whilst all pupils made good progress over time. A good 
example of the support provided by the school is the relationship the school business 
manager has built up with less confident parents in reading newsletters. Class 
teachers enable parents to support their children with reading. Whatever their 
background, children are given confidence to succeed. This includes positive 
experiences of musical and sporting activities, such as singing in the choir or learning 
to sail on Rutland Water. Consequently, pupils ‘explore and grow’ as honest, non- 
judgemental individuals, respectful of one another. RE makes a good contribution to 
the school’s Christian character and to pupils’ spiritual and moral development. It 
enables all children to build upon the firm foundation of Jesus’ teaching in the Bible. 
RE helps pupils to engage with the text, and also to explore what it means to be a 
person of faith. Pupils regularly read their children’s Bibles, a gift to every pupil from 
the church community. Pupils say they enjoy their RE and ‘learning more and more 
about God’. RE encourages pupils to think deeply and reflect on personal Christian 
values and the beliefs of others. Consequently, one pupil was awarded the Bishop’s 



32

trophy as the philosopher of the year for asking insightful questions. Whilst pupils do 
visit local faith communities, they are keen to meet more people of faith and their 
places of worship. The school correctly identifies this as an area for development to 
nurture pupils’ spiritual and cultural awareness in this non-ethnically diverse area of 
Rutland. Whilst pupils can relate the Christmas and Easter narrative well, they are less 
secure in their knowledge of Ascension-tide, Pentecost and the saints to whom their 
parish churches are dedicated. The school acknowledges the need to deepen pupils’ 
knowledge of key Christian beliefs in order to support their religious literacy as well as 
their understanding of Christianity’s global dimension. 

The impact of collective worship on the school community is good

Daily collective worship makes a good contribution to the spiritual development of 
pupils and adults alike. This is supported by the links with the parish church which the 
school community enjoys, enriching their experience of worship. Clergy and church 
members are welcome and regular visitors to school, leading weekly worship. Pupils 
are now much more involved and are developing their roles in worship, with some 
pupils becoming active members of the newly established faith council. This was a 
direct result of the pupils working closely with a governor, who is also a licensed lay 
reader, to set up prayer spaces in school. Pupils say they enjoy recording their 
thoughts on worship in the newly revised evaluation logs in ‘the holy book’. These 
provide a good opportunity for pupil voice and are used by the school alongside 
governors’ evaluations to ensure worship is continually evolving, and involving and 
engaging the whole community. Pupils value the importance of prayer, saying this 
reminds them that ‘God and Jesus are with us the whole time’ and ‘God is always 
around if you need him’. In addition, they lead prayers which they have written 
themselves as an important part of daily worship. This helps them to become 
independent worshippers and makes a good contribution to their spiritual 
development. Pupils say they would like to lead worship more frequently, as well as 
help develop an outdoor prayer space, which concurs with the school’s aim. One of 
the features of worship is the singing, which is age-appropriate and has a focus on the 
meaning of words, such as the school prayer song at the start of worship. This 
supports pupils’ spiritual development well. Pupils are growing in their understanding 
of the Holy Trinity, and of God being in three forms. They cite Jesus as ’the one who 
comes down’ and God as ‘no one has seen him. He made the world’. They use the 
symbolism of an apple’s pips to speak of ‘Jesus, inside us, growing’ and of the Holy 
Spirit, who ‘is the seeds that help us grow’. This analogy of growing stems from the 
school‘s mission statement to ‘Explore and Grow’ within a Christian environment. 
Consequently, through worship and times of reflection, using the prayer space, pupils 
are enabled to grow in their own spiritual journeys. Parents, staff and governors too 
value times of worship. As a result, staff speak of ‘everyone pulling together’ and how 
they feel ‘happier and calmer’. Parents speak highly of Harvest and Christingle 
services bringing the whole community together. 

The effectiveness of the leadership and management of the school as a church 
school is good 

The dedicated headteacher has worked extremely hard in a relatively short space of 
time to ensure this school’s Christian character continues to permeate all school life. 
Her strong Christian faith guides the way she leads the school and she is supported by 



33

staff and governors, many of whom are new in post. Parents embrace the inclusivity of 
this small rural school and welcome the fact that ‘all walks of life have such a good 
grounding here’. Indeed, combined with wrap-around care, provided from September 
2014, the school prides itself on working closely with its parents, As a result, parents 
are enabled to support their children’s learning as effectively as possible. Christian 
values which embrace difference underpin the school’s policy and practice, ensuring 
the wellbeing of all. Consequently, children enjoy their learning and roles of 
responsibility and achieve well over time, given the mobility of some families. This is 
because the school’s leaders have improved standards and inspired self-worth in 
children, resulting in all groups of children making progress. Staff praise the 
‘community spirit and links’, including staff who work part time who too feel ‘nurtured 
and treasured’. Events such as the community lunches held in school also help to 
bring everyone together. Governors ensure that Christian values and prayer inform 
their work and that RE and worship meet statutory requirements. The governors’ vision 
for everything they do is ‘Biblically rooted, ensuring children are given a rock on which 
to build as a firm foundation for life’. Jesus’ teaching in the Bible is central to their 
strategic planning, to enable every child to encounter Jesus through the worshipping 
life of the school. Consequently, the governors’ personal faith and honest and 
prayerful conviction does not just have a focus on results and strategic ongoing 
improvement, but is for ‘all children to become rounded individuals’. Foundation 
governors see themselves as ‘people of God’ engaging in all aspects of school life, 
where Christian values underpin learners’ achievement, building hope for the future. A 
good example of the chaplaincy work of the parish is the Year 6 transition workshops, 
which focus on Moses and The Exodus, supporting pupils on their onward journey. 
Pupils value such times, speaking highly of how they learn from their rector the 
importance of listening to Jesus through prayer and Bible stories. Areas from the 
previous inspection have been addressed. Governors acknowledge the need to invest 
in training and support for the new RE subject leader as well as the systematic 
monitoring of collective worship and RE to support ongoing improvement. This has 
begun for the RE subject leader who is new in post. Staff and governors value the 
support they receive from the diocese.  This includes the pastoral work of their 
Bishop’s visitor as well as courses on church school leadership. Consequently, this 
informs the strategic development plans for the future. In this family school, parents 
speak highly of the staff and especially of the headteacher. Above all, they greatly 
value that everyone knows each other and the children pray for those in need. 

SIAMS report September 2016 Exton and Greetham VC Primary School, Exton, Rutland 
LE15 8AY



34

English Martyrs’ Catholic Voluntary Academy 
Willow Crescent, Oakham, 
Rutland, LE15 6EH

School URN: 139611 
Inspection Date: 6 February 2017 
Inspectors: Dr Eilis Field and Mrs Siobhan Minford 

Previous Inspection Good 2
Overall Effectiveness

This Inspection Good 2

Catholic Life: Outstanding 1

Collective Worship Good 2

Religious Education Good 2

SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS FOR PARENTS AND PUPILS

English Martyrs’ Catholic Voluntary Academy is a good catholic school

 English Martyrs’ is a good Catholic school. Its caring, welcoming atmosphere 
reflects the living out of the school’s Mission Statement and is reflected in the 
good relationships at all levels of school life.   A member of staff said, ‘I love 
coming to work here’, and a child stated, ‘It is a really loving school’.

 The exemplary behaviour of pupils reflects the efficacy of the school’s 
behaviour policy which is founded on Gospel values and the teachings of the 
Catholic Church.

 The school is well led and managed by the executive headteacher, head 
of school, subject leader for Religious Education and a strong governing 
body. They rightly value and closely guard the strong Catholic identity of 
the school.  They are strategic in ensuring that this is sustained as the 
school meets new challenges including welcoming a higher proportion of 
pupils who are of faith backgrounds other than Catholic.

 The strong partnership, between the school and parish benefits and is 
highly valued by the whole community.   The parish priest is a regular and 
welcome visitor to the school.   The close links are evidenced in the school 
and parish newsletters and in the school displays at Church.



35

FULL REPORT 

INFORMATION ABOUT THE SCHOOL 

 English Martyrs’ is a smaller than average primary school. Since its last inspection 
in November 2011, the number on roll has increased from 101 to 128. 

 The school serves the parishes of St Joseph's, Rutland and St Thomas of 
Canterbury, Exton. 

 The school is federated with St Augustine’s Stamford and is part of the St Gilbert 
of Sempringham Catholic Academy Trust along with Our Lady of Good Counsel 
Sleaford, Our Lady of Lincoln in Lincoln, St Hugh’s Lincoln and St Peter & St Paul 
Lincoln. 

 48% of its pupils are baptised Catholic, 51.5% are from other Christian 
denominations and 7% are from a faith background other than Christian. 

 15% of pupils have special educational needs and/or a disability (SEND) at school 
support stage, none of whom have an education, health care plan (EHCP). 

 12% of pupils are eligible for the Pupil Premium. 
 At the end of Key Stage 2, the vast majority of pupils transfer to Catmose 

College, Oakham. Others transfer to Oakham School, Casterton Business & 
Enterprise College, Stamford School or Uppingham Community College. The 
nearest Catholic secondary school is 20 miles away. 

WHAT DOES THE SCHOOL NEED TO DO TO IMPROVE FURTHER? 

 Catholic Life 
 The school now needs to further develop its strategies to facilitate pupils 

playing a genuine role in the decision-making processes and the development 
of the Catholic Life of the school. 

 Collective Worship 
 Further develop pupil skills in preparing for Collective Worship so that they 

can play a more prominent role and work independently. 
 Further develop the robustness of monitoring of Collective Worship so that it 

clearly identifies areas for improvement and set review dates to ensure that 
these are acted upon. 

 Religious Education 
 Develop teachers’ skills in questioning and responding to pupils’ answers. 
 Develop more effective use of ‘driver words’ in marking and feedback. 
 Improve the pace of lessons by ensuring time is not wasted revising work 

pupils have already covered. 
 Develop the robustness of monitoring of Religious Education so that it clearly 

identifies areas for improvement and set review dates to ensure that these are 
acted upon. 

 Ensure expectations are clear and are consistently applied in respect of the 
number of extended pieces of writing, use of worksheets and marking and 
feedback in books. 



36

CATHOLIC LIFE

The Quality of the Catholic Life of the School 1

 The extent to which pupils contribute to and benefit from the 1
Catholic Life of the school

 The quality of provision for the Catholic Life of the school 1

 How well leaders and managers promote, monitor and 1
evaluate the provision for the Catholic Life of the school

The extent to which pupils contribute to and benefit from the Catholic Life of the 
school - outstanding 

 The school’s behaviour policy, firmly rooted in Gospel values, results in 
exemplary behaviour throughout the school and the living out of the school 
Mission Statement, ‘We follow as a family in the footsteps of Jesus’. 

 There is strong sense of belonging within the school. Staff and pupils described 
the school as, ‘like a family’. The genuine care was evident in many of the 
responses such as, ‘I am very happy at this school. Everyone is kind to one 
another’ and ‘I love coming to work each day’. 

 Parents are very positive about the school and all feel welcome. One parent, who 
had moved her child from another local school spoke enthusiastically about the 
level of care her child receives from English Martyrs’. 

 Pupils are developing greater ownership of developing the Catholic Life of the 
school. The pupil chaplaincy team, ‘Little Lights’ are good role models and play a 
key role in promoting the school’s Catholic ethos. They train prayer leaders and 
run a lunch time club for younger children to fully involve them in the Catholic Life 
of the school. 

 Catholic values are reflected in the ways that the pupils reach out to others. They 
fundraise for a number of charities, in particular for their adopted charity, the 
‘Malawi Project’. All children are welcomed into the school and children from 
other faiths other than Catholic perceive themselves to be valued members of the 
community. 

 The school now needs to further develop its strategies to facilitate pupils playing 
a genuine role in the decision-making processes and the development of the 
Catholic Life of the school. 



37

The quality of provision for the Catholic Life of the school - outstanding 

 pupils designed a logo to support the school’s Mission Statement which is on the 
cover of all Religious Education books, policies and letterheads. 

 There is a strong, caring atmosphere throughout the school; staff and pupils feel 
valued and know that they can turn to one another for support. 

 The robust pastoral systems in place ensure that all pupils, including the most 
vulnerable, are well provided for. Recently, the school has been approached to 
take a vulnerable family based on the strength of their pastoral care, which is 
recognised in the local community. 

 Staff, including those from faith backgrounds other than Catholic, value the 
support offered by the school and its caring Catholic ethos. 

 The school has recently adopted a ‘Journey in Love’ - a scheme of work which 
assists in the delivery of Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and the policy is 
currently being revised according to diocesan guidelines. 

 The Catholic ethos is reflected in the bright and welcoming learning environment 
which celebrates pupil achievements and the values of the school. Pupils enjoy 
adding their ‘heart prayers’ to ‘The Heart that Sees’ tree displayed in the foyer. 

How well leaders and managers promote, monitor and evaluate the provision for 
the Catholic Life of the school – outstanding 

 The executive headteacher, head of school and subject leader for Religious 
Education ensure that the Catholic Life of the school remains central to all that 
they do both within the school and in the wider community. In keeping with the 
Church’s understanding of parents as ‘the first and foremost educators of their 
children’, the school works very hard to engage all parents from all backgrounds 
and opinions. A parents’ forum meets termly to discuss the ethos and vision of 
the school. 

 Governors have a very good understanding of the Catholic Life of the school and 
robustly hold the school to account regarding its Catholic Life. The linked 
governor for Catholic Life has benefitted from training opportunities offered by the 
Diocese. 

 The link governor for Religious Education is proactive in developing a strategic 
approach to ensuring that the Catholic ethos is sustained in light of the 
anticipated increase in the number of children from other faith backgrounds. 

 The school is well supported by the parish priest who is a regular and welcome 
visitor. He has visited classes to talk to them about his vocation and further visits 
around vocation are planned. The school and parish regularly support one 
another in social and fundraising activities. 



38

 Leaders have established robust induction systems for new staff so that all staff, 
including those from faith backgrounds other than Catholic are clear about the 
expectations of a Catholic school and are well supported in meeting them. 

 The geographical location of the school presents a challenge for staff 
participating in Diocesan training, nevertheless, leaders have been proactive in 
seeking advice and guidance of the Diocesan Adviser for Religious Education. 

COLLECTIVE WORSHIP

The Quality of Collective Worship 2

 How well pupils respond to and participate in the school’s 2
Collective Worship

 The quality of provision for the Collective Worship 2

 How well leaders and managers promote, monitor and evaluate 2
the provision for Collective Worship

How well pupils respond to and participate in the school’s Collective Worship - 
good 

 Since the last inspection, under the guidance of the subject leader for Religious 
Education, the level of pupil involvement has improved significantly and reflects 
the revised expectations for a ‘good’ grading. 

 Pupils show great reverence and respect throughout Acts of Worship and are 
able to quietly reflect during prayerful activities. 

 Pupils’ knowledge of the Church’s liturgical year is very good. They are confident 
in reciting traditional prayers and know the correct responses, for example at the 
beginning and end of a reading from the Gospel. 

 Pupils are able to apply their knowledge of the Church’s liturgical year to create 
appropriate focal points for assemblies and other Acts of Worship. 

 Pupils are gaining confidence in preparing class worship and supporting adults in 
preparing whole school Acts of Worship. 

 The school recognises the need to further develop pupils’ skills in preparing for 
Collective Worship so that they can play a more prominent role and work 
independently. 



39

The quality of provision for Collective Worship - good 

 Prayer is an integral part of school life and is woven into the school day. Morning 
briefing, staff and governors’ meetings all begin with prayer and staff value this 
opportunity to reflect and seek guidance. 

 Pupils’ enjoyment of a wide variety of liturgy and prayer has been greatly 
enhanced by the addition of the new chapel. 

 Acts of Worship are well resourced. The school has invested in new liturgy boxes 
which are also used as prayer tables and a wide range of musical resources 
including those of John Burland. 

 Parents and parishioners value the invitation to attend and take part in Collective 
Worship and liturgies and speak very positively about their experience. 

 Mass is celebrated each month in school and this is well supported by parents 
and parishioners. 

How well leaders and managers promote, monitor and evaluate the provision for 
Collective Worship - good 

 The executive headteacher, head of school and the subject leader for Religious 
Education are well trained and highly experienced in delivering good quality 
Collective Worship and use this to disseminate good practice across the school. 

 The parish priest uses the Mass as an opportunity to model good practice and 
involve pupils. The success of this approach has resulted in an increase in the 
number of pupils serving at Sunday Mass. 

 The subject leader for Religious Education has been diligent in developing 
increasingly robust systems for monitoring the quality of Collective Worship 
throughout the school. 

 The school now needs to give pupils a greater role in independently planning 
and leading Acts of Worship. 

 The link governor, who has benefited from diocesan training, provides a strong 
lead and has an accurate view of the quality of Collective Worship across the 
school. 

 The school now needs to further develop the robustness of monitoring of 
Collective Worship so that it clearly identifies areas for improvement and set 
review dates to ensure that these are acted upon. 



40

RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

The Quality of Religious Education 2

 How well pupils achieve and enjoy their learning in Religious 2
Education

 The quality of teaching and assessment in Religious Education 2

 How well leaders and managers promote, monitor and evaluate 2
the provision of Religious Education

How well pupils achieve and enjoy their learning in Religious Education – good 

 Caution needs to be applied when analysing data due to the small cohorts within 
the school. (3 disadvantaged pupils, worth 16%, account for the dip in attainment 
for this year). Overall, pupils make good progress in Religious Education relative 
to their starting points. 

 Pupils enjoy Religious Education and engage enthusiastically with the tasks set. 

 Pupils’ knowledge of Bible stories and traditions of the Church is very good; 
pupils are demonstrably ‘religiously literate’. 

 Pupils take a pride in their work and respond positively to teacher feedback. 

 Pupils’ oral responses do not always reflect the level of understanding they are 
capable of. 

 Pupil learning outcomes in their Religious Education books do not always reflect 
their ability. 

The quality of teaching and assessment in Religious Education – good 

 Teachers conscientiously plan and mark for Religious Education. 

 Teachers and pupils are developing an awareness of ‘driver words’ and are 
beginning to apply them to their assessment of Religious Education. 

 Teachers are becoming more effective in differentiating tasks to meet the needs 
of the pupils



41

The school now needs to extend pupils’ depth of understanding and accelerate 
their rate of progress by: 

 Developing teachers’ skills in questioning and responding to pupils’ answers. 

 Using ‘driver words’ in marking and feedback to effectively move learning on. 

 Improving the pace of lessons by ensuring time is not wasted revising work 
pupils have already mastered. 

The extent to which leaders and managers promote, monitor and evaluate the 
provision for Religious Education – good 

 Leaders ensure that all classes meet the episcopal requirement to devote at least 
10% of curriculum time to Religious Education. 

 Leaders regularly monitor and evaluate the provision for Religious Education 
through carefully planned lesson observations, learning walks and work scrutiny. 

 Leaders and managers support new staff in planning and delivering lessons 
using the Come and See programme. 

The school now needs to: 

 Develop the robustness of monitoring of Religious Education so that it clearly 
identifies areas for improvement and set review dates to ensure that these are 
acted upon. 

 Ensure expectations are clear and are consistently applied in respect of the 
number of extended pieces of writing, use of worksheets and marking and 
feedback in books. 

School Name English Martyrs’ Catholic Voluntary 
Academy 

Unique Reference Number 139611 

Local Authority Rutland 

The inspection of this school was carried out on behalf of the Bishop of Nottingham under 
Canon 806 of Canon Law in accordance with the Evaluation Schedule for diocesan 
canonical inspections in the Diocese of Nottingham. The inspection reviews and 
evaluates how effective the school is in providing Catholic education. The process begins 
with the school’s own self-evaluation and the inspection schedule is in line with the 
criteria set by the National Board of Religious Inspectors and Advisers (NBRIA).
 
During the inspection, the inspectors jointly observed 5 Religious Education lessons and 
2 Acts of Collective Worship.
 



42

Meetings were held with the executive headteacher, the head of school, the subject 
leader for Religious Education, two governors, the parish priests and an additional priest 
serving in the parish. Discussions were also held with pupils and parents. 
The inspectors scrutinised a range of documents including reports of the governing body, 
action plans, the school development plan, monitoring forms, assessment data and 
tracking and parental response forms. Inspectors also examined the work in pupils’ 
Religious Education books. 

Chair of Governors: Mrs Sarah Archer 

Executive Headteacher: Mrs Patricia Mason 

Head of School: Mrs Alison Chambers 

Date of Previous School 
Inspection: 

2 November 2011 

Telephone Number: 01572 722400 

Email Address: achambers@englishmartyrs.rutland.sch.uk 

WHAT INSPECTION JUDGEMENTS MEAN

Within the report, the following grade are used:

Grade 1 Outstanding

Grade 2 Good

Grade 3 Requires Improvement

Grade 4 Inadequate

In the context of the whole school, the overall effectiveness grades have the 
following meaning: 

Grade 1     Outstanding       The school is a highly effective Catholic 
School.  Pupils’ needs are exceptionally 
well met

Grade 2     Good The school is an effective Catholic school.  
Pupils’ needs are met well.

Grade 3     Required Improvement The school is not yet a good Catholic 
School, it is not inadequate however, and 
there are aspects that require 
improvement.  There will be a monitoring 
visit within the next 12 months and the 
school will be re-inspected within 3 years.



43

Grade 4    Inadequate There are features in need of urgent and 
immediate attention.  The school is not 
meeting the basis minimum requirement for 
adequacy as a Catholic school.  The school 
will receive an annual monitoring visit and 
will be re-inspected within 3 years 

NRCDES Diocesan Canonical Inspection Report



44

APPENDIX D

Key Stage 4 Results 2016 (Amended Date, February 2017) – Catmose College

Key Stage 4 Results 2016 (Amended Data, February 2017)

Subject:  Religious 
Studies (4610) – 
Exam:  GCSE Full 
Course (310)

Gender Student Count A*-A % A*-C % A*-G % Average 
Grade

All 45 68.9 100 100
Female 29 72.4 100 100

Catmose College

Male 16 62.5 100 100
All 21 47.6 95.2 100  A-
Female 17 47.1 94.1 100  A-

Casterton College 
Rutland

Male 4 50 100 100   A*-
All 27 18.5 81.5 100 C
Female 19 26.3 89.5 100 C

Uppingham 
Community College

Male 8 0 62.5 100 C
All 252,027 29.8 71.7 97.8
Female 135,122 34.6 77 98.6

National 
Comparator (State 
Funded) Male 116,905 19.6 62.8 96.7

Subject:  Religious 
Studies (4610) – 
Exam:  GCSE Short 
Course (320)

Gender Student Count A*-A % A*-C % A*-G % Average 
Grade

All 121 24 64.5 95.9 C
Female 53 32.1 77.4 100 B

Casterton College 
Rutland

Male 68 17.6 54.5 92.6   D+
All 22 45.5 90.9 100 B
Female 10 40 90 100   C+

Uppingham 
Community College

Male 12 50 91.7 100   C+

Note:  All data as reported by the National Consortium for Examination Results 
(NCER).  The Philosophy and Ethics Course at Catmose College is reported as 
Religious Studies in the NCER data release.

Full course Gender A*-A % A*-C % A*-G % Student 
Count

Summary for Religious Studies B:  
Philosophy and Ethics All 68.9 100 100 45

Summary for Religious Studies B:  
Philosophy and Ethics Female 72.4 100 100 29

Summary for Religious Studies B:  
Philosophy and Ethics Male 62.5 100 100 16



Report No: 99/2017
PUBLIC REPORT

SCRUTINY PANEL
4 May 2017

OFSTED NEXT STEPS ACTION PLAN
Report of the Director for People

Strategic Aim: Safeguarding

Exempt Information No

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible:

Mr R Foster, Portfolio Holder for  Children and Young 
People (Safeguarding)

Contact Officer(s): Rebecca Wilshire, Head of Children’s 
Social Care

01572 758258
rwilshire@rutland.gov.uk

Ward Councillors All

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Panel:

1. Note the Next Steps Action plan for ‘getting to good’ and comment on its suitability for 
addressing the Ofsted inspection recommendations and supporting Rutland County Council to 
get to good.

2. Consider how the panel may provide future oversight and scrutiny of the plan’s 
delivery.

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 Following an inspection of Rutland’s children’s services by Ofsted, Rutland County 
Council is required to produce and submit an action plan to Ofsted.

1.2 The following report provides panel with an opportunity to review this Ofsted 
inspection action plan. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 Rutland’s children’s services were inspected by Ofsted under the Single Inspection 
Framework from 15th November to 8th December 2016.

2.2 In a final report published (13th February 2017) Ofsted noted a number of 
strengths within the service, some of which were as follows:

a) There were no children in Rutland who were considered to be at 
immediate risk of harm

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS


b) Staff act quickly to keep children safe when people tell them that they are 
worried about a child

c) When children and families have emerging problems, Rutland’s early help 
services provide a wide range of responsive interventions, preventing 
some families from needing more formal, statutory involvement with 
children’s social care

d) The early help service uses positive ways of working with families to 
intervene and support children effectively 

e) Social workers know about children’s lives and families get the right help 
and support when they are having difficulties

f) Social workers, teachers, police officers, foster carers and others work well 
together to keep children safe if they are at risk of sexual exploitation

g) The right decisions are made by social workers when children cannot live 
at home

h) Social workers place children with people who can look after them well 
and help them to do well in education and enjoy hobbies.

i) When children can no longer live at home, social workers work hard to find 
the right families

j) Social workers and other professionals work well together to look at plans 
to help improve children’s lives

k) Services for children who leave care in Rutland was considered ‘Good’
l) Young people leaving care receive a good service from staff who know 

them well
m) Staff keep in touch and support care leavers to live independently, stay in 

education or find a job. They also help them to keep healthy and find 
somewhere to live where they feel safe

n) Managers and Council leaders are determined to employ the ‘right’ staff to 
provide good services and new social workers and managers are making 
improvements

o) Managers and leaders want to improve services further 
2.3 However Ofsted concluded that a number of improvements were required before 

children’s services in Rutland could be rated as ‘Good’.  The Ofsted report outlined 
17 recommendations, which are as follows:

a) Ensure that senior leaders have access to comprehensive, high-quality 
performance management information in order to understand frontline 
practice and fully hold senior managers to account. 

b) Ensure that all staff receive regular good-quality supervision, with an 
appropriate balance of critical challenge, case direction and opportunities 
for reflection. 

c) Ensure that assessments and plans actively consider all risks to children, 
including emerging and new risks as circumstances for children change. 
Improve social workers’ understanding of neglect and the impact on 
children. 



d) Improve the quality of assessments and plans across the service by 
ensuring that they are informed by children’s wishes and feelings, involve 
the views of men and fathers, consider diversity and historical factors, 
which are specific to individual children’s needs, and have explicit 
outcome-based actions. 

e) Ensure that personal education plans are completed for all children looked 
after, and that they include a thorough assessment of needs and set 
targets for improvement. 

f) Review and strengthen management and panel oversight of the fostering 
service to ensure that there is effective challenge of the quality of practice. 
In particular, ensure that foster carer assessments and investigations of 
allegations and concerns are thorough and robust, contain all relevant 
information and are completed in a timely way. 

g) Ensure that the corporate parenting board is effective in driving 
improvements and monitoring outcomes for children looked after and care 
leavers. Increase opportunities for children looked after and care leavers 
to participate in decision-making and service development and for their 
achievements to be celebrated. 

h) Improve social work practice by ensuring that social workers visit children 
regularly, in line with the children’s plans or statutory guidance, and take 
account of their feelings and wishes when making plans for the children. 
The frequency and quality of visits should be monitored by managers. 

i) Increase the effectiveness of management oversight across the service, 
ensuring that the rationale for decisions and actions set is clear. 
Managers, child protection chairs and IROs in core groups, reviews and 
key meetings should actively challenge drift and delay, and support the 
progress of plans and the reduction of risk. 

j)  When children go missing, ensure that social workers and managers fully 
understand the risks and vulnerabilities of the young people and take 
appropriate action. Ensure that the information gathered during return-
home interviews is used to reduce risk and inform individual planning and 
broader service needs. 

k) Develop and implement a robust sufficiency strategy, which informs the 
provision of services and, in particular, the recruitment of foster carers, for 
children looked after now and in the future. 

l) Review the service level agreement with the neighbouring local authority, 
which delivers adoption services on behalf of Rutland County Council. 
Ensure that services are sufficient and of good quality to meet all needs of 
children, families and adopters prior to and beyond the making of an 
adoption order. 

m)Ensure that birth parents have access to support from someone 
independent of their child’s social worker when adoption is being 
considered. 

n) Ensure that all options for achieving permanence for children are given 
proper consideration, including, when appropriate, parallel planning and 
foster to adopt. 



o) Improve the quality of information which children have access to, both now 
and in the future, such as child permanence reports and later-life letters. 
Ensure that all children in permanent placements receive life-story work. 

p) Ensure that children have timely access to health services, including 
specialist provision. 

q) Increase the extent to which workers consider the long-term arrangements 
when placing children looked after with foster carers, so that more are able 
to stay put when they become 18 years old. 

The attached plan (appendix 1) has considered the action needed to address all 
these recommendations, and outlines how this will be achieved, how it will be 
measured and timescales for completion.

3 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The Ofsted Next Steps Action Plan outlines and addresses the 17 
recommendations which Ofsted noted in their report.

3.2 The Action Plan notes the 17 recommendations, along with outcomes to each 
recommendation, how it will be measured and the objectives, followed by the 
action required and timescale for completion.

3.3 There are a number of actions which have already been completed and the rest 
are on track for completion, all of which are identified through rag rating (green 
and amber).

3.4 We do believe that the actions will fully address the recommendations and enable 
us to ‘get to good’ over the next 6-12 months.

3.5 Recommendations pull out the key issues arising from Ofsted.

4 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

4.1 None

5 APPENDICES 

5.1 Appendix A – The Ofsted Next Steps Action Plan

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

P a g e  | 1

Rutland County Council’s – ‘Next Steps’ Action Plan in response to the Final Ofsted Report (Published February 2017)

We, Rutland County Council, are working in partnership with all our agencies to further improve the services we provide to children, young people and families, to give them the 
best start in life and to ensure our children, young people and families access the right support at the right time to achieve the right outcome. 

This Next Steps Action Plan has been developed in response to our recent Ofsted Inspection which judged us as ‘Requiring Improvement’, and made a number of recommendations 
which would be required to enable us to get to ‘good’. The Single Inspection Framework (SIF) considered:

1. Children in need of help and protection 
2. Children looked after and achieving permanence 

2.1 Adoption Performance 
2.2 Experience and progress of care lavers 

3. Leadership, management and governance 
And 

4. Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB)

Rutland County Council was judged as Good for our Care Leaver Services and for our LSCB, which we share with Leicestershire.

This Next Steps Action Plan has been structured to respond to the recommendations made in the inspection report which can be found HERE. This does not cover the work of the LSCB which is 
independent, and they will submit a separate action plan to Ofsted. 

Monitoring, Accountability and Scrutiny arrangements:

This Next Steps Action Plan will contain SMART objectives, with detailed actions to be carried out.
The monitoring arrangements for the plan are as follows:

1. Monthly monitoring of the plan chaired by the Director of Children’s Services with Directorate Managers.
2. Local Safeguarding Board on a bi-monthly basis.
3. Rutland Performance Board on a quarterly basis
4. People (Children) Scrutiny Panel and the Corporate Parenting Board on a quarterly basis
5. Front Line Management team meetings on a monthly basis.

There are two key mechanisms for monitoring progress:

1. The Next Steps Plan will be updated on a monthly basis and will provide evidence of progress against identified actions and compliance with timescales. This will form the basis of the regular 
monitoring.
2. A quarterly data set and report will be prepared by the Head of Service for Children’s Social Care, which will summarise progress and evidence how the identified actions are improving 
services, and the difference they are making to children and their families in Rutland. This will be submitted to groups identified above and form the basis of the quarterly programme of 
review.

https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/rutland/053_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services%20and%20review%20of%20the%20LSCB%20as%20pdf.pdf


Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

P a g e  | 2

Sustaining Good Practice:

Ofsted also noted a number of areas of Good Practice with the inspection and the following mechanisms are in place to ensure these areas of good practice are both sustained, and are further 
built on to deliver the best possible services to our children and young people. 

o Monthly Performance Reports by Children Social Care Managers which are received by the Head of Service, Director of People and Portfolio Holder.
o These report on statutory duties, such as visits to children, assessment timescales, supervision and so on;
o The reports are written and scrutinised monthly at the Managers’ Performance Meeting chaired of a Head of Service in Children Services; 
o They equally support the continuation and development of good practice in our Early Help Service, providing oversight and scrutiny of this service to ensure that good 

practice is sustained. 
o Audits are undertaken monthly, cases are selected at random across Children Services and ensure case work is to the standard we expect.

o Audits focus on and challenge statutory duties, but equally ensure that the work is of good quality;
o Where issues arise from case audits then actions are given to individual officers to address them, and used a learning and development opportunities across wider relevant 

teams within Children Services; 
o Equally where audits identify examples of good practice, these are also shared with officers
o A quarterly report collates all audit findings to ensure that they are followed up and relevant improvements made;
o Themes from the audits will continue to be collated to enable us to target training and development.

o Supervision will continue to play a big part in ensuring progress on case work 
o We do, and will continue to, undertake supervision audits to ensure that this is a strength. 

o  Family, Carer and Child Feedback 
o We continue to collect feedback across Children Services to hear from our families, carers and children and young people;
o Feedback is collated so that we can hear others’ perspectives and learn from it, and we will continue to do this.

o Data analysis and intelligence
o As our data become more accessible this allows better oversight of practice, and understanding of local needs in order to manage services and our capacity;
o We will continue to utilise audits and case reviews to oversee and scrutinise the quality. 

o Staff Training and Development
o As well as traditional means of training and development, we have implemented practice workshops to ensure all staff understand the develop the quality we expect for our 

children in Rutland. 

Any concerns arising from the monitoring programmes will be conveyed directly to the Director for People.

Finally, the Directorate will seek external challenge of the progress against the plan in Quarter 4 through Internal Audit, specifically in Safeguarding and to review our Fostering and Adoption 
Service. 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 3

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Ensure that senior leaders have access to comprehensive, high-quality performance management information in order to understand frontline practice and fully hold senior managers 
to account

OUTCOMES:

 All stakeholders understand the importance of the data they gather, record and use 
in the course of their work. The systems used to support this work are effective, 
joined up and easy to use.

 Appropriate support, training and development are in place to ensure systems and 
processes remain relevant and are properly used and implemented.

 Appropriate performance information is produced at all levels that is accurate, 
targeted and timely. This contributes positively to the monitoring of services’ 
performance and informs intervention/plans.

 High quality data and information is available enabling service development, 
partnership working, systems and process review.

 Commissioning and service design decisions are supported by high quality, up to 
date, relevant and consistent strategic information.

 Children’s Scrutiny Panel, Performance Board and the Local Safeguarding Children 
Board (LSCB) are provided with the information and training they require enabling 
them to offer sufficient challenge and scrutiny to oversee services to children, young 
people and families.

MEASURED BY:

 Information management systems are in place, are up to date (within two versions of 
the latest release) and there is good system compliance from relevant officers.

 A revised Children’s Services Scorecard is in place which pulls together all relevant 
information with senior managers held accountable for outcomes 

 BI Tools utilising effective data visualisation are used by management, and elected 
members, to review and challenge service performance. 

 Statutory returns – target: ensure 100% of statutory data returns are completed on 
time with effective quality assurance of data.

 External reviews – target: improved Ofsted rating as outcome of sustained 
improvements  

OBJECTIVES: Deliver against the Quality Assurance (QA) and Performance Framework

 Understand what data is needed at all levels of the local authority, and wider agencies to effectively monitor and support the work of Children’s Social Care, and drive commissioning, 
and service improvement and development.



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 4

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 New and improved scorecard is now in place pulling 
together all relevant measures for Children Social 
Care (CSC) and Early Help (EH)

Completed January 
2017

 Jon Adamson – Business 
Intelligence Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire – Head 
of Children’s Social Care

1.1 Develop a new Scorecard for 
CSC 

 Now Business Intelligence tools being developed to 
present data in more meaningful/accessible ways 
(e.g. profile of Children Looked After (CLA) for 
Corporate Parenting  Board – see 7.5 below)

April 2017
 Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire

1.2 Develop performance reports 
which children services complete 
monthly around data to provide 
narrative and analysis

 Commenced January 2017 and reports are in place 
and currently being embedded 

May 2017 to be 
embedded and 
effective 

 Kate Dexter – Children’s 
Social Care Service 
Manager

 Kevin Quinn Early help 
and SEND Inclusion 
Service Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Briefing delivered at Children’s Conference to ensure 
all officers understand how information captured in 
LiquidLogic is used to inform service planning and 
delivery

January 2017 – 
completed 

 Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire1.3 Develop knowledge around the 
inputting and interpretation of 
data and what this means for 
Officers 

 New scorecard and Business Intelligence Tools to be 
presented at children’s conference April 2017 

 Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire
 Bernadette Caffrey

1.4 Continue to embed the 
development of LiquidLogic and 
ensure this supports and evidences 
good practice across children’s 
services

 Review purpose and function of Performance and 
Application Support Team 

 Strengthen capacity for administration and 
configuration of case management system/s

May 2017  Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Monthly (People) Directorate Management Team 
(DMT) meetings which replaces Service Improvement 
Board (SIB) 

March  2017  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Jon Adamson 

 Tim O’Neill – Director for 
People 

 Quarterly People Performance Board with Chief 
Executive and Councillors will provide scrutiny and 
challenge

June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

1.5 Embed performance 
management reports so that 
information is scrutinised and 
understood at each level 

 Monthly performance reports for Children Services 
will be compiled for the Director and Portfolio Holder

April 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

1.6 Improve analysis of 
information to better inform 
officers, managers and members 

 Robust analysis of data within new reporting 
mechanisms to provide information needed to inform 
decision making

April 2017  Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 5

RECOMMENDATION:

2. Ensure that all staff receive regular good-quality supervision, with an appropriate balance of critical challenge, case direction and opportunities for reflection.

OUTCOMES:

 Officers receive the right level of oversight from their managers to enable them to 
discuss cases fully and make the right decisions for children, young people and 
families to improve their outcomes and ensure their safety and welfare.

 Officers’ knowledge and development of case work will be improved by rigorous 
challenge and reflective practice. 

 Children, young people and families will receive an improved and timelier service as 
officers will have clearer and timely case direction. 

 Officers will ensure the action is taken at the right time for children as supervision will 
ensure oversight 

MEASURED BY:

 Management information – target: 100% of social workers and practitioners  receive, 
quality casework supervision; any underperformance challenged and addressed

 Management information – target: improved flow of casework through the system 
and alert analysis; casework completed within expected timescales

 Case audit – target: all cases audited will have evidence of supervision on case files 
 Supervision audit – target: 100% of social workers and practitioners  have a 

supervision agreement in place
 Training – target: 100% of managers/supervisors receive relevant training in 

supervision skills

OBJECTIVES: Deliver against the Supervision Policy

 Themes and lessons from casework are systematically collated, analysed and learned from.
 Social work staff/children’s services staff is confident in how they are directed and supervised in their work.
 Management oversight is consistent and rigorous to ensure effective assessment, planning, intervention and review.
 Case work is progressed in a timely manner ensuring no drift in case work / case decisions 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 6

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

2.1  Supervision Policy to be 
revised to include Group 
Supervision 
 

 In progress to cover the development of group 
supervision 

May 2017  Kate Dexter   Rebecca Wilshire

 Completed February 2017 however this needs further 
embedding 

Completed February 
2017

 Children’s Social Care - 
Team Managers  

 Rebecca Wilshire2.2 Group Supervision to 
commence which is reflective and 
offers critical challenge, direction 
and support  Development and embedding in progress June  2017  Children’s Social Care - 

Team Managers
 Rebecca Wilshire

 Managers will ensure all supervision and case 
management decisions  are recorded on LiquidLogic 
within 3 days of supervision taking place 

June 2017  Children’s Social Care - 
Team Managers

 Rebecca Wilshire2.3 Liquidlogic to be used so data 
on supervision can be extracted to 
ensure further oversight 

 In progress, LiquidLogic revised to see how we can 
ensure supervision is on the system and this data 
provides an accurate report 

May 2017
 Jon Adamson 
 Rebecca Wilshire

 Rebecca Wilshire

2.4 Managers will be receive 
training on supervision and group 
supervision 

 In progress, Children Social Care managers will all get 
a workshop on delivering group supervision across 
children services 

June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Tracy Holliday – Quality 

Assurance Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Children’s conference in February 17 completed Feb 17 completed  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire2.5 Officers will receive training 
and develop understanding around 
group supervision to ensure this is 
effective 

 Further workshop for  Children Social Care April 17 to 
allow for reflection and further alteration August 17 

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 7

RECOMMENDATION:

3. Ensure that assessments and plans actively consider all risks to children, including emerging and new risks as circumstances for children change. Improve social workers’ understanding 
of neglect and the impact on children.

OUTCOMES:

 Children and young people have their needs and risks assessed to enable them to access 
the right support at the right time 

 Assessments will be a continued process to ensure needs are risks are consistently 
assessed 

 Assessments will inform plans fully to ensure needs are met and risks minimised

 Officers understanding and knowledge of Neglect will be improved to ensure children, 
young people and family’s needs are better met 

MEASURED BY:

 Quality data will monitor that 100% of children have an updated assessment 

 Audits will measure the quality of Plans and ensure 100% of Plans  meet the assessed 
needs and risks

 Supervision will critically challenge and provide oversight to ensure all assessment and 
plans are fit for purpose and result in expected change for children

OBJECTIVES: Deliver against our Practice Standards

 All children, young people and families will have a quality plan which they have been fully involved in 
 All children, young people and families will have an updated, thorough and in-depth assessment 
 All children, young people and families will have a plan which reflect this assessment of needs and risks 
 Plans will be reviewed in a timely manner ensuring children, young people and families are accessing the right support at the right time 
 The right assessment and the right plan will ensure timely support is in place and minimise any potential for any drift. 

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Performance team will provide a list of all children to 
allow us to get up-to-date assessment information 

March 2017 
competed 

 Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire3.1 Use data to identify any 
children who have not had an 
assessment in the last 12 month 

 Performance Team will develop and provide a 
monthly data pack to manager which will include any 
children who have not had an assessment in the last 6 
months which are open to Children Social Care 
including Disabled children

June 2017  Jon Adamson  Rebecca Wilshire
 Bernadette Caffrey



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 8

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Managers will use the data pack to inform and 
develop practice 

June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Kevin Quinn – Early Help 

Service Manager
 Darrell Griffin – Early Help 

and SEND Inclusion  
Service Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey – 
Head of Early Intervention 
and SEND  Inclusion 

3.2 Using data ensure all children 
have an updated assessment 
include at least 6 monthly?

 Updated assessments are underway where children 
have not had one in last 12 months, Children Social 
Care will then ensure there are updated 6 monthly 
with the use of a data pack 

June 2017  Kate Dexter   Rebecca Wilshire

 In progress – workshops are underway to support the 
development of assessment skills 

June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Tracy Holliday  

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Writing workshops have been set up to develop 
writing skills 

June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Darrell Griffin

 Rebecca Wilshire
 Bernadette Caffrey

3.3 Assessment workshops to 
develop analytical skills in 
assessments in children’s services

 Assessment skills training will be set up and delivered 
every six months to ensure new recruits receive the 
same training 

June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Darrell Griffin  

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 All officers will have an in depth understanding of 
Neglect and be using the assessment tool – training 
delivered at children’s conference

Completed Feb 2017  Kate Dexter 
 Darrell Griffin

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

3.4 Neglect tool training and 
workshops, to be delivered to all 
officers 

 Use for the Neglect tool in practice and embed… 
starting with all Child Protection cases

May 2017  Children’s Social Care - 
Team Managers

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Group supervision has commenced and we continue 
to develop this to ensure it is effective and reflective 

Complete Feb 2017  Kate Dexter   Rebecca Wilshire3.5 Group supervision will be 
developed so cases, where neglect 
exists, are managed effectively 

 We will have group supervision right and embedded 
by end of April 2017

April 17  Kate Dexter   Rebecca Wilshire

 Children conference will continue to deliver monthly 
areas of further training to continue to develop 
officers knowledge 

Completed Feb  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Neglect will be on the next agenda to allow for further 
reflection of the use of the neglect tool

April 2017  Kate Dexter 
 Darrell Griffin

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

3.6 Further develop local training 
on Neglect signs, symptoms and 
impact, for all officers 

 Further bespoke Neglect  training to be commissioned 
to ensure all staff have in depth knowledge of Neglect 
and are using the assessment tool

June 2017  Kate Dexter 
 Darrell Griffin

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 9

RECOMMENDATION:

4. Improve the quality of assessments and plans across the service by ensuring that they are informed by children’s wishes and feelings, involve the views of men and fathers, consider 
diversity and historical factors, which are specific to individual children’s needs, and have explicit outcome-based actions.

OUTCOMES:

 Children and young people have their needs and risks assessed to enable them to 
access the right support at the right time 

 Fathers, Men, and absent parents will be fully considered in all assessments and 
throughout our involvement 

 Childs and families voices will be better evidenced throughout our work to ensure we 
are providing a good service 

 Children assessments and records will evidence diversity and historical factors and 
this will influence current practice and concerns. 

 We will have a clean methodology which supports and evidences evidenced based 
outcomes 

MEASURED BY:

 Quality data will monitor that 100% of children have an updated assessment 

 Audits will measure the quality of Plans and ensure that 100% of Plans meet child 
diverse needs, and their wishes an feelings 

 Family feedback will be gathered in 100% cases,  including from fathers which will 
evidence progress 

 Wider family will be fully considered within all assessment to ensure right support is 
around the child 

 Supervision will critically challenge and provide oversight to ensure 100% of 
assessment and plans are fit for purpose 

OBJECTIVES: Deliver against our Practice Standards

 All children, young people and families will have a quality plan which they have been fully involved in (including pathway plans)
 All children, young people and families will have a plan which reflect this assessment of needs and risks (including needs led assessments)
 Plans will be reviewed in a timely manner ensuring children, young people and families are access the right support at the right time 
 The right assessment and the right plan will ensure timely support is in place and minimise any potential for any drift. 
 Family feedback will evidence better practice and this will further inform future practice
 Assessments are conducted in a timely fashion; contain the views of children and young people; and contain a detailed analysis based on research, evidence and impact.
 The progress of all plans is reviewed within target time scales and any issues impacting on progress are addressed.
 Children, young people and their families have a clear understanding of the concerns and risks identified as plans will be smarter.



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 10

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Children’s Conference in June to deliver training 
around father and absent parents 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Local Safeguarding Children Board in Cambridgeshire 
deliver training on this topic and we will discuss 
accessing  this via this route (or develop our own)

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Assessment skills training will cover the importance of 
whole family approach and thinking 

June 2017  Kate Dexter   Rebecca Wilshire 

4.1 Training to be delivered on 
‘Fathers can safeguard too’ to all 
staff 

 Person centred planning at Children Service 
conference 

May 2017  Kate Dexter 
 Darrell Griffin
 Ashley Poulton – Youth 

& Community 
Development Officer

 Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey

 Workshop set up to deliver training on creating 
minimum of a 3rd generation genogram 

June 2017  Kate Dexter   Rebecca Wilshire 4.2 Genogram training to be 
provided so wider family members, 
Maternal and Paternal are fully 
considered  Workshop will cover the importance of genogram, 

identifying patterns an developing information from 
this to further inform assessment and planning 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 

 Provide training around LiquidLogic chronology
 Online training completed by all social workers and 

practitioners following the upgrade 

May 2017  Vicki Tarplee – Project 
Manager for LiquidLogic

 Team managers

 Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey

4.3 Chronology training to be 
delivered to ensure all officers 
understand the importance of 
history  Workshop will be delivered through children 

conference to ensure officers understanding of 
chronology and how this is used to inform 
assessment, thinking and action 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Further 2 day training will be implemented in May 17 May 2017  Jo Tyler – Project Officer  Rebecca Wilshire

 Ongoing workshops within children conference will 
continue to develop and embed Signs of Safety

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

4.4 Further develop and embed 
Signs of Safety ‘danger statements’ 
which ensure history is considered 

 Session on Danger Statements at next conference April 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

4.5 Writing training/workshops to 
be delivered to all officers 

 To develop recording skills June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Darrell Griffin

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 11

RECOMMENDATION:

5. Ensure that personal education plans are completed for all children looked after, and that they include a thorough assessment of needs and set targets for improvement.

OUTCOMES:

 100% of Children and Young People, who are looked after  will have a robust Personal 
Education Plans (PEP) in place which is reviewed three times a year 

 100% of children and young people will be engage fully in their PEP, along with 
carers, parents and professionals 

 PEP’s will ensure children and young people’s education needs are clear through 
continued assessment with SMART targets for improvement

MEASURED BY:

 Head of Virtual School accountable for Quality Assurance of all PEPs; monthly audits 
will monitor and review the quality  of PEPS; feedback will lead to 100% of PEPs 
meeting expectation for SMART targets

 PEP’s will be discussed and reviewed systematically within the monthly ARC/CLA (At 
Risk Children/Children Looked After) Panel processes; any barriers to progress within 
timelines will be addressed to ensure timeliness 

OBJECTIVES: Deliver against our Corporate Parenting Pledges

 All children, young people who are looked after will have a clean, SMART and updated PEP which is derived from an assessment of their need
 All PEP’s will of high quality, will be robust and completed in a timely manner 
 The progress of all plans are reviewed within target time scales and any issues impacting on progress are addressed



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 12

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Flowchart completed, introduced, and circulated End of May 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Dedicated team assistant has been tasked with 
oversight and monitoring 

May 2017  Long Term Team 
Manager

 Kate Dexter 

 New process launched March 2017 so need next two 
months to test its development  and to embed 

May 2017  Long Term Team 
Manager

 Kate Dexter 

5.1 New process for PEP to be 
introduced to ensure better 
practice. Flowchart to be launched 
to improve practice

 Quality assurance will be with Head of Virtual School 
to ensure this area develops and is built in to the 
flowchart 

May 2017  Sue Hickey - Head of 
Virtual School

 Gill Curtis

5.2 PEP Timescales will be reduced 
to ensure circulation is more timely 

 The above action and flowchart will address this 
action, we have clear timescale in completing and 
distributing PEPs following meetings 

May 17 to be 
embedded 

 Long Term Team 
Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

5.3 Deliver training on PEPs to 
ensure quality improves 

 Children’s conference in July will deliver a slot on PEP, 
the purpose, importance, smart planning and quality 

July 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 PEP information will be collated and brought to the 
ARC/CLA panel. 

 Any late PEP will be discussed within this forum to 
understand the issue and rationale. 

Complete March 
2017 

 Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill5.4 Oversight of PEPs - completed 
or not - needs to be heard at the 
ARC/CLA (At Risk Children/Children 
Looked After) Panel as part of the 
oversight  ARC/ CLA implemented this in March’s panel and will 

continue to have a PEP update 
June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 13

RECOMMENDATION:

6. Review and strengthen management and panel oversight of the fostering service to ensure that there is effective challenge of the quality of practice. In particular, ensure that foster 
carer assessments and investigations of allegations and concerns are thorough and robust, contain all relevant information and are completed in a timely way.

OUTCOMES:
 The fostering panel will offer critical challenge of the quality of practice to enable 

practice to be further developed and of high standard

 The fostering panel will scrutinise all assessments of carers and their reviews to 
ensure they all continue to meet appropriate regulations 

 The fostering panel will critically challenge assessment and any investigation in a 
manner which ensures outcomes are timely 

 The fostering panel will be a forum for challenge, critical reflection and a panel which 
supports models and develops excellent practice. 

MEASURED BY:

 100% of all Fostering Panel Minutes will be signed off by the Agency Decision Maker 
(ADM) 

 100% of complaints will be responded to in timescale as per policy 

 100% of allegations will be addressed and follo2wwed up through the Local Authority 
Designated Person (LADO) process 

 Monthly audits of Children looked After will further measure and analyse this area 

 
OBJECTIVES:

 Rutland Fostering Panel will have robust oversight of the fostering service and ensure panels are Robust 
 Rutland Fostering Panel, will offer effective challenge around the quality of practice and such challenge improve practice within the service 
 Rutland Fostering Panel will escalate issues and concerns around practice which is addressed 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 14

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Meeting has taken place with the fostering panel 
chair and we have outlined future meetings to enable 
challenge and issues to be taken forward as they arise 
and prevent delay 

Completed March 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 6.1 Agency Decision Maker 
(ADM)/Foster Panel Chair and 
Manager to meet bi-monthly to 
review practice 

 Meetings between Panel Chair, Foster and Adoption 
Manager and Children Social Care’s Service Manager 
are in place 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

6.2 Panel Chair and Team Manager 
will meet prior to panel as a 
‘challenge session’ 

 Completed – it is agree there will be a pre meet 
before panel to explore any issues or challenges to 
add a further level of oversight and reflection 

Completed March 
2017 

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Completed – last two sets of minutes have been 
completed in this manner and all future minutes will 
be done the same. 

Complete March 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire6.3 ADM will sign off and comment 
on all actions and 
recommendations – flow chart to 
be created  Flow chart to cover the process is in progress June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Dates have been circulated and diarised – as per 
agreement 

 Rutland will ensure attendance at the panel from here 
on

Completed March 
2017 

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire6.4 Service Manager, Team 
Manager and Portfolio Holder will 
ensure attendance to panels to 
ensure further oversight. 

 Minutes will be checked by Agency Decision Maker to 
ensure this has taken place and ensure attendance 
and oversight 

September 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

6.5 Clear escalation process for the 
foster panel chair should issues not 
be addressed 

 Agency Decision Maker (ADM) will have regular 
contact with the chair and any escalation of issues will 
be via ADM – this process will be reflected in the 
flowchart. 

 Rutland ADM is the Head of Children’s Social Care

April 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

6.6 To Ensure progress of the plan 
at the end of the year and measure 
our success 

 External audit of the service will be undertaken to 
change made and sustained in Quarter 4 (2017-18)

January 2018-March 
2018

 Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 15

RECOMMENDATION:

7. Ensure that the corporate parenting board is effective in driving improvements and monitoring outcomes for children looked after and care leavers. Increase opportunities for children 
looked after and care leavers to participate in decision-making and service development and for their achievements to be celebrated.

OUTCOMES:
 The CPB (Corporate Parenting Board) will offer critical challenge of the quality of 

practice to enable practice to be further developed and of high standard

 The CPB will provide oversight of 100% of our children looked after to ensure they 
have the best possible service. 

 The CPB will engage children and young people and listen to their views and thoughts 
to further develop practice and new initiatives. 

 The CPB will be a forum for challenge, critical reflection and a board which provides 
support, models and develops excellent practice. 

MEASURED BY:
 100% of all Fostering Panel Minutes will be signed off by the Agency Decision Maker 

(ADM) 

 100% of complaints will be responded to in timescale as per policy 

 100% of allegations will be addressed and followed up through the Local Authority 
Designated Person (LADO) process

 Monthly audits of Children Looked After (CLA) will further measure and analyse this 
area 

OBJECTIVES: Deliver against the Corporate Parenting Strategy and Pledges

 Rutland CPB will have robust oversight of all our services to children looked after and our care leavers  
 Rutland CPB, will offer effective challenge around the quality of practice and such challenge will  improve practice within the service 
 Rutland Fostering Panel will escalate issues and concerns around practice which is addressed 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 16

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

7.1 Update the Corporate Parent 
Board (CPB)  strategy to ensure it 
reflects the need of oversight and 
challenge 

 In progress – this is written and in draft form seeking 
further approval at this time 

May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

7.2 Update Terms of Reference of 
the CPB to ensure we have the 
right membership to progress the 
board further 

 In progress – the TOR is being updated – this is in 
draft form and seeking approval at this time

May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

 Children in Care Council (Speak Up Speak Out (SUSO)), 
regularly speak to our Children looked After re 
attending and where they don’t want to will gather 
feedback from them 

Complete March 17  Early Help Coordinator – 
Youth

 Kevin Quinn 

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 From March 2017 we ensure the CPB agenda is done 
in a child/young person friendly manner so they can 
this in advance and give feedback on any items 

March 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

 SUSO lead and advocate attends CPB to ensure the 
young people’s voice is heard as does Service 
Manager for our youth groups to further ensure 
children and young people have presence 

March 2017  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Tim O’Neill

 Young people will continue to be invited March 2017  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Tim O’Neill

7.3 Ensure children, young people 
are routinely invited to the CPB 
and, where unable to attend, their 
advocate will be their voice 

 We need to reconsider our times of CPB and venue in 
order to further encourage young people to attend

March 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

7.4 Deliver CPB training to 
members to cover all roles and 
responsibilities 

 Training took place on 30th March 2017 
 Further session is planned for all members 

March 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

7.5 Develop a CPB data pack, which 
ensure our corporate parents have 
details and up to date information 
around data to allow for effective 
challenge 

 Interactive dashboard profiling Children Looked After 
using latest available data has been developed 

May 2017  Jon Adamson  Tim O’Neill

7.6 Develop systems to measure 
progress of the plan at the end of 
year and measure our success; 
identify key future actions 

 External Audit will undertake an Audit of Safeguarding 
services in Quarter 4 2017/18

January 2018 – 
March 2018 (Q4)

 Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 17

RECOMMENDATION:

8. Improve social work practice by ensuring that social workers visit children regularly, in line with the children’s plans or statutory guidance, and take account of their feelings and 
wishes when making plans for the children. The frequency and quality of visits should be monitored by managers.

OUTCOMES:

 All children open to children’s social care will have an allocated worker who visits 
them regularly in home and in school (age appropriate) 

 All children and young people will have a clear/SMART plan which outlines visiting to 
ensure children, young people and families have a clear understanding 

 Children, young people and families will have their wishes and feelings taken in to 
account and this will be fully evidence in recording and will help develop practice 

 Managers will have oversight of the frequency and the quality of visits to children, 
young people and families. 

MEASURED BY:

 Monthly Audits will monitor and review the quality  of visits and ensure voice of 
child/family is present in 100% of Plans

 Group supervision will ensure oversight of frequency and quality; meet statutory 
guidance 

 Group supervision will enable reflection and critical challenge; underperformance 
challenged and addressed through individual supervision 

 Data will demonstrate timely visits to 100% of  children as per statutory duties have 
been undertaken 

 External Audit which forms part of systematic review processes which are embedded;    
progress will note sustained improvements and identify areas for continued 
improvement 

OBJECTIVES: Deliver our Practice Standards

 All children, young people and families in Rutland will have receive high standard social work practice, where those open to children social care have a clean plan, are seen regular as 
per their plan or statutory duties and where they view, feelings and wishes inform our practice and their plans. 

 Managers in Rutland will have oversight of case work and through group supervision will offer circuital challenge and reflective practice to further develop the service and ensure 
children are getting the right support and service at the right time.

 Themes and lessons from casework are systematically collated, analysed and learned from.
 Social work staff is confident in how they are directed and supervised in their work.
 Management oversight is consistent and rigorous to ensure effective assessment, planning, intervention and review.

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Completed – guidance has been written and given to 
all Children’s Social Care staff 

December 16 
completed 

 Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill8.1 Clear recording guidance to be 
written and issued to social 
workers to understand fully their 
expectations  Workshops to ensure the guidance is used 

consistently to address issues around variability 
June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 18

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Ensuring compliance within the workforce June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Darrell Griffin

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Workshop in place around Children Looked After,  to 
ensure we address our practice in this area develop 
better working knowledge and ability to consider 
permanency early 

April 2017  Tracy Holliday
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

8.2 Practice Workshops to be 
developed to enhance social work 
practice and ensure needs of 
children are met 

Mandatory workshops will continue on:
 Genogram
 SMART Plans 
 Rehabilitation home framework 
 Child Protection planning
 Assessment Skills
 Some workshops will be delivered though the 

monthly children conference

Programme during 
2017 up to Dec 2017

 Kate Dexter
 Tracy Holliday

 Rebecca Wilshire 

 This will be a feature at each children’s conference to 
enable challenge and reflection

Programme during 
2017

 Kate Dexter
 Darrell Griffin 

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Next children conference needs to deliver on use of 
‘Danger Statement’ to ensure we are using 
consistently 

April 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire 

 Conference in February focused on Scaling in SOS February 2017 
completed 

 Rebecca Wilshire  Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

 Conference in January took case study to use SOS 
therefore allowing development and refection of the 
approach 

January 2017 
completed 

 Social Care Team 
Managers

 Rebecca Wilshire 
 Bernadette Caffrey

8.3 Training around Signs of Safety 
(SOS) to be further embedded and 
used to ensure children’s feelings 
and wishes are used to inform 
plans and practice 

 2 Day Signs of Safety (SOS)  training set for May 2017 May 17  Jo Tyler  Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 19

RECOMMENDATION:

9. Increase the effectiveness of management oversight across the service, ensuring that the rationale for decisions and actions set is clear. Managers, child protection chairs and IROs in 
core groups, reviews and key meetings should actively challenge drift and delay, and support the progress of plans and the reduction of risk.

OUTCOMES:

 The lives of children, young people and families in need of help and protection are 
improved by rigorous challenge at all levels of the authority, including the challenge 
to partners; and planning and reviews of their situations.

 Children, young people and families who need help and protection are seen swiftly 
and provided with a timely assessment of their need, which means that they are not 
left at risk of harm and such decisions will be recorded clearly outlining all rational for 
any decisions.

 Social workers receive the right level of oversight from their managers to enable 
them to discuss cases fully and make the right decisions for children, young people 
and families to improve their outcomes and ensure their safety and welfare.

 Elected members are equipped with sufficient skills and knowledge to confidently 
scrutinise and challenge all aspects of the work undertaken by CSC and contribute to 
the continuous development of the service to young people, and to the achievement 
of their aspirations.

 IRO will have a clear footprint on children’s files, with a clear escalation process which 
challenges practice and performance at all levels. 

MEASURED BY:

 Management information – target: 100% of social workers and practitioners  receive 
regular quality casework supervision

 Management information – target: improved flow of casework through the system 
and alert analysis

 Feedback from children, young people and families – target: improved positivity
 Complaints – target: decrease in volume, develop clear feedback loop for all 

complaints to measure learning 
 Case audit – target: all cases audited will reach a standard as good or above 
 Supervision audit – target: 100% of social workers and practitioners have a 

supervision agreement in place
 Elected member engagement – target: effective questioning and challenge evidenced 

in meetings and minutes
 Quarterly and Annual reports around IRO service
 Escalation Alerts will evidence issues and themes and as such will be addressed and 

monitored. 
 External Audit of Safeguarding arrangements to be assessed as good or better  

OBJECTIVES:

 Themes and lessons from casework are systematically collated, analysed and learned from.
 IROs will work closely with social work staff to ensure practice improves and any issues are managed without delay 
 Social work staff are confident in how they are directed and supervised in their work.
 Management oversight is consistent and rigorous to ensure effective assessment, planning, intervention and review.
 Assessments are conducted in a timely fashion; contain the views of children and young people; and contain a detailed analysis based on research, evidence and impact.
 The progress of all plans is reviewed within target time scales and any issues impacting on progress are addressed.
 Children, young people and their families have a clear understanding of the concerns and risks identified as plans will be smarter.
 Conferences and reviews are well informed by good quality information.
 Conference chairs have oversight of all child protection cases and drive planning and progress.



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 20

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Restructure of CSC to further develop area of practice 
and build in capacity to the service

May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill9.1 Restructure of Quality 
Assurance (QA) Team to build in 
capacity 

 Build Capacity to ensure IRO (Independent Reviewing 
Officer) are able to oversee and scrutinise plans 
between reviews and ensure IRO duties are duties 
fully upheld as per the IRO handbook

June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

9.2 Create a clear escalation policy 
around alerts from the IRO to 
ensure Social Work teams are 
aware 

 New IRO Escalation Policy has now been produced 
and circulated to all managers, as well as added to the 
local authority children’s procedures on Tri-x for all 
officers

February 2017
completed 

 Tracy Holliday  Rebecca Wilshire

9.3 QA Manager will attend the 
ARC/CLA panel to ensure they offer 
further oversight 

 This has been in place since January, it offers a further 
level of challenge and oversight to the panel 

January 2017 
completed  

 Tracy Holliday  Rebecca Wilshire

 Safeguarding Unit also have a tracker where these are 
logged

February 2017 
completed  

 Tracy Holliday  Rebecca Wilshire

 Practice alerts are completed routinely and monitored 
fully by the IRO/QA manager 

May 2017  Tracy Holliday  Rebecca Wilshire

 Staff received alerts where practice is not as it should 
be and these are escalated as needed without delay 

May 2017  Tracy Holliday  Rebecca Wilshire

9.4 Independent Reviewing Officer 
(IRO)/ Child Protection (CP) Alerts 
will be fully noted on LiquidLogic as 
well as responses 

 QA Manager meets regularly with Director of People 
and LSCB Chair to escalate issues or themes to ensure 
independence is further upheld 

May 2017  Tracy Holliday  Tim O’Neill

 This to explore all issues which have risen to ensure 
no delay in identifying any issues and no delay in 
addressing them

March 2017 
completed  

 Kate Dexter
 Tracy Holliday 

 Rebecca Wilshire

 This has been in place since beginning of March and 
already proven to be helpful in identification 

March 2017 
completed

 Kate Dexter
 Tracy Holliday 

 Rebecca Wilshire

9.5 QA Manager and Service 
manager to meet weekly to review 
all alerts, issues and concerns to 
address them timely and without 
delay 

 It will allow us to continue to be a learning 
organisation as themes relating to practice will be the 
basis of further training workshops 

May 2017  Kate Dexter
 Tracy Holliday 

 Rebecca Wilshire

9.6 LADO role to move from HOS to 
ensure more independent role 

 Completed – role has moved to QA Manager who 
holds an independent role with the IRO service 

February 2017 
completed

 Tracy Holliday  Rebecca Wilshire 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 21

RECOMMENDATION:

10.When children go missing, ensure that social workers and managers fully understand the risks and vulnerabilities of the young people and take appropriate action. Ensure that the 
information gathered during return-home interviews is used to reduce risk and inform individual planning and broader service needs.

OUTCOMES:
 Children and Young People who go missing in Rutland will be reviewed regular to 

ensure we understand the risks posed 

 Children and young people who go missing will all receive a return home interview 
within timescale, which is used to inform their plans and their outcomes. 

 Rutland will fully engage in the wider LLR initiative around children at risk of Child 
Sexual Exploitation (CSE), Trafficking and missing to ensure our service continues to 
develop. 

MEASURED BY:

 Audit – Audits will review those children who have been reported missing to ensure 
practice was at a standard of good or above 

 Missing Tracker – 100% of children who go missing are logged and reviewed regular 
to ensure practice and duties are followed 

 Monthly CSE/Missing internal meetings will explore, critically challenge and review 
100% of missing cases to ensure practice has been upheld.

OBJECTIVES: Deliver our CSE Action Plan

 Relevant managers and workers are confident and competent in recognising and responding to children who go missing
 Relevant manager and workers are confident and competent in recognising signs and symptoms around CSE which could be linked to missing 
 Information is shared between professionals to prevent children and young people from going missing 
 Return home interviews are complete in timescale and all children are offered an independent advocate for all return home interviews. 
 National learning is embedded into Rutland practice

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 All new learning will be presented at Children 
conference to ensure everyone hears the same 
learning 

July 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey

 We will use national learning to inform our practice 
further via the conferences 

Programme during 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey

10.1 Ensure national learning is 
embedded into Rutland Practice 

 Serious Care Reviews (SCR) Lessons for Reviews will 
be held bi-monthly with managers to review new SCRs 
and consider learning 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire and 
Bernadette Caffrey



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 22

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Introduce in to the CSE/Missing groups all children at 
risk of exploitation (Trafficking/PREVENT) to ensure 
oversight 

June 2017  Steph Logue – Health & 
Wellbeing Development 
Coordinator

 Jo Tyler 
 Natalie Pretsell 

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Absent episodes to be tracked for emerging 
themes/common destination

October 2016 
completed 

 Steph Logue
 Duty Team Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Our tracker will evidence good sound practice with 
children who have gone missing

October 2016 completed  Steph Logue
 Duty Team Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire 

 Internal meeting of CSE/Missing will further review 
and scrutinise the tracker and the practice further  - 
Local ‘Exploitation’ plan will be updated 

May 2017 
 Steph Logue
 Jo Tyler

 Rebecca Wilshire

10.2 Missing Tracker is in place and 
will continue to track any children 
who go missing 

 Update the ‘Exploitation’ action plan to include 
Missing so we can further monitor progress 

May 2017  Steph Logue
 Jo Tyler

 Rebecca Wilshire

March 2017 
completed

 All children who are looked after or subject to CP – 
the return home interview will be shared with the QA 
manger/IRO for further oversight – this will ensure 
any issues or concerns are considered within their 
plans 

June 2017 to 
embedded

 Tracy Holliday   Rebecca Wilshire

 Exploitation Action plan will ensure and monitor that 
this is taking place on a monthly basis at the internal 
meeting 

June 2017  Kate Dexter
 Steph Logue
 Jo Tyler

 Rebecca Wilshire

10.3 All return home interview will 
be shared with the QA Manager to 
enable oversight and scrutiny 
(Children Looked After (CLA) and 
those subject to Child Protection 
(CP)  Plans)

 Group supervision will further ensure oversight of all 
return home interview to ensure this is fully recorded 
on files and considered in any decision making 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

Started in February 
2017 

 Group supervision will ensure all return home 
interviews, and the content, is fully considered , 
recorded and part of the planning and decision 
making 

Review in June 2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire10.4 Return home interviews of 
children not looked after or subject 
to CP will be shared with team 
managers and reviewed in group 
supervision  We will also have oversight at the monthly meeting 

where all Missing children will be considered 
To be embedded by 
May 2017 

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 23

RECOMMENDATION:

11. Develop and implement a robust sufficiency strategy, which informs the provision of services and, in particular, the recruitment of foster carers, for children looked after now and in 
the future.

OUTCOMES:

 Rutland will have a sufficiency strategy which clearly informs the provision of service. 

 Rutland’s sufficiency strategy will have a clear focus on the recruitment of foster 
carers for children looked after now and in the future 

 Rutland to have a variety of foster cares including emergency carers and respite 
carers. 

MEASURED BY:

 An increase seen in enquiries of people wishing to become foster carers within 
Rutland locality. Target of 2 per year  

 Audits; foster carer’s practice and confidence is developed as outcome of guidance 
and support; meeting full range of children requiring care

 Foster carer feedback which will evidence what is working well and what we need to 
improve on

 External Audit constituent part of systematic review processes which are embedded;    
progress will note sustained improvements and identify areas for continued 
improvement 

OBJECTIVES: Deliver our Corporate Parenting Strategy and Sufficiency Strategy

 To increase our pool of carers to ensure our children when they become looked after remain in area to be close to family and friends 
 To ensure our fostering service develops to ensure we deliver an outstanding service
 To increase confidence in the service we deliver 
 To have a wide variety of carers who can meet the needs of all our children and fully supported in doing so
 To ensure 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 24

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

11.1 Sufficiency Strategy to be 
updated and re-launched ensuring 
it is robust and purposeful 

 Initial work underway on the data which will inform a 
revised Children looked After and Care Leavers 
Sufficiency Statement

June 2017  Jon Adamson (DMT)  Tim O’Neill
 Rebecca Wilshire

11.2 Sufficiency Strategy specially 
for the recruitment of foster carers 
to be launched 

 Fostering Sufficiency Statement is in Progress May 2017  Mat Waik 
 Rebecca Wilshire

 Tim O’Neill

 Radio advertisement is set up May 2017  Mat Waik
 Fostering Team Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Leaflets have been delivered around local area / 
coffee shops 

April 2017  Fostering Team Manager  Rebecca Wilshire

11.3 Foster carer recruitment 
campaign to be developed to 
support further recruitment 

 Fostering fortnight in May 2017 to further promote 
range of recruitment opportunities 

May 2017  Mat Waik
 Fostering Team Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Offer to meet with all / any fosters carers in question May 2017  Fostering Team Manager
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire11.4 Address and resolve all 
current issues with some foster 
carers, where complaints are 
present 

 Take carers back to panel to enable a transparent 
discussion and recommendations to be held

May 2017  Fostering Team Manager
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Review ‘Mocking Bird’ as a model for our fostering 
service or an alternative

June 2017  Fostering Team Manager
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Strengthen the service by recruiting a high quality 
experienced team manager 

May 2017 (appoint)  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

 Strategy to recruit new foster carers March 2017  Kate Dexter
 Fostering Team Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Recruit carers to work towards all newly looked after 
children being placed in-house 

June 2017  Fostering Team Manager
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Review current carers to ensure training packages are 
in place and appropriate 

June 2017  Fostering Team Manager
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire

11.5 Consider our Fostering Model 
to ensure we fully support our 
carers to meet the needs of our 
children 

 Review foster carer fees, to ensure we align with 
national standards and remain competitive and 
attractive to carers 

June  2017  Fostering Team Manager
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 25

RECOMMENDATION:

12. Review the service level agreement with the neighbouring local authority, which delivers adoption services on behalf of Rutland County Council. Ensure that services are sufficient and 
of good quality to meet all needs of children, families and adopters prior to and beyond the making of an adoption order.

OUTCOMES:
 Rutland to have a clear and updated Service Level Agreement (SLA) with 

Leicestershire with regards to our Adoption service 

 Rutland will work closely with Adoption Service to ensure practice for our children is 
at the highest possible level

 Rutland SLA with Leicestershire will be robust and ensure good standard practice 

MEASURED BY:

 Audit of children placed for adoption or in the process of being placed; practice is of a 
good or above standard 

 Monthly ‘Challenge Sessions’; managers across both Local Authority (LA) review and 
evaluate Rutland cases;  critical challenge leads to improved practice 

 Quarterly SLA monitoring meeting; contract review ensures continuing to meet 
highest standards

OBJECTIVES:

 All Rutland children who are assessed that adoption is the best outcome for them, will follow a thorough matching process to ensure they are matched with the best forever family 
possible. 

 All Rutland children will have access to timely assessment and timely adoption process where there is no delay 
 Adoption Support to children in Rutland will be delivered via the SLA and after the first 3 years Rutland will ensure support if needed is assessed and provided to ensure long term 

stability for our adoption children, young people and families 
 Rutland will ensure all children are matched, whether this is with connected person, foster carers or adopters to ensure we have the best permanency plan in place to meet their 

forever needs. 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 26

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

12.1 Review and update of the SLA  
update and all parties to sign and 
ensure applied to practice 

 Meeting has taken place and this has been reviewed 
and updated in the process of being signed off

May  2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

 Panel dates have been circulated and in managers 
diaries for attendance 

Completed March 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 We have new managers  in place who is approaching 
this with a clear and robust approach 

Completed March 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

Completed March 
2017

 Service Level Agreement (SLA) outlines the need for 
Rutland to attend a minimum of 4 panels a year – we 
will ensure we attend more than this to take 
ownership of our own cases To be embedded by 

June 2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Regular meetings have been set up with adoption 
manager to ensure we continue to progress and work 
together in improving adoption service 

Completed March 
2017

 Rebecca Wilshire  Rebecca Wilshire

12.2 Rutland managers will ensure 
attendance at the adoption panel 
including our Lead Member for 
children’s SC

 Portfolio Holder  will be looking to have some 
attendance 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 These have been set up and we have had two to date; 
both were very successful 

Completed March 
2017

 Rebecca Wilshire  Rebecca Wilshire

 Sessions have been excellent, have considered all 
children who are placed / being considered for 
adoption 

Review June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

12.3 Quarterly Bi-Monthly 
‘Challenge Sessions’ between 
Rutland Fostering and Adoption 
Team and Leicestershire Adoption 
where practice will be reviewed 
and challenged 

 There is critical reflection and appropriate challenge – 
chaired by Head of Social Care 

June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

12.4 New and improved adoption 
tracker to be designed in line with 
Leicestershire to ensure oversight 

 In process of being developed April 2017  Fostering and Adoption 
Team Manager 

 Rebecca Wilshire

12.5 All children placed for 
adoption or possible adoption will 
be reviewed at the Monthly 
ARC/CLA panel to ensure cases are 
progressing and challenge any 
potential delay 

 In place – this is considered each month at the panel 
and fully recorded 

Completed March 
2017 

 Rebecca Wilshire  Rebecca Wilshire



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 27

RECOMMENDATION:

13. Ensure that birth parents have access to support from someone independent of their child’s social worker when adoption is being considered.

OUTCOMES:

 When adoption is considered in Rutland for children, birth parents will have access to 
a support worker. 

 Birth parents will have access to a Child in Care family worker, who will provide 
support as needed during permanency planning 

MEASURED BY:

 Audits of cases; birth parents of those children placed for adoption have ready access 
to named support 

 Independent Review Officer  (IRO) reports;  oversight established, includes capture of 
birth parent support and feedback of satisfaction 

 Fostering and Adoption Team; process established for overseeing and line managing 
family workers ensuring birth family have access to support  

OBJECTIVES:

 Birth families in Rutland of children in care will have access to support independent of the children’s social worker 
 Birth families of those children where adoption is considered will be able to access support from a family worker 
 Rutland Children Social Care to become a learning organisation where feedback influences change 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 28

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 In progress – final stages of agreement May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill 

 Family Worker posts will commence following 16th 
May but in place. 

May 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

13.1 New re-structure of children 
social care will develop a Children 
in Care Family Worker role and 
they will be a linked person for 
birth families 

 Restructure now underway – 30 day staff consultation 
has commenced with regards to changes the 
restructure has brought 

16th May 17  Rebecca Wilshire 
 HR

 Tim O’Neill 

13.2 Independent Reviewing 
Officer (IRO) capacity will be 
increased and will also be able to 
provide independent support and 
oversight 

 In the process of recruiting. May 2017 (appoint)  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

13.3 Two full-time Children in Care 
Family Workers will focus on 
contact and life story work and 
supporting birth families 

 Workers in place – will commence role as part of the 
restructure 

May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

13.4 New restructure will include a 
new way of working, methodology 
to strengthen practice and enable 
us to reclaim children’s social care 

 Re structure is underway May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 29

RECOMMENDATION:

14. Ensure that all options for achieving permanence for children are given proper consideration, including, when appropriate, parallel planning and foster to adopt

OUTCOMES:

 All children and young people in Rutland who require becoming looked after will have 
a clear  plan for achieving permanence 

 Rutland will ensure 100% of children who come in to care have a parallel plan from 
the first review to be rehabilitate back home (where safe to do so) or have a clear 
plan of permanence 

 Children looked after in Rutland will have a clear permanency plan by their second 
CLA review 

 Rutland will develop opportunities with neighbouring authorities around possibilities 
of foster to adopt – this will develop in within the Regional Adoption Agency (RAA) 
work 

MEASURED BY:

 Audits: ensure permanence has been properly considered for 100% of children 
looked after 

 Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO)/Quality Assurance Manager: monitor 
permanence through Children Looked After reviews ; clear evidence of all options 
identified

 At Risk Children/Children Looked After (ARC/CLA) Panel: records/ minutes identify 
permanency monitoring of all Children looked After,  challenge evident where 
permanency not achieved 

OBJECTIVES:

 All children who are looked after in Rutland will have a clean plan for achieving permanence
 Every child looked after will have every opportunity to inform and be part of their permanency plan to ensure their wishes, views and feelings are fully considered 
 Birth families, carers and wider family will be invited to be involved in all planning and decision making when appropriate, to ensure all actions and decision taking is in the child best 

interest 
 All children in Rutland will receive a timely service where they have received in no delay in the care or service they have receive



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 30

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Completed in December 2016 Completed 
December 2016

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 We will review all children looked after at the 
monthly ARC/CLA panel to ensure cases are 
progressing 

Completed 
December 2016

 Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

14.1 Flow charts to be created to 
ensure a clear Permanence 
Pathway 

 Processes are in place to monitor and review all 
cases to ensure permanency is reached and 
considered in the early stages – we will ensure this 
is embedded over the next six months 

To be embedded 
August 2017 

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 In place, these have been set up and will continue Completed  Tracy Holliday
 Kate Dexter 

 Rebecca Wilshire14.2 Workshops for social workers 
to develop more knowledge and 
understanding around Children 
looked After process an 
permanence 

 We will ensure, over the next six months, workshops 
inform practice through our audits and though 
ensuring and seeing better outcomes for children. 

Programme during 
2017

 Tracy Holliday
 Kate Dexter 

 Rebecca Wilshire

14.3 Foster to Adopt to be 
discussed further with 
Leicestershire who provide our 
adoption regarding opportunities 

 Discussions in progress as is discussion around 
Regional Adoption Agencies – therefore this is one 
we continue to review and meet about to ensure we 
have the best possible service for Rutland children 

Planning will be in 
progress by 
September 2017 

 Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

 In progress – foster and adoption team and going 
over all children looked after and completing 
matching paperwork where this has not previous 
been done 

May 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire14.4 We will ensure all children 
looked after are matched fully, 
some retrospective but all will be 
completed

 New children entering care will be matched from 
the outset, we have a clear process of all new 
children becoming looked after 

Completed March 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

14.5 ARC / CLA Panel will include 
Permanency Monitoring of all CLA 
to ensure robust, critical challenge 
an oversight. 

 Complete – all children looked after are considered 
in this panel and we review the matching tracker 
every month 

Completed February  
2017 

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 31

RECOMMENDATION:

15.  Improve the quality of information which children have access to, both now and in the future, such as child permanence reports and later-life letters. Ensure that all children in 
permanent placements receive life-story work.

OUTCOMES:

 Every child looked after in Rutland will receive life story work which help them 
understand their journey 

 Every child where permanency is achieved will have life story  worker complete by a 
dedicated worker 

 Life story work in Rutland is complete in a timely manner 

 All children who are placed for adoption have life story and later life letters 

MEASURED BY:

 Audits of children looked after: case recording and access to records are clear and 
accessible to children and young people. 

 Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO): monitoring ensures such work is completed as 
per timescales 

 At Risk Children/Children Looked After (ARC/CLA) panel: records/ minutes identify 
scrutiny and challenge 

 Group supervision:  case work and case direction has oversight and timely actions 
which include life story and later life letters. 

OBJECTIVES:

 All children and young people in Rutland will access to quality information about their lives and their journey 
 All children in permanent placements will receive life story work 
 Children placed for addition will have high quality life story work and timely later life letters 
 Information recorded and stored on our system will be done in a manner which is considered high quality, clear and concise 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 32

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 All cases are being reviewed to ensure all children 
where permanency is agreed,  a CPR is in place (some 
may be retrospective but will still be completed) 

July 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire15.1 All children in care where 
permanency is achieved will have a 
Child’s Permanence Report (CPR) 

 Oversight in the early stages through all the 
mechanisms in place  will ensure CPR and 
permanency is considered early 

May 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 In progress – the new restructure will allow dedicated 
people to focus on life story work

July 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 We will need to review all children waiting for life 
story and consider resources to ensure this is 
completed in a timely manner 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Future cases will be referred to dedicated workers 
from the outcome when they enter care and once 
permanency agreed for life story work to complete 

May 2017 (see 15.1)  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

15.2 Life Story work to be 
complete on all children currently 
placed for adoption as priority 

 Workshops on life story work will be undertaken 
within the Children’s Conference in July  

July 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 This will be agreed through group supervision as 
management oversight of cases and cases 
work/progressions will be present 

May 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 A list of all children waiting later life letters to be 
compiled 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

15.3 Later life letters for those 
children who are adopted adoption 
to be completed without delay 

 Focus on those placed and then those waiting – 
timescales will be set in all future such cases 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

15.4 Adoption cases will be 
reviewed monthly at ARC/CLA 
Panel to ensure oversight 

 This will ensure oversight and all discussions will be 
logged on child file. This has been in place but we 
need this to be embedded 

June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire
 Kate Dexter

 Tim O’Neill



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 33

RECOMMENDATION:

16. Ensure that children have timely access to health services, including specialist provision.

OUTCOMES:

 All children looked after in Rutland will have timely access to health services

 All children looked after will have robust Strengths, Difficulties Questionnaires (SDQs) 
which inform their health assessments and wellbeing being 

 All children in Rutland will have access to health services, and where specialist 
provision is required, this will be done in a timely manner 

MEASURED BY:

 Children looked after: At Risk Children and Children Looked After (ARC/CLA) Panel 
minutes:  timeliness of all Initial Health Assessments (IHA) and  Review Health 
Assessment (RHAs) 

 Children looked after: ARC/CLA panel : CLA Health Rep evidences challenge back to 
ensure timely information is shared 

 Audits: health of children is high on the agenda which ensure health needs are being 
identified in all assessments and needs met

 All plans set clear expectation for needs being met 
 Group supervision:  oversight and critical challenge of practice and outcomes is 

evident in meeting records and reflected in future practice

OBJECTIVES:

 All children looked after in Rutland will have access to health service in a timely manner 
 All children in Rutland where health needs have been identified will have a clear plan to meet such needs, Rutland will consistently ensure health needs are met including purchasing 

specialist service if in child’s best interest to do so



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 34

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

16.1 Tracker to be devised of all 
Initial Health Assessments (IHA) 
and Review Health Assessments 
(RHA) to allow oversight and 
challenge (the tracker will be 
reviewed at each ARC/CLA panel) 

 Completed and is being reviewed at each panel Completed January 
2017  

 Long Term Team 
Manager

 Rebecca Wilshire

 Completed Completed February 
2017

 Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Over the next three months we want to see this 
develop so all IHA/RHA have sight of the SDQ before 
completion 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Over the next six months we want to ensure SDQ 
information is embedded in assessments of children 
to further identify their needs and ensure plans 
address this 

September 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

16.2Tracker to include Strength, 
Difficulties Questionnaire’s (SDQ’s) 
and be held in a central place to 
ensure oversight  

 Officers to have a clear understanding and use the 
SDQ to inform their plans, assessment and thinking – 
all SDQ will be taken to group supervision for 
reflection and discussion 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Ensuring children have access to counselling services 
as needed – list to be compiled of appropriate 
services which we can access 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Ensure IHA/RHA as well as SDQ consider fully the 
needs of the child and services commissioned as 
needed to meet those needs – in progress 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

16.3 Ensure children have access to 
specialist service as required 

 Working group with CAMHS – to develop further a 
more joint working approach 

June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

16.4 Ensure health colleagues are 
included in CPB and ARC/CLA panel

 Health are in attendance at panels and we continue to 
ensure this is embedded 

June 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 35

RECOMMENDATION:

17. Increase the extent to which workers consider the long-term arrangements when placing children looked after with foster carers, so that more are able to stay put when they become 
18 years old.

OUTCOMES:

 Officers will fully consider all children and younger people’s long term needs at the 
earliest opportunity 

 Young people make successful transitions to adulthood and achieve their aspirations 
through having the care, support and help they need from Rutland County Council 
acting as corporate parents.

 All Care leavers receive the help they need through having well developed Pathway 
Plans in place.

 Young people looked after, will have permanency considered at an early stage and 
there longer term needs will be fully considered including staying pout 

 Foster carer training and recruitment will have a focus on staying put scheme to 
support our care leavers even further 

MEASURED BY:

 Audits will measure the quality and long term arrangements of placements 

 Child, young person and family feedback to enable us to measure what is working 
well and what needs to be further improved 

 Foster carer feedback: to enable us to measure what is working well and what needs 
to be further improved 

 Care leaver pledges: will be measured quality to ensure Rutland County Council 
promise is adhere to, this feedback will be delivered to the Corporate Parenting 
Board each quarter 

 Data: provides clear analysis of number of care leavers in staying put arrangements or 
alternative for the CPB; number of care leavers in staying put arrangements or 
alternative improves 

 CPB minutes/ reports: consistently offer officers critical challenge around children’s 
long term needs, specially of our care leavers, leading to continued successes 

OBJECTIVES: deliver our Corporate Parenting Pledges

 All children who become looked after have their longer term arrangements considered at an early stage when placed with foster carers, staying put options will be consistently 
considered for all our children in care. 

 Rutland County Council to be a learning organisation which is led by practice, family and carer feedback 



Ofsted Action Plan Final Version April 2017

Achieved On Track to Achieve Not yet on Track
P a g e  | 36

ACTION PROGRESS TARGET DATE ACCOUNTABILITY MONITOR/EVALUATER

 Children Looked After pledges are already written and 
launched and they include care leavers and feedback 
gathered from young people prior to Corporate 
Parenting Board  to ensure we are delivering on our 
promise 

Completed  Kevin Quinn
 Kate Dexter 

 Rebecca Wilshire 17.1 Care leaver strategy and 
pledges to be written and launched 

 We will as part of updating the strategy, review 
pledges for care leavers to make these more specific 

April 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 Strategy is underway as is recruitment and staying put 
option will ensure this is clear

April 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

 We are restructuring CSC to further support care 
leavers and promote staying put by having Personal 
Advisors to Care Leavers move to the Fostering, 
Adoption & Care Leaver team so have more focus on 
care leavers

May 2017  Rebecca Wilshire  Tim O’Neill

17.2 Foster carer recruitment will 
include the need for Staying Put 
commitments 

 Permanency planning will consider staying put at the 
placement stage for older children and by 2nd  Child 
Looked After review in line with progressing 
permanency planning 

July 2017  Tracy Holliday
 Kate Dexter

 Rebecca Wilshire

17.3 All 15½ years olds will have a 
Needs Led Assessment to fully 
inform a plan and support 
outcomes  

 In progress - we have a worker who will undertake all 
needs led assessments 

 Dependent on recruitment to second half of post, 
interviews in May 2017

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

17.4 All 16 + will have a clear and 
robust Pathway Plan 

 In progress – all children have a pathway plan but we 
need to ensure all children have a robust and smart 
pathway plan so all will be reviewed 

June 2017  Kate Dexter  Rebecca Wilshire

END



Report No: 91/2017 
PUBLIC REPORT 

SCRUTINY PANEL 

April 2017 

POVERTY IN RUTLAND: GREEN PAPER 

Report of the Scrutiny Commission 

Strategic Aim: All 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

N/A 

Contact Officer(s): Helen Briggs, Chief Executive  01572 758201 
hbriggs@rutland.gov.uk 

 Natasha Brown, Corporate Support 
Coordinator 

01572 720991 
nbrown@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors N/A 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Panel: 

1. Endorses the green paper which has been developed through the scrutiny process; 

2. Discusses the issues raised and provides a response to the consultation on the Green 
Paper; and 

3. Formulates recommendations which will be included in the White Paper to be 
presented to Council in June 2017. 

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 To present the findings of the Scrutiny Poverty Review in a Green Paper which 
has been produced in order to encourage further discussion of the topics and 
some of the issues raised through consultation with Elected Members, Key 
Partners and Members of the Public;  

1.2 For the Panel to provide feedback on the discussion points highlighted by the 
paper as part of the consultation process and to formulate recommendations 
which will be included in the White Paper to be presented to Council in June 2017. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 The Scrutiny Commission agreed to undertake a review of Poverty in Rutland in 
August 2016.  The project objectives were: 



 To develop an agreed definition(s) of Poverty in Rutland; 

 To develop a Council policy in the form of a White Paper to be  
approved by Full Council that will outline for Rutland how the Council  
will act to positively impact on poverty within the County. 

2.2 An all Members Workshop held on 13 September 2016 identified a list of areas for 
further investigation (listed in Appendix A to the Green Paper).  These areas were 
then investigated and discussed at corresponding Scrutiny Panel meetings during 
November and December 2016 and February 2017. 

2.3 This green paper is a culmination of the work done at the Workshop (September 
2016) and within the scrutiny panels.  Further feedback on the format and content 
of the Green Paper was provided at an All Member Workshop in March 2017 
where the paper, the revised timetable and scope of the consultation was 
endorsed by those members present. 

3 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 Through the Scrutiny function, the Poverty Review has identified that there are 
pockets of deprivation in Rutland and many people may find themselves 
challenged by their economic circumstances for periods of time.  Rutland is a 
largely affluent community and this can mean that support mechanisms are 
lacking and it is more difficult for those who need support to speak out.  The 
review has highlighted a number of areas where action is required to improve our 
support to those at ‘risk of’ or living in policy.  The Green Paper is not a final 
document but has been produced in order to encourage further discussion of 
these topics and some of the issues raised through consideration of the questions 
posed. 

3.2 Through a period of consultation the views of Elected Members, Key Partners and 
members of the public will inform the next steps of the review and a series of 
recommendations which will focus on both solutions and prevention.  These 
recommendations will be accompanied by an action plan to enable the outcomes 
of the review to be measured and monitored.  The recommendations and action 
plan will be presented to RCC Full Council in June 2017 in the form of a White 
Paper. 

4 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

4.1 There are no additional papers. 

5 APPENDICES  

5.1 Green Paper: Poverty in Rutland (Including Appendix A (Feedback from 
September Workshop) and Appendix B (Supporting Data). 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  



 

 

Pov

Gre

March

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

verty i

een Pa

h 2017  

in Rut

aper 

tland:: Scruutiny RRevieew 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Table
 

Forewo

Backgr

How to

Statisti

The Sc

Conclu

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

e of Cont

ord from th

round and 

o Respond 

cal Eviden

crutiny Pha

usion and N

ents 

he Scrutiny

Introductio

to the Gre

nce and Inf

ase ...........

Next Steps

y Commiss

on ............

een Paper 

formation .

................

s ...............

sion ..........

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

................

 

 

......... 3 

......... 4 

......... 8 

......... 9 

....... 10 

....... 18 



 

 

Forew
 

In Augu
Panels
approa
Rutland
new po
our me
as eac
in the p

Rutland
know th
see in 
loneline
when w
Rutland

Throug
area, b
feel fur
that we
manag
well-off
and ac

Scrutin
Worksh
summa
and su
endors

We wa
that the

The Sc

 

 

 

 

word from

ust 2016 S
s, decided t
ach to Ove
d County C
olicy for tha
embers' ex
h councillo
policy-mak

d is a grea
here are is
small area
ess and ru
we produce
d.  

gh the revie
but the resu
rther margi
e look more
ged in a wa
f, whilst en

ccessible to

ny Panels h
hop held in
arised in th
ggestions 

sed by Full 

ant to thank
e outcome

crutiny Co

m the Sc

Scrutiny Co
to underta
rview and 
Council ide
at area. By
perience, s

or who repr
king proces

at place to 
ssues of re
as of the Co
ural isolatio
e policies a

ew so far w
ult of this is
inalised an
e closely a

ay that mak
nsuring tha
o all that ne

have consi
n Septemb
his Green P
for further 
council.  

k everyone
 will be a g

ommission

crutiny C

ommission
ke a review
Scrutiny a

entifying a 
y adopting t
skills and k
resents the
ss 

live and wo
elative pove
ounty but t

on. It is righ
and our firs

we have le
s that thos
nd reluctan
at local nee
kes sure w

at support a
eed it. 

idered som
ber 2016. D
Paper whic
action wh

e who has 
genuinely p

n (Councill

Commiss

, with supp
w of Pover
nd would s
policy area
this new a
knowledge
em will be 

ork. Howev
erty. These
they can a
ht and prop
st aim will 

arnt that R
e suffering

nt to ask fo
eds and ho
we don’t ad
and advice

me key issu
Discussions
ch is aimed
ich will info

been invol
positive on

lors Burkitt

ion 

port from M
rty in Rutla
see the Sc
a and deve
pproach w

e, which wi
more direc

ver, even w
e can be v
lso be hidd
per that we
be to defin

Rutland is s
g from or o
r help.  Th

ow all our f
versely aff

e is readily 

ues followi
s held at th
d at promo
orm a polic

lved in the 
ne for the R

t, Conde, D

Members o
nd.  This w

crutiny func
eloping an 

we will gain
ll benefit a
ctly and po

within our p
isible issue
den away, 
e consider 
ne what pov

seen as a r
n the verge
is is why w
uture polic
fect those w
available, 

ng an All M
hose panel
ting discus

cy stateme

project so
Rutland Co

Dale and L

of Scrutiny 
would be a
ction within
over-archi

n the benef
all our resid
ositively inv

population
es that we 
for examp
all residen

overty is in 

relatively a
e of povert

we want to 
cies can be
who are le
well public

Member 
ls are 
ssion, feed
ent to be 

o far and ho
ommunity. 

Lammie) 

 

 

 new 
n 
ing 
fit of all 
dents, 
volved 

n, we 
can 

ple 
nts 

affluent 
ty can 
ensure 

e 
ess 
cised 

dback 

ope 



1

2

 

 

Backg
 

1) Scope
 
There i
poverty
families
‘povert
families
growth
additio
review 

i. 
ii. 
iii. 

2) The Pr
 
Having
worksh
membe

a

b

c

d

 
e

 
Followi
the fou
panels 
from ex
 

ground	a

e of the Re

is a strong
y”, but also
s where th
ty’ situation
s and our c
 will assist
n to this th
as follows

Education
Tackling th
Poverty Pr
 

rocess 

g establishe
hop was he
ers were in

a) Establis
awaren
 

b) Establis
 

c) Agree t
 

d) Identify 
the revi

e) Identify 

ing the wo
ur scrutiny 

(Appendix
xpert witne

nd	Introd

eview 

g need not 
o to make s
hey are at r
n. Our Corp
community
t in genera
here are thr
s:- 

 and Advic
he stigma 
roofing. 

ed the inte
eld in Sept
nvited. The

sh a databa
ess and kn

sh the obje

he process

the areas 
ew 

potential e

rkshop a p
panels to i
x A). This i
esses and 

duction

only to sup
sure that w
risk from ch
porate Pla
y to reach t
ting and su
ree strands

ce; 
of poverty;

ention to co
ember 201

e workshop

ase and pr
nowledge a

ectives for t

s for the re

which me

expert witn

programme
nvestigate
ncluded an
exploring s

pport those
we do all w
hanging ci
n highlight
their full po
upporting e
s of Corpo

; and 

onsider the
16 to which
p was used

rofile of po
amongst o

the review

eview 

mbers wis

nesses  

e of work w
e a range o
n examina
some of th

e who find 
we can to su

rcumstanc
ts the need
otential. Th
enhanced 

orate work 

e subject of
h all Rutlan
d to: 

overty infor
our Membe

w 

h to consid

was then p
of issues re
tion of the 

he solutions

themselve
upport indi

ces of movi
d to suppor
he focus w
economic 
that will be

f poverty w
nd County 

mation for 
ers 

der in more

ut in place 
elating spe
evidence 

s to the iss

es “living in
ividuals an
ing into a 
rt individua

within the pl
prosperity

e specific to

within Rutla
Council 

Rutland –

e detail as 

 to allow e
cifically to 
base, hea

sues identif

 

 

n 
nd 

als, 
lan on 

y. In 
o this 

and a 

 raise 

part of 

ach of 
their 
ring 
fied. 



 

 

This gr
scrutiny
recomm
forward

The pro

Stage 
All mem

Panel w
Paper 

All Mem

Green 

Consul

Panel r
and for
recomm
Paper 
White P

White P

 

3) Object

The rev
find the
that we
changi
primary

1. To 
2. To 

Cou
on p

reen paper
y panels s
mendation
d so far. 

ocess and

mber work

work to de

mber Work

paper to C

ltation on G

respond to
rmulate 
mendation

Paper to C

Paper to C

tives of th

view has id
emselves ‘
e do all we
ng circums
y objective

develop an
develop a 
uncil that w
poverty wit

r is a culmi
o far.  It is 
s but to dr

 planned ti

kshop 

velop Gree

kshop 

Cabinet 

Green Pap

o Consultat

s for White

Cabinet 

Council 

he Review 

dentified th
living in po
 can to sup
stances of 

e of this rev

n agreed d
Council po

will outline 
thin the Co

nation of t
not intend
aw togethe

imetable fo

Pan
 

en Adu

Chil

Plac

Res

 

N/A

per N/A

tion 

e 

Adu
Chil
Plac
Res
N/R

N/R

hat there is
overty’. How
pport indiv
moving int

view will be

definition(s)
olicy in the
for Rutland

ounty. 

the work do
ded to prov
er the issu

or the revie

nel 

ults 

dren’s 

ces 

sources 

 

 

ults 
dren’s 

ces 
sources 
R 

R 

s a real nee
wever, the
iduals and
to a ‘pover
e: 

) of Povert
e form of a 
d how the 

one at the 
vide conclu
es raised a

ew can be 

ed to do m
ere is also a
d families w
rty’ situatio

ty in Rutlan
White Pap
Council wi

Workshop
sions and 

and propos

found in th

Date 
13th Se

and 1st

and 2n

17th No
23rd Fe
24th No
9th Feb
10th No
16th Fe
28 Mar

Electro

3rd Apr
2017 
6th Apr
4th May
20th Ap
27th Ap
16th Ma

June C

more to sup
a strong ne

where they 
on.  With th

nd 
per to be ap
ll act to po

p and within

sals for act

he table be

eptember 2

t Decembe
nd February

ovember 2
ebruary 20
ovember 2
bruary 201
ovember 2
ebruary 20
rch 2017 

onic Circula

ril 2017 – 2

ril 2017 
y 2017 
pril 2017 
pril 2017 
ay 2017 

Council 

pport those
eed to mak
are at risk

hat in mind

pproved by
ositively im

 

 

n the 

tion put 

elow: 

2016 

er 2016 
y 

2016 and 
017 
2016 and 
7 

2016 and 
17 

ation 

28th April 

e who 
ke sure 
k from 
 the 

y Full 
pact 



4

5

 

 

4) The Co

In Rutla
Very ea

a) 

b) 
 

c) 

 
Membe
‘definiti

 
 
 
 

 
 

5) The De

Poverty
materia
econom
relative

Absolu
needs 

               
1 “ Pover

ontext of P

and the co
arly in the 

Relative p
community
of the pove
support m
prevalent a
started to 
 
Pockets of

The reality
experience
many insta
redundanc

ers were ke
ion’ of pov

Relative p
Crisis – ca
An accept
The Rutlan
solution fo
The vital im
Stigma as

efinition o

y is genera
al possess
mic and po
e. 

ute poverty
such as fo

                      
ty – United N

Poverty in

ontext looks
process th

overty is a
y individua
erty spectr
echanisms
are scarce
emerge in 

f deprivatio

y is that alm
e poverty a
ances beyo
cy or relatio

een theref
verty. They 

overty and
aused by a
tance that ‘
nd’s isolate

or poverty 
mportance
sociated w

of Poverty 

al scarcity,
sions or mo
olitical elem

y or destitut
ood, clothin

                      
ations Educat

n Rutland

s and feels
he following

a key issue
als and fam
rum. As the
s that migh
e. E.g. It is

Rutland.

on exist wit

most anyon
at a point in
ond their c
onship bre

ore not to 
were clea

d disadvant
a range of c
‘Capital ric
ed commu

e of informa
with poverty

 dearth, or
oney. It is a
ments. Pov

tion refers 
ng and she

 
tional, Scientif

s different 
g became 

e within Rut
milies living
e incidence
ht be prese
only recen

thin otherw

ne within th
n time thro

control. For
eakdown. 

be restricte
ar that this 

tage 
circumstan
ch’ does no
unity brings

ation, advic
y and entit

r the state 
a multiface
verty may b

to the lack
elter1. 

fic and Cultur

to that with
apparent:-

tland. It isn
g next to ea
e of povert

ent in areas
ntly that dis

wise affluen

he Rutland
ough chang
r example 

ed in their 
review was

nces 
ot equate to
s with it diff

ce and sup
tlement to a

of one who
eted conce
be defined 

k of means

al Organisatio

hin the nati
- 

n’t unusual
ach other a
ty is compa
s where po
scount reta

nt commun

d communi
ges in circu
bereavem

interpretat
s about:- 

o the mean
ferent caus

pport 
assistance

o lacks a c
pt which in
as either a

s necessar

on 2014” 

ional conte

l to find wit
at opposite
aratively lo
overty is m
ailers have

nities. 

ity can 
umstance 
ent, illness

tion of a 

ns to live o
ses of  and

e 

certain amo
ncludes so
absolute of

ry to meet 

 

 

ext. 

thin a 
e ends 
ow the 

more 
 

- in 
s, 

on 
d 

ount of 
cial, 
f 

basic 



6

 

 

Relativ
pattern
person

The rec
on thos
Nationa
nationa
Table 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

6) The De
 
Pov
info
feel
und
whi
hide
thei

 

 

 

               
2 Monito
3 We can
Rowntree

ve poverty 
n’ – they’re
n enjoys. 

cent period
se living in
al policy In
al figures e
1 

In 2014 th
equating to
The numb
The numb
household
in a row 
Evictions b
The numb
1.4 million
Over the la
while child
Child pove
age pover

efinition o

verty in Ru
ormation an
l out of rea

derstood.   
ch on the o
e or ignore
ir issues.   

                      
ring poverty a
 solve poverty
e foundation 

generally m
 excluded 

d of nation
 real and r

nstitute2 an
etc. include

ere were 1
o 21% of t

ber of priva
ber of hous
ds in tempo

by landlord
ber of peop
 children a
ast 25 yea

d poverty ra
erty is proje
rty is likely 

of Poverty 

tland man
nd advice c
ach in term

In Rutland
outside ap

e the burde

                      
and social exc
y in the UK ‐ a
‐ September 6

means tha
from the a

al and glob
relative pov
nd the Jose
ed in Table

13.5 million
he UK pop
te renters 
eholds acc

orary accom

ds are near
ple in pover
are in long-
rs income 
ates remai
ected to ris
to rise in th

in Rutlan

ifests itself
can be diff

ms of both c
d those in p
ppears to b
en of their f

 
lusion 2016 (M
a strategy for g
6th 2016 

at a person
activities an

bal austeri
verty. Rece
eph Rownt
e 1. 

n people liv
pulation 
in poverty 
cepted as 
mmodation

r a 10 year
rty in a wo
-term work
poverty am

in high at 2
se it sharpl
he longer t

d 

f in a feelin
ficult to acc
cost and th
poverty ma

be relatively
financial di

MPSE) – 7th D
governments,

 cannot aff
nd opportu

ty has led 
ent docum
tree Found

ving in low 

has doubl
homeless 
n have bot

r high 
rking famil

kless house
mongst pe
29% 
ly over the
term unles

ng of financ
cess and s
he ability to
ay feel mar
y affluent a
ifficulties re

ecember 2016
, businesses, c

ford an ‘ord
nities that 

to need to
ents produ
ation3 (JR

income ho

ed over th
and the nu

th increase

y is 55% a
eholds 
nsioners fr

 next four y
ss action is

cial isolatio
services an
o understan
rginalised f
and as suc
esulting in 

6 ‐ New policy
communities 

dinary livin
the averag

o refocus a
uced by the
F) identifie

ouseholds 

e last deca
umber of 
ed for five y

a record hig

rom 40% to

years - wo
s taken now

on where 
nd support 
nd and be 
from a soc

ch people m
an escala

y Institute 
and citizens ‐ 

 

 

ng 
ge 

ttention 
e 
ed the 

ade 

years 

gh 

o 13% 

orking 
w 

can 

ciety 
may 
tion of 

Joseph 



 

 

How	t
 

This pa
an inte

The pa

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Gr
will be 

Respon
April 20

 

 

to	Respon

aper is inte
erest will re

aper will be

Citizens A
Healthwat
East Leice
Clockwise
Oakham M
Uppingham
Market Ov
Empingha
Director fo
Town/Pari
Churches 
Rutland P
Leicesters
Leicesters
Spire Hom
Communit
Leics and 
Rotary Clu
Leics, Nor
Rutland Sc
Rutland N
Rutland Yo
Rutland Lo

reen Pape
encourage

nses to the
017. 

nd	to	the

ended as th
espond. 

e distribute

Advice Rutl
tch Rutland
estershire a
e Credit Un
Medical Pra
m Surgery 
verton and 
am Medical
or Public H
sh Counci
Together 
rimary and

shire Police
shire Comb
mes 
ty Agents 
Rutland W

ub of Rutla
rthamptons
couts 
eighbourh
outh Coun
ocal Strate

r will be pu
ed to respo

e consultat

e	Green	P

he start of 

d to Electe

and  
d  
and Rutlan
ion  
actice 

Somerby 
l  Centre 
ealth 
ls 

d Secondar
e 
bined Fire A

Womens Ins
and 
shire and R

ood Watch
ncil 
egic Partne

ublicised on
ond. 

tion on the

Paper	

a consulta

ed Membe

nd Clinical 

Surgery 

ry Schools

Authority 

stitute 

Rutland Arm

h 

ers 

n the RCC

e RCC Pov

ation and it 

rs and key

Commissi

s 

my Cadet 

C Website a

verty Revie

is hoped t

y partners i

oning Grou

Force 

and memb

w should b

that anyon

including: 

up 

bers of the 

be received

 

 

e with 

public 

d by 28 



 

 

Statis
 

In exam
includin
docum
 
Rutland
authori
suffer f
aware 
Rutland

A snap
informa
Rutland
 
Table 2

Food b

Homele

Childre
School

Househ

Hardsh

Housin

Numbe

Debt e

 

This ov
be foun

               
4 Rutland
advice R

tical	Evid

mining pov
ng nationa
ent produc

d is 148/15
ities in Eng
from incom
of health in
d currently

pshot of Ru
ation dispe
d. 

2 

bank vouch

essness a

en eligible a
l Meals 

holds living

hip applica

ng Benefits

er of childre

nquiries to

verview of 
nd in Appe

                      
d – the best 

Rutland 

dence	an

verty within
al and local
ced by Citiz

52 in terms
gland. How

me, employ
nequalities
y affects 50

utland spec
els the ‘myt

hers issued

pplications

and claimi

g in Fuel P

tions 

s claimants

en living in

o the Rutlan

informatio
endix B – S

                      
place to live

nd	Inform

n Rutland a
l sources. 
zens Advic

s of the ind
wever we d
yment, edu
s and barrie
05 children

cific data in
th’ that pov

d in Rutlan

s 

ng for Free

Poverty 

s  

n poverty 

nd CAB 

n is drawn
Supporting 

 
…… For eve

mation	

a number o
Information
ce Rutland

dex of mult
do know tha
ucation, ski
ers to hous

n under 16 

n relation t
verty and r

nd 306

67 (

e 272

10.6

205

203

8.5%

141

n from a mu
Evidence,

eryone? A re

of data sou
n has also 

d in 20164.

tiple depriv
at there ar
ills and tra
sing and fu
(8.5%)). 

o poverty i
relative pov

6 issued du

(15/16) 

2 (15/16) 

6% (2014)

5 received 

31 

% 

5 during 1

uch larger 
, Poverty in

port on pove

urces have 
been draw

vation uppe
e wards w
ining depri
uel poverty

is captured
verty does

uring 2014/

during 15/

5/16 

evidence b
n Rutland. 

erty in Rutlan

e been exa
wn from a 

er tier loca
within Rutla
ivation. We
y. Child Po

d in Table 
sn’t exist in

/15 

16 

base which

nd 2016. Citiz

 

 

mined 

l 
nd that 
e are 
overty in 

2. This 

h can 

zens 



 

 

The	S
 
Further
of area
outcom

1) Re
an

Iss

Pro

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

crutiny	P

r to the init
as was high
me of these

eview of th
d 16 Febr

sues Ident

 The aw
solutio
other i

 A num
crisis s
year; 

 Most a
award
allevia

 The C
what i

 It was 
made 

oposals fo

 To upd
suppo

 To cre
better 

Questions

1) Ho
to 

2) Co
3) Is 
4) Co

ad

Phase	

tial worksh
hlighted fo
e investigat

he Crisis F
uary 2017

tified 

ward syste
on rather th
issues that

mber of peo
situations e

awards are
 achieved 

ate the cris
Council doe

mpact (if a
not curren
contact fo

or Action 

date the lis
ort. 
eate a profi

understan

s 

ow could th
ensure bet

ould the fun
the curren

ould award
dvice/suppo

hop attende
r further in
tions can b

Fund (Res
7) 

em focuses
han analys
t may be c
ople submi
even thoug

e not subje
its purpos
is; 

es not curre
any) the cri
ntly possibl
r support d

st of identif

ile of peop
nd the circu

he availabil
tter take up
nding be u
t scheme w
s be made
ort? 

ed by Mem
nvestigation
be found b

sources Sc

s more on 
sing the ap
contributing
t repeat ap
gh the fund

ect to any ty
e or if refu

ently routin
sis funds a
le to track 
due to Data

fied organi

ple who app
umstances

lity of supp
p? 
sed in a di
working to 

e on condit

mbers on 13
n by individ
elow: 

crutiny Pa

the crisis i
plicants ov

g to their ne
pplications
d is limited

ype of revi
sed what s

nely review
awarded h
which clien
a protectio

sations tha

ply for crisi
s of those w

port/entitle

fferent way
help those

ion that an

3 Septemb
dual Scruti

anel 10 No

tself and a
verall situa
eed for sup
 for the sa
 to 3 award

ew or follo
steps the a

w the syste
ad on the c
nts referre
n issues.  

at were ab

is fund awa
who apply f

ments be t

y?   
e in need? 
 applicant 

ber 2016, a
ny Panels

ovember 2

an immedia
ation, lifesty
pport; 
me or sim
ds per fina

ow up to se
applicant to

m to disco
claimants; 
d to CAB a

le to provid

ards in ord
for suppor

targeted 

seeks 

 

 

a list 
.  The 

017 

ate 
yle and 

ilar 
ancial 

ee if the 
ook to 

over 
and 

actually 

de 

der to 
rt. 



 

 

2) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) 

Financial 
 
Issues Ide
 

 Individ
often t

 It was 
 People
 It wou

assista
signpo

Debt Reco
and 16 Fe

Issues Ide

 People
 People
 People

incurri
 People

time a
keep t

 Sendin
it just 
paying

 Housin
growin

Question

5) Ho
sta

6) Ho
m

7) Co
Ru

8) Ho
9) Ho

re

Awarenes

entified 

duals were
too late; 
considere

e are not a
ld be helpf
ance was u
osted to the

overy Pro
ebruary 20

entified 

e with debt
e are reluc
e often ign
ng fees lat
e often agr

and then an
to the arran
ng debts to
makes thin
g a lot mor
ng Benefit 
ng as peop

ns 

ow could p
age? 
ow can Chi
ore financi
ould the pr
utland Com
ow could th
ow can info
covery lett

ss (Resou

 often relu

ed importan
aware what
ful if the lis
up-to-date
ese associ

cess (Res
017) 

t are not a
ctant to con
ore the ea
ter on; 
ree to paym
n unexpect
ngement s
o bailiffs w
ngs worse 
e than thei
overpaym

ple don’t re

people be e

ildren and 
ially literate
rovision of 
mmunity be
he recover
ormation c
ters be imp

urces Scru

ctant to se

nt to teach 
t help is av

st of identif
.  People i
iations.   

sources S

lways in fin
ntact the C
arly letters 

ment arran
ted cost co

so they stop
works as lot

as more fe
ir original d

ment debt w
eport their c

encouraged

Young peo
e? 
financial a

e improved
ry process 
contained w
proved? 

utiny Pane

eek advice 

financial li
vailable; an
fied organis
n financial 

crutiny Pa

nancial diff
Council or a

and miss o

ngements t
omes along
p paying a
ts of people
ees are ad
debt; 
will get mor
change in 

d to seek a

ople be sup

advice and 
d? 
be improv

within Coun

el 10 Nove

and when 

ife skills at
nd 
sations wh
difficulty c

anel 10 No

ficulties; 
avoid our c
opportunitie

that they ca
g that mea
ltogether; 
e pay but f
ded so peo

re difficult t
circumstan

dvice at an

pported to 

support to

ed? 
ncil Tax/De

ember 201

 they did it

t an early a

ho could als
could then 

ovember 2

calls; 
es to avoid

an afford a
ans they do

for some p
ople end u

to collect a
nces in a ti

n early 

become 

o the 

ebt 

 

 

6) 

t was 

age; 

so offer 
be 

2016 

d 

at the 
on’t 

people 
up 

and it is 
imely 



 

 

 

 

4) 

 

 

 

 

 

way a
overpa

 Furthe
and th

 
 
 
 
 
 

Childcare
17 Novem

Issues Ide

 The pr
entitle
implem
Early Y

 The im
impac

 Suppo
inform
and ta

 Paying
provid
or wou
provis
 

Question

10) Ho
rea

11) Ho
ma
su

Questions 

12) Wha
chil

13) How
on c

14) Cou
flex
club

15) How
16) Wha

fund
17) How

attr

nd people 
ayment ba
er welfare r
he Benefit C

e and the i
mber 2016 

entified 

roposed E
ments for t

mented, co
Years Prov

mminent (N
t dispropor

ort needs to
mation to en
argets fami
g for essen
ers repres
uld like to w
ion of this 

ns 

ow can peo
alistic paym
ow could th
anaged to 

uffering fro

at are the k
ldcare in R
w might oth
childcare? 
uld free ent
xible so it c
bs? 
w could the
at can be d
ding to sup
w can after
active? 

are often o
ck; and 
reform cha
Cap may im

mpact on 
and 23 Fe

arly Years
three to fo

ould have a
viders; 

National) cu
rtionately o
o be close
nsure the s
lies most i

ntial childca
sents a sign
work full tim
care. 

ople be enc
ment arran
he impact o
mitigate th
m Poverty?

key consid
Rutland? 
her areas o

titlement fo
could cover

e take up o
done to ens
pport child
r school clu

on low inco

anges such
mpact on h

 Poverty (
ebruary 20

 National F
ur year old
a significan

uts in fund
on Rutland
ly monitore
small amou
n need. 
are before
nificant fina
me.  Many 

couraged t
ngements?
of Universa

he impact o
? 

erations fo

of the Coun

or childcar
r longer tim

of free scho
sure Rutlan

dcare provi
ubs be mad

omes and 

h as the rol
household 

(People (C
017) 

Funding Fo
ds from 15 
nt impact o

ing for chil
d residents
ed though 
unt of fund

 and after 
ancial burd
people re

o set up m
 
al Credit an
on those m

or influenci

ncil, and pa

e be impro
me periods

ool meals b
nd receives
sion? 
de more af

struggle to

ll out of Un
budgets. 

Children’s)

ormula to in
to 30 hour

on the viab

d care sup
; and 
the collect
ing has the

school from
den for par
ly on friend

anageable

nd the bene
ost at risk 

ing provisi

artners, wo

oved or mad
, or after sc

be improve
s a fair allo

fordable an

o pay their 

niversal Cr

) Scrutiny

ncrease fre
rs, if 
ility of Rut

pport could

tion of add
e greatest 

m organise
rents who w
ds and fam

e and 

efit cap be
of 

ion of 

ork impact 

de more 
chool 

ed? 
ocation of 

nd 

 

 

edit 

y Panel 

ee 

land 

d 

itional 
impact 

ed 
work, 

mily for 

 



 

 

5) 

6) 

Rutland Ch
Strategy (P

 
Issues Ide
 
 The cu

review
 

Homeless

Issues Ide

 The R
rental 
plans 

 A brea
homel

 Housin
under 
not me

 Housin
accom
were t
family 

 The m
o   Iss
o   Pa

 Povert
 Reduc

homel
 The C

bedroo
 A Soc

result 
as a re
option

 There 
 Disrup

had lim
 Servic

financ

hildren, Yo
People (Ch

entified 

urrent plan
w and amen

sness (Pla

entified 

Rent Depos
deposits. 
set up, but
akdown of 
essness m
ng allocatio
occupatio

eet tenants
ng at St Ge

mmodation 
to split, ser
potentially

majority of h
ues with S
rents / rela
ty affected
ced toleran
essness; 

Council did 
oms home
ial Housing
was that th
esult of inc
s; 
was more

ptive familie
mited optio
ce users in 
ial and pra

oung Peopl
hildren’s) S

n and strate
nded in lin

aces Scrut

sit Scheme
Efforts wer
t often the 
the reason

might help t
on worked
n of homes
s aspiration
eorges Ba
once the b

rvice perso
y becoming
homelessn

Social and P
ationship b
 people th

nces of Soc

not curren
es for large
g marketin
he number
creasing aw

e the Counc
es with com

ons given th
need of ho

actical aspe

le and Fam
Scrutiny Pa

egy were s
e with the 

tiny Panel

e was desig
re made to
full amoun

ns (hidden 
to understa
 on a point
s, howeve
ns; 
rracks wou
base had b
onnel woul
g homeles

ness cases
Private Ho
reakdown
at were as
cial Housin

ntly have en
er families;
ng exercise
r of people
wareness t

cil could do
mplex issu
he rural na
ousing rela
ects of mo

milies Plan 2
nel 17 Nov

satisfactory
outcomes 

l 24 Novem

gned to he
o recoup th
nt was not 
pressures

and the ca
ts system, 
r, propertie

uld still be 
been close
d stay in th
s; 

s in Rutland
ousing/Lan

sset rich bu
ng Landlor

nough hou

e was carri
e on the Ho
through ma

o regarding
ues that ma
ature of Ru
ated suppo
ving home

2016-2019/
vember 201

y, but shou
of the Pov

mber 2016

lp with the
his money, 
repaid; 

s) for housi
auses; 

which help
es for older

used for fo
ed. Issues a
he home w

d were due
dlords 

ut cash poo
ds, could r

using stock

ed out 2 ye
ousing Reg
arketing So

g commun
ay result in
utland; 
ort often str
e because 

/Child Pove
16) 

uld be kept
verty Revie

6) 

e costs of p
with paym

ing allocat

ped to avo
r people of

orces 
arise if fam

with the res

e to: 

or; 
result in re

k, particula

ears ago. T
gister incre
ocial Hous

nication; 
n homeless

ruggle with
of their 

 

 

erty 

t under 
ew. 

private 
ment 

ion and 

oid the 
ften did 

milies 
st of the 

peat 

rly 4/5 

The 
eased 
sing 

sness 

h 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7) 

Pro

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

experi
can be
 

 

Domestic

Issues Ide

 Dom
 Alth

new
Con

 The
was
the 

oposals fo

 Rev
 Upd
 

Question

18) W
pe
ac

19) H
su

20) W
un

Questions

21)  Ho
occ
pov

22) Are
and

23) Wha
dom
into

24) Wha
con
circ

ences or t
e extensive

c Abuse (P

entified 

mestic abu
hough supp
w contract 
ntract shou
e Council c
s underway
LLR Polic

or Action 

view of LLR
date on the

ns 

What suppo
eople in or
ccommoda
ow might P
upport imp

What furthe
nderstand 

 

w might th
currences o
verty? 
e there othe
d perpetrato
at can be d

mestic abus
o financial c
at can be d

ncerned wh
cumstances

heir level o
e but is foc

Places Scr

use could b
port for vic
arrangeme

uld be kept
currently ha
y to put a p

ce and Crim

R Joint Co
e Perpetrat

ort could be
rder to assi
ation? 
Private and
proved sust
r informati
causes of 

he perpetra
of domestic

er schemes
ors of dom
done to sup
se, especia
crisis? 

done to sup
ho no longe
s outside t

of skills – A
cused on p

rutiny Pan

be both the
ctims of do
ents had b
t under rev
as no Perp
programm

me Commi

ontract in 1
tors Progra

e provided 
ist with acc

d Social La
tainable ac
on could b
homelessn

ators progr
c abuse an

s that could
mestic abus

pport the c
ally those w

pport the v
er have acc
their contro

Assistance
promoting i

nel 24 Nov

e cause an
mestic abu
een put in 

view; 
petrator Pro
e in place 
ssioner) 

2 months’ 
amme to b

to econom
cessing ap

andlords be
ccess to af
be collated 
ness in Ru

amme be t
nd the resu

d enhance 
se? 
children fro
which are i

victims and
cess to fina
ol? 

provided t
ndependen

ember 201

d the effec
use had im
place, the

ogramme i
with fundin

time. 
be provided

mically disa
ppropriate 

e encourag
ffordable ho
in order to
tland? 

argeted to 
lting impac

services fo

om househ
immediatel

d individual
ancial supp

to service 
nce. 

16) 

ct of Pover
mproved sin
e LLR Joint

in place (W
ng support

d in due co

advantaged

ged to 
ousing? 

o better 

reduce 
ct on 

for victims 

olds in 
ly placed 

ls 
port due to

 

 

users 

rty; 
nce 
t 

Work 
ted by 

ourse. 

d 

o 



 

 

8) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9) 

 

 

Health Ine
Decembe

Issues Ide

 Tho
hea

 Bei
 Imp

loca
com

 Tra
 Spo

phy
 Loc

app
pro

 Edu
sch

 

Access to
Decembe

Issues Ide

Rutland w
were a ba
more afflu
There was
internet, b
internet an

Questions

25)  Ho
who

26) Wh
on 

27) Wh
tee

28) How
act

equalities 
r 2016) 

entified 

ose who ar
althier lifest
ng sedenta

provements
al sports cl
mmunity to
ansport and
orts activiti
ysical activ
cal initiative
propriately,
mote activ
ucation on 
hools could

o Services
r 2016) 

entified 

as conside
rrier to acc
ent area w

s an assum
ut the elde

nd others m

s 

ow could ac
o are econ
at are the o
healthy liv
at can be d
nagers in R
w can more
ivities for y

(People (A

re econom
tyle choice
ary has a h
s could be 
lubs and a
 take part;
d costs of a
es did not 
ity would h
es and sch
, which ma

vities in rura
the benefi

d be improv

s (People (

ered to be 
cessing ser
where a per
mption that 
erly, frail an
might not b

ccess to “a
omically d
opportunit
ing and ba
done to inc
Rutland? 
e volunteer
young peop

Adults an

mically disad
es in terms
high impac
 made reg

activities to 
  
activities c
appeal to 

have a pos
hemes wer
ade it more
al location
its of activi
ved. 

(Adults an

reasonably
rvices.  It i
rson might
t everyone 
nd disabled
be able to a

active recre
isadvantag
ies for sup

asic cooker
crease phy

rs be enco
ple? 

d Health) 

dvantaged
s of diet an
ct on heart 
arding com
encourage

ould be res
all people,

sitive impac
re not alwa
e difficult fo
s; and 
ity/exercise

nd Health)

y affluent, 
s more diff
t feel they w
could acce

d might no
afford inter

eation” be 
ged? 
pporting Co
ry skills in 
sical activi

ouraged to 

Scrutiny P

 may find i
d activity/e
disease a

mmunicatin
e members

strictive; 
, but increa
ct; 

ays support
or those wo

e and healt

) Scrutiny 

but rurality
ficult to ask
were in the
ess inform
t have acc

rnet conne

improved f

ommunity e
Rutland? 
ity particul

support sp

Panel 1 

it difficult to
exercise; 
nd diabete

ng and pro
s of the 

asing any 

ted  
orking hard

thy eating 

Panel 1 

y and isola
k for help i
e minority;

mation throu
cess to the
ction; 

for those 

education 

larly in 

ports 

 

 

o make 

es; 
moting 

d to 

in 

ation 
n a 

ugh the 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10) 

 

 

 

 

There was
and also im
also help p
volunteers
People wh
family or fr

 

Fuel Pove
2017) 

Issues Ide

Many prop
gas supply
worked wi
some prop
the existin
Improvem
building st
Publicity s
poverty an
not sufficie
Statistics o
energy eff
but would 
being low.
possibly h
income an
poverty lin

Questio

29)  H
in
In

30) H
o

31) H
c
(P
e

s a need to
mproving c
people with
s; and 
ho have mo
riends that

erty (Peop

entified 

perties and
y.  Spire H
th the Cou
perties in O
g electric h
ents to ins
tatus or wa
surrounding
nd other iss
ent as not 
on fuel pov
ficient prop
not be inc
  Converse
aving high

nd fuel bills
ne; 

ns 

How do we
nformation
nformation

How do we 
other sectio
How can co
communitie
Pilot Servic

engagemen

o look towa
community
h accessin

oved into t
t live locally

ple (Adults

d some villa
omes, who

uncil to inst
Oakham.  W
heating pro

sulation cou
as in a con
g initiatives
sues was m
all househ
verty could
perty with a
luded in th
ely, rural s

h energy re
s would not

e ensure th
n about ser
n Service?

address is
ons of the c
ommunity b
es, such as
ce), be util

nt in isolate

ards the vo
y relations. 
ng services

the area m
y and so w

s and Heal

ages in the
o manage 
tall gas and
Where this
ovision; 
uld be limit
servation a
s and help 
mainly inte

holds had a
d be flawed
a low hous
he statistics
olid wall pr

equirement
t result in r

hat people c
rvices thro

ssues of He
community
based serv
s Commun
ised to pro
ed areas?

oluntary se
 Parish Co

s and enco

ay not hav
will be isola

lth) Scruti

e county w
social hou
d subsequ
 was not p

ted where 
area; 
around en

ernet based
access to t
d, for exam
ehold inco
s due to th
roperties w
ts but man
residual inc

can access
ugh better 

ealth Litera
y? 
vices which
ity Agents 

omote volu

ctor, Comm
ouncils and
urage/coo

ve a netwo
ated in that

ny Panel 2

were wholly
sing stock
ently centr

possible the

a property

nergy switc
d.  It was fe
he internet

mple: a well
me could s
e energy r

would fall in
y have a h
come bein

s appropria
use of the 

acy in the p

h link into l
and Welln
nteering an

munity Age
d Meetings
rdinate 

ork of suppo
t way. 

2 Februar

y without a 
k in the Cou
ral heating
ey had upg

y had listed

ching, fuel 
elt that this
t; 
l-insulated
still be in p
requiremen
nto the sta
higher hous
g below th

ate 
e Rutland 

poorer and

local 
ness Adviso
nd 

 

 

ents 
s may 

ort in 

ry 

mains 
unty, 
 in 

graded 

d 

s was 

, 
poverty 
nts 
tistics 
sehold 
he 

d 

ors 



 

 

 

 

Propos

 

 

 

 

11) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Propos

 

Energy co
the same w
Spire Hom
tenants to 
was not po

sals for A

Further inv
companies
and to adv

 

 

Transport

Issues Ide

There is a
Rutland, th
Call Conne
service wa
Raising aw
their own c
There wer
County inc
were not a
Non-emer
allowed pe
medical ne
 Transport
did not neg

sals for A

Further ev
informatio

Questions

32) Ho
33) Ho

up

osts did not
way as cou

mes could a
supply it.  

ossible to a

Action 

vestigation
s to look at
vise on effi

t Poverty 

entified 

 rural trans
here was li
ect was be
as very exp
wareness o
communiti
re several s
cluding in W
always wel
rgency med
eople to ac
eed; and 
t Poverty in
gate from 

Action 

valuation of
n regardin

s 

ow can info
ow could as
pgrades? 

t attract fin
uncil tax m
ask tenants
Without kn

ascertain w

n into pilot s
t alternativ
cient use o

(Places Sc

sport netwo
ittle or no e
eing consid
pensive for
of the issue
es may all
successful
Whissendin
l-publicise
dical transp
ccess trans

n Rutland w
the impact

f the recen
g issues a

ormation an
ssistance b

nancial ass
might; and

s for inform
nowledge 
which prop

scheme w
ve ways to 
of energy.

crutiny Pa

ork connec
evening an
dered as p
rm of publi
es and pro
eviate som
l “Good Ne
ne, Market
d; 
port was n
sport to ho

was proba
t on those 

nt RCC Tra
round tran

nd advice b
be offered 

istance fro

mation but 
of househo

perties suffe

hich was b
share adv

anel 9 Feb

cting the s
nd Sunday 
art of the T
ic transpor

omotion of 
me of the is
eighbour S
t Overton a

not well pub
spital appo

bly a low r
that suffer

avel Survey
nsport pove

be better p
to househo

om governm

there was 
old income
ered from f

being funde
ice on ene

bruary 201

maller mar
services; 

Transport R
rt; 
volunteers

ssues; 
chemes” r
and Greeth

blicised, th
ointments a

risk and dis
ed from Tr

y in order t
erty. 

ublicised?
olds requir

ment sourc

no obligat
e or fuel co
fuel povert

ed by ener
ergy switch

7) 

rket towns 

Review, bu

s helping w

running wit
ham, but th

his service 
as long as

spersed, b
ransport Po

to collate 

? 
ring energy

 

 

ces in 

tion on 
osts it 
ty. 

rgy 
hing 

in 

ut this 

within 

thin the 
hese 

s had a 

ut that 
overty. 

y 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

	

Concl
 

The Re
poverty
poverty
encour
conside

Poverty
have b
Rutland
raise a

Throug
of the p
recomm
recomm
the rev

 

Qu

usion	an

eview so fa
y, financial
y.  This Gre
rage furthe
eration of t

y can be d
been consid
d, it is hop

awareness 

gh the cons
public will i
mendation
mendation
view to be m

uestions 

34)  How c
acces

35) How c
assist
Neigh

nd	Next	St

ar has cove
 awarenes
een Paper

er discussio
the questio

ifficult to d
dered are e
ed that the
of these m

sultation th
inform the 
s which wi
s will be ac
measured 

can existin
sible? 

can people 
t those at r
bour Sche

teps	

ered a wid
ss and deb
r is not a fin
on of these
ons posed.

define and 
evident ac
e availabilit
more hidde

he views of
next steps

ill focus on
ccompanie
and monit

ng services

living in is
isk of trans
mes”? 

e range of
bt and the r
nal docum
e topics an
.  

it is clear t
cross the C
ty of inform
n aspects 

f Elected M
s of the rev
n both solut
ed by an ac
tored. 

s be promo

solated com
sport pove

f subjects i
relationship
ent but ha

nd some of

that some a
Country, wh
mation and 

of poverty

Members, K
view and a 
tions and p
ction plan 

oted and m

mmunities 
erty throug

ncluding c
p between 
s been pro
the issues

aspects of 
hilst others 

increased
in Rutland

Key Partne
series of 

prevention
to enable t

ade more 

be encour
h “Good 

child povert
 health and

oduced in o
s raised th

f poverty th
s are uniqu
d discussio
d.   

ers and me

.  These 
the outcom

raged to 

 

 

ty, fuel 
d 
order to 
rough 

hat 
e to 
n will 

embers 

mes of 



Feedback from Poverty in Rutland Workshop 

What do we want to achieve? 

 Strategic Policy – broken down to reflect the key issues then the key issues in 
more detail 

 A statement that identifies the causes of poverty, what prevents people 
escaping poverty and where in the County – needs to be articulated 

 An action plan to support delivery of the policy 
 An active document, kept under review to reflect changing circumstances 
 Not necessarily a definition of Poverty in Rutland but more a list of the key 

determinants, focussed on impact not thresholds, required interventions and 
issues including: 
Isolation 
Free school Meals 
Stigma 
Housing 
Financial awareness / Education/Poverty Prevention 
Health inequalities 
Employment / Worklessness 
Access to services – transport, broadband etc 
Cost of childcare 
 

 A catalyst for a lobbying statement for Central Government 
 A key focus on relative poverty 
 An understanding of  income, disposable income, relative income and 

living/expectations 
 MTFP shouldn’t adversely affect strategy 
 Targeting resources and services to those who need it most 

 

Define poverty in Rutland 

 Definition given too high level 
 A focus on rural definition, focusing on categories of people in Rutland 
 Fine balance – something small can destabilise – crisis makes it more difficult 

to get help, particularly those that least expect to be in that situation. 
 A lot of people in Rutland just above the level 
 Two tier village life in some communities – social hierarchy 
 Smaller villages – those sustaining the community spirit getting older 
 Each village could become a strong community – younger people involved in 

fundraising and social events 
 Lack of choice  / Options 
 Cost – higher than elsewhere 



 Rutland is seen as affluent, poverty in Rutland is in stark contrast 
 Living in an expensive area is stressful for people without means 
 Lack of financial literacy, need to know how to budget 
 Should the council support the living wages as employers and is there a role 

for the council to encourage other employers to pay a living wage, which 
would also benefit the local economy 

 Pride- people don’t want to ask for help 
 Access – people in rural locations can’t always access the help they need 
 Mental health problems – stress of living in poverty 
 People can spiral down, self-fulfilling 
 Isolation 

 Childcare – Hours of Work – Variation - cost 
 Opportunity to earn – young families in a cycle to earn to sustain living 
 How can we move these people into a situation where they are empowered to 

better themselves 
 Transport – Job interviews, Healthcare, restrictions 
 Housing – Availability of stock, cost of purchase/rent, availability of rental 
 Stigma – applying for help, keep up appearances in a wealthy area 
 Benefits – changes to tax credits 
 Family breakdown 
 In Rutland you have to have a car in order to have a job 
 Basic level of need to function in Rutland society? 
 Advice and Education 
 Unexpected events, mental health issues, health issues can lead to 

challenges 
 Aspiration – comes before opportunities to improve place 
 Do we have pockets where people do not have aspirations 
 Changing Lives Programme 
 Confidence – those doing less well in exams – not got immediate support 

 
 

  



Areas to take forward for individual panels 

Panel Subject Areas 
Resources Review the crisis fund – what this is 

being used for and who it is helping 
Financial awareness – use money more 
effectively 
Affordable housing – is it really 
affordable? 

Places Domestic violence – family 
breakdown/lack of structure 
Using capital budget 
Intervention in the housing market 
Transport – support independent 
transport providers; taxis very expensive 
in Rutland 
Transport survey 
 

People (CYP) Accessibility of childcare 
Indicators below the threshold – early 
indicators – preventions 
Important to acknowledge inter-
connectivity of Poverty 
Accessibility of childcare – cost, quality, 
availability 
Perceptions of poverty (from expert 
witnesses) and how easy it is to refer any 
concerns or sign-post to support 
Early indicators for below thresholds of 
children in care – prevention 
 

People (Adults & Health) Health inequalities 
Undiagnosed mental health conditions 
Access to advice and support services 
Ageing 
Disabilities 
Frail/old 
Ageing population, exploring real issues, 
health inequalities, social isolation, cost 
of care 
Access to services, dental 
Health inequalities 
GP/CCS, Public Health, Mental Health 
Access to info/advice and services, VCF 
e.g. community agents, CAB, churches 
Vulnerable adults 
 
 

 



 

Expert witnesses 

Panel Expert Witness, visit etc 
Resources Credit Union – and maybe an end user  

Food bank – arrange a visit 
Places Domestic Violence worker – expert 

witness 
Spire and Other Housing Providers 

People (CYP) Schools 
Teachers 
School nurses 
Barnardos 
Army welfare service 
Children’s Centre 
Child care providers/nurseries – take up 
of 15 hours or more 
Sally Hickman – access to childcare 
providers – questionnaire or interviews 
Scouts/Air Cadets 
Employers – Lands End, Rob Wills 
Another LA dealing with rural poverty 
Children – what is their voice about – 
poverty 
 

People (Adults & Health) CCG 
Public Health 
Providers 
Voluntary Organisations 
Mental Health 
CAB 
Community Agents 
 

 



 

 

Sup
Statist

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

pporti
tical evide

ng Ev
ence used 

videnc
to inform

ce - P
m the Scrut

Povert
tiny review

ty in R
w of pover

Rutlan
rty in Rutl

 

1 

 

nd 
land.  



 

Table
Introduc

Populat

Populat

Indices 

Income

Employ

Educati

Other D

Healt

Crime

Hous

Living

Public H

Income

Unemp

Council

Crisis F

Child P

Transpo

Fuel Po

Free Sc

House 

House A

Homele

Food B

Mosaic 

Case S

 

 

 

e of Cont
ction ............

tion Growth

tion Density

of Multiple 

e Deprivatio

yment Depri

ion, Skills a

Deprivation .

th and Disa

e ..................

sing ..............

g Environm

Health .........

e and Emplo

loyment ......

l Tax/Housi

Fund ............

overty .........

ort Poverty .

overty ..........

chool Meals

Prices .........

Affordability

essness ......

anks ...........

....................

Studies .........

ents 
....................

h ...................

y ..................

Deprivation

n .................

ivation ........

and Training

....................

bility ...........

....................

....................

ent: ............

....................

oyment .......

....................

ng Benefit .

....................

....................

....................

....................

s ..................

....................

y ..................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

n ..................

....................

....................

g Deprivatio

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

on .................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

....................

 

2 

............ 3 

............ 4 

............ 5 

............ 6 

............ 7 

............ 8 

............ 9 

.......... 10 

.......... 10 

.......... 11 

.......... 12 

.......... 13 

.......... 14 

.......... 17 

.......... 18 

.......... 19 

.......... 22 

.......... 27 

.......... 28 

.......... 29 

.......... 31 

.......... 32 

.......... 34 

.......... 35 

.......... 36 

.......... 37 

.......... 41 



 

Introd
 

This doc

for the P

Also incl

since the

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

duction 

cument conta

Poverty in Ru

luded, where

e original pre

ains the orig

utland scruti

e applicable 

esentation. 

ginal support

ny project. 

is any suppo

ting evidence

orting data in

e supplied as

ncluded in th

s part of the 

he 8 scrutiny 

initial presen

 panel meet

 

3 

ntation 

ings held 



 

Popu
 

The mid

populati

Nationa

 

Area 

Rutland 

East Mid

England

 

This can

populou

 

Bra

Cot

Exto

Gre

Ket

Lan

Lyd

Ma

Nor

Oak

Oak

Oak

Oak

Ryh

Upp

Wh

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
1 ONS Mi

lation Gr

 2016 popul

ion in Rutlan

l average1. 

dlands 

 

 also be brok

us wards in R

unston and 

ttesmore 

on 

eetham 

ton 

ngham 

dington 

rtinsthorpe 

rmanton 

kham NE 

kham NW 

kham SE 

kham SW 

hall and Caste

pingham 

issendine 

                      
id‐Year Popula

rowth 

ation estima

nd has increa

Popula

34,600

4,189,

49,499

ken down by

Rutland, with

Belton 

erton 

                      
ation Estimate

ate shows the

ased by 9.8%

ation in 2001

0 

600 

9,700 

y ward, show

h Martinstho

All ag

1,32

2,43

1,33

1,95

2,87

1,43

1,33

1,06

3,56

3,08

4,10

2,49

2,25

2,85

4,70

1,23

 
es for High Le

ere are 38,0

%. This is sligh

1  Popu

38,0

4,67

54,7

wing Uppingh

rpe the least

ges  0

21 

38  4

39 

54 

72 

33 

31 

68 

64 

88 

00 

99 

51 

52  4

01  1

35 

evel Areas. 

00 residents

htly lower th

ulation in 20

00 

7,000 

86,000 

ham and Oak

t populous. 

0‐15 

210 

404 

152 

171 

521 

244 

180 

104 

568 

625 

852 

378 

386 

494 

1,029 

181 

 living in Rut

an both the 

15  Pe

9.8

11

10

kham NW are

16‐64 

792 

1,514 

792 

1,454 

1,535 

758 

789 

615 

2,294 

1,903 

2,448 

1,275 

1,229 

1,668 

2,678 

702 

tland. Since 2

East Midlan

rcentage inc

8% 

.6% 

.7% 

e the two m

65+ 

319 

520 

395 

329 

816 

431 

362 

349 

702 

560 

800 

846 

636 

690 

994 

352 

 

4 

2001 the 

ds and 

crease 

ost 



 

Popu
 

Rutland 

average 

Recently

across R

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
2 ONS Co
http://ww
3 ONS Po

lation De

has very low

 of 4132. 

y published d

Rutland are v

 
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru
Ru

                      
ompendium of
ww.neighbou
opulation Dens

ensity 

w population

data3 allows 

very sparsely

utland 001A 
utland 001B 
utland 001C 
utland 001D 
utland 002A 
utland 002B 
utland 002C 
utland 002D 
utland 003A 
utland 003B 
utland 003C 
utland 003D 
utland 004A 
utland 004B 
utland 004C 
utland 004D 
utland 004E 
utland 005A 
utland 005B 
utland 005C 
utland 005D 
utland 005E 
utland 005F 

                      
f UK Statistics
rhood.statisti
sity at Lower 

n density, at 9

us to break t

 populated.

Cottes
Exton
Greeth
Norma
Langh
Oakha
Oakha
Whiss
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha
Ketton
Ketton
Norma
Ryhal
Ryhal
Braun
Lyddin
Martin
Uppin
Uppin
Uppin

 
2014, 
ics.gov.uk/HT
Layer Super O

98 people pe

this down by

Ward 
smore 

ham 
anton 
ham 
am NW 
am NW 
sendine 
am NE 
am NE 
am SE 
am SQ 
n 
n 
anton 
l and Caster
l and Caster

nston and Be
ngton 
nsthorpe 
gham 
gham 
gham 

TMLDocs/dvc1
Output Area, 2

er square kilo

y ward, show

Peo

rton 
rton 
lton 

134_c/index.h
2016. 

ometre, com

wing that som

ple per Sq. K

1
5
5

1,9
2,9
1,4

9
1

1
1

4
9
8

tml  

mpared to a n

me commun

Km 
91 
27 
46 
75 
21 

507 
545 

76 
960 
918 
428 
961 

16 
80 
05 
30 
54 
29 
38 
45 

428 
907 
837 

 

5 

national 

ities 



 

Indice
 

The Ind
in terms
an over
Lower S

The IMD
depriva
from 1 (

The dat

Rutland
Rutland
hidden 
targetin
specific
next few

 

 

               
4 ONS En

es of Mu

dices of Mul
s of relative
rall measure
Super Outp

D ranks are
ation deciles
(most depri

ta is publish

d is one of t
d ranked 14
even when

ng individua
c types of de
w pages. 

                      
glish Indices o

ltiple De

tiple Depriv
e deprivation
e called the
ut Areas (L

eas in Engla
s are publish
ved) to 10 (

hed every 2

he most aff
484. Howeve
 using IMD 
ls. The indiv
eprivation a

                      
of Deprivation

eprivation

vation (IMD)
n using seve
e Index of M
SOA’s) of w

and from 1 (
hed alongsi
(least depriv

-3 years an

fluent count
er in many c
and the ind
vidual doma

affecting ind

 
n 2015 

n 

) is a nation
en domains

Multiple Dep
which there 

(most depriv
ide ranks, g
ved). 

nd was last 

ties in Engla
cases pocke
dex is theref
ains of the 

dividual area

nal dataset t
s; the meas
rivation. Th
are 32,844

ved) to 32,8
grouping the

published in

and; of 152 
ets of depriv
fore not a s
Indices do g
as of Rutlan

that ranks a
ures are the
e areas use
 in England

844 (least d
e small area

n 2015. 

Upper Tier 
vation and n

suitable tool 
give a good
nd as can be

areas in the
en combine
ed are know
d.  

deprived), 
as into 10 g

r Local Auth
need can b
 for identify

d indication 
e seen ove

 

6 

e country 
ed into 
wn as 

roups 

horities, 
e 

ying and 
of the 
r the 

 



 

Incom
 

This do
income 

Adults a
 

 
 
 
 
 

Income
 

•

•

 

 

me Depriv

omain meas
 and combi

and Childre

Income Sup

Jobseekers

Employmen

Pension Cre

Child Tax C
 
 
e Deprivatio

• Deprivat
highest 
(Upping
 

• Deprivat
with 16.

vation 

sures the pro
nes the follo

n in familie

pport 

 Allowance 

nt Support A

edits 

redit and W

on can also b

tion affectin
levels of ch
gham) with 

tion affectin
.1% and Rut

oportion of 
owing indic

s receiving 

Allowance

Working Tax

be split furt

ng children 
ildren affec
15.9% affec

ng adults (6
tland 002C 

the populat
cators: 

 

x credit fam

ther for two

(0‐15), whi
cted by Inco
cted and Ru

60+), which 
(Oakham N

tion experie

ilies not alre

o specific ag

ich shows th
ome Depriva
utland 002D

shows that
NW) with 14

encing depri

eady counte

ge groups: 

hat areas in
ation are Ru
 (Whissend

t Rutland 00
4.6% have th

ivation due 

ed 

n Rutland w
utland 005E
dine) with 1

03B (Oakha
he highest l

 

7 

 

to low 

ith 
E 
5.3% 

m NE) 
evels  



 

Emplo
 

Employ
involunt
but are 

It includ

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

oyment D

yment depriv
tarily exclud
unable to d

des claiman

Jobseekers
Employmen
Incapacity 
Severe Dis
Carers Allo

Deprivat

vation meas
ded from the
do so due to

nts aged 18-

s allowance
nt and Supp
Benefit 

sablement A
owance 

tion 

sures the p
e labour ma
o unemploy

-59/64 of th

e 
port Allowan

Allowance 

roportion of
arket. This i
yment, sickn

he following

nce 

f the workin
includes pe
ness or disa

: 

ng age popu
ople who w

ability. 

ulation in an
would like to

 

8 

 

n area 
 work 



 

Educa
 

This do
areas o

For chil

 
 
 
 

For adu

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ation, Sk

omain meas
of Rutland s

dren the ind

Key stage 2
Secondary 
Staying on 
Entry to hig

ults it looks 

Adults with 
English lan

kills and 

sures the lac
tand out in 

dicators use

2 and 4 atta
School abs
in educatio

gher educat

at: 

 no or low q
guage prof

Training

ck of attainm
this domain

ed to measu

ainment 
sence 
on post 16 
tion 

qualification
iciency 

g Depriva

ment and sk
n, Greetham

ure this are

ns 

ation 

kills in the lo
m and Oakh

: 

ocal popula
ham NW. 

ation. Two s

 

9 

specific 

 



 

Other
 

Health

This do
through

 
 

 
 

r Depriva

h and Dis

omain meas
h poor phys

Years of po
Comparativ
to work thro
Acute morb
Mood and a
respect inc

ation  

sability 

sures the ris
ical or ment

otential life l
ve illness an
ough ill hea
bidity measu
anxiety diso
ludes mood

sk of premat
tal health a

lost, death b
nd disability
lth 
ured by taki
orders, a bro
d, neuroses

ture death a
nd includes

before the a
y, based on 

ing the leve
oad measu

s, stress rela

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

and the imp
s: 

age of 75 fr
those rece

el of emerge
re of levels 
ated and so

pairment of 

om any cau
iving benefi

ency admiss
of mental h

omatoform d

quality of lif

use 
fits due to in

sions to hos
health which
disorders 

 

10 

 

fe 

nability 

spital 
h in this 



 

Crime
 

Measur

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

e 

res recordedd crime ratees for violennce, burglarry, theft andd criminal daamage 

 

11 

 



 

Housi
 

This do
Rutland
the isola
also the

The me

Geogra

 

Wider B

 

 

 

 

ng 

omain meas
d, like many
ation of som
e generally 

easures use

aphical Barr

Road dista
surgery 

Barriers: 

Household 
have insuff
Homelessn
assistance 
Housing Af
market, exp
rental mark

sures the ph
y rural areas
me commun
high cost of

ed for this do

riers: 

nce to a po

overcrowd
ficient space
ness – Loca

under the h
ffordability –
pressed as 
ket 

hysical and 
s, comes ou
nities within 
f housing (b

omain are:

st office, pr

ing – The p
e to meet th

al Authority d
homelessne
– Difficulty o
the inability

financial ac
ut quite poo
 the county

both rental a

rimary scho

proportion of
he househo
district leve
ess provisio
of access to
y to afford to

ccessibility o
orly for this d
y and the dis
and to buy) 

ol, general 

f all househ
ld’s needs

el rate of acc
ons of the 19
o owner-occ
o enter own

of housing a
domain, in m
stance to m
in Rutland.

store/super

holds which 

ceptances f
996 Housin
cupation or t
ner occupati

and local se
many cases

many amenit
. 

rmarket and

are judged

for housing 
ng Act 
the private 
ion or the p

 

12 

 

ervices. 
s due to 
ties and 

d GP 

d to 

rental 
private 



 

 

Living

This me

Indoors

 

 

Outdoo

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

g Environ

easures the

s Living Env

Houses wit
heating 
Housing in 
the Decent 

ors Living En

Air Quality:
Road traffic

nment: 

e quality of t

vironment: 

thout centra

poor condit
 Homes Sta

nvironment:

 A measure
c accidents 

the environm

al heating: th

tion: the pro
andard 

: 

e of air qual
involving in

ment, and f

he proportio

oportion of s

lity based o
njury to ped

falls into two

on of house

social and p

n emissions
estrians an

o sub doma

es that do no

private hom

s rates for 4
d cyclists 

ains. 

ot have cen

mes that fail 

4 pollutants 

 

13 

 

ntral 

to meet 



 

Public
 

The link
arise be
These d
experie

 

 

Accordi
Rutland

 

Each ye
and yea

               
5 Active P
6 2014‐15
7 Oral He
8 Oral He

c Health 

ks between 
ecause of in
differences 

encing poore

67.3% of ad
higher than
 
6.75% of R
higher than
higher prev
However th
Rutland on 

ing to oral h
d: 

40.3% of fiv
dropped to 

ear the Nati
ar 6. We ha

                      
People Survey
5 Quality and 
ealth Survey o
ealth Survey o

poverty an
nequalities i
have a high

er health an

dults in Rut
n the nationa

Rutland popu
n the Englan
valence and
here is evide
 the next fe

health surve

ve year old 
28.8% in 2

ional Child 
ave looked a

                      
y 2016 – samp
Outcomes Fra
f five year old
f five year old

d poor heal
in the condi
h impact, be
nd shorter li

tland are es
al average 

ulation 17+ 
nd average 
d it may be t
ence that th
w years: 

eys for 3 to 

children sa
0158 but is 

Measureme
at this data 

 
ple 1372 peop
amework Dat
d children 201
d children 201

lth are well 
itions of dai
ecause they
ves. 

stimated to h
(64.8%)5. 

are diagno
of 6.4%. It 

the result of
he rate of di

5 year olds

ampled had 
still well ab

ent Program
over severa

ple 
ta 
3 PHE 
5 PHE 

accepted. S
ily life and p
y result in th

have exces

osed with dia
is unclear a
f better diag
iabetes is se

 there are h

decayed m
bove nationa

mme measu
al years and

Social inequ
poverty is a 
he people w

s weight (2

abetes. Aga
as to the ex
gnosis by lo
et to rise to 

high levels o

missing or fil
al levels 

ures children
d compared

ualities in he
key aspect

who are wor

016), signif

ain significa
xact reason 
ocal GP’s6. 
o over 10% 

of tooth dec

led teeth7. T

n in receptio
d it to data o

 

14 

ealth 
t of this. 
rst off 

ficantly 

antly 
for this 

in 

 

cay in 

This 

on class 
on tooth 



 

decay a
decay a

Percent

 

 
               
9 Nationa

and families
and excess 

tage of yea

                      
al Child Measu

s in poverty.
weight in y

r 6 children

                      
urement Prog

. This has s
ear 6 and c

 with exces

 
ramme, Healt

shown some
children in fa

ss weight 20

th and Social C

e correlation
amilies in p

012/13-2014

Care Informat

n between a
overty: 

4/159: 

tion Centre 

areas of hig
 

15 

gh tooth 

 

 



 

Smokin
kills 80,
likely to
twice as
smoke, 

Nationa
their dis
increas

 

ng shows on
,000 people

o smoke as 
s likely to sm
 rising to 29

al data show
sposal incom
es the num

ne of the cle
e in England
those in ma
moke as tho
9.6% for ‘Ro

ws that 3 ou
me on cigar
ber of hous

earest links 
d each year
anagerial an
ose in empl
outine and M

ut of 4 famili
rettes. The 
seholds in p

between po
r. Workers i
nd professio
loyment. On
Manual’ wo

ies who rec
chart below

poverty: 

overty/low i
n manual a
onal roles a
n average in
rkers: 

ceive income
w shows how

ncome and
nd routine j

and unemplo
n Rutland 1

e support s
w the cost o

d poor healt
jobs are twi
oyed people
4.1% of ad

spend a sev
of smoking 

 

16 

h and 
ce as 
e are 
ults 

 

venth of 

 



 

Incom
 

As at th
in Rutla
has bee
has now
looks at
past ‘re

Gross w
(£541.0
compar

 
Full Tim
Male FT
Female
 

Full tim
same p

 

The Lab
56.7% o
profess

 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

# Sample

 

 

 

               
10 ONS La
11 ONS La

me and E

he end of Se
and compar
en declining
w started to
t those who

etirement’ ag

weekly pay 
00) average
red to nation

me Workers
T Workers 

e FT Worker

e wages in 
period avera

bour Marke
of those em

sionals) com

Managers, 
Professiona
Associate P
Administrat
Skilled Trad
Caring, Lei
Sales and C
Process Pla
Elementary

e size too sma

                      
abour Market 
abour Market 

Employm

eptember 2
red to 74.3%
g over the la
o increase a
o are workin
ge10. 

in Rutland 
es11. There i
nally, which

Rutlan
 

rs 

Rutland ha
age pay is 1

et Statistics 
mployed in R
mpared to 40

Directors a
al Occupati
Professiona
tive and Se
des Occupa
sure and ot
Customer S
ant and Ma
y Occupatio
all for reliable e

                      
Statistics, Em
Statistics, Ear

ment  

016, 76.4%
% in the Eas
ast few quar
gain. This m

ng age (16-6

is £490.90, 
s also a wid

h may accou

nd(pounds)
£490.90 
£576.00 
£440.10 

ave increase
8.6% highe

also split do
Rutland are 
0.9% in the 

and Senior O
ons 

al and Techn
cretarial 
ations 
ther Service
Services 
chine Oper

ons 
estimate 

 
mployment and
rnings by plac

% of the wor
st Midlands 
rters to a lo
may be bec
64) so does

lower than 
der gap bet
unt for why 

 East

ed by 15.4%
er in the Eas

own employ
in the first t
 East Midla

Officials 

nical 

e Occupatio

ratives 

d Unemploym
ce of residence

king age po
as a whole

ow of 74.6%
cause the E
sn’t include 

both region
tween male 
gross week

t Midlands
£501.70
£549.10
£433.10

% since 200
st Midlands

yment by oc
three group

ands and 45

R

ons 

ment (Oct 201
e 2016 

opulation we
e. Rutland’s 

% at the end 
mployment 
those who 

nal (£501.70
and female

kly pay as a

Gr

06 (from £42
s and 21.3%

ccupation ty
ps (Manager
5.1% nationa

Rutland 
19.5% 
19.2% 
18% 
8.1% 
8% 

6.9% 
# 
# 

12.1% 

5‐Sept 2016) 

ere in emplo
 employme
of June 20
Rate figure
are still wor

0) and natio
e pay in Rut
a whole is lo

reat Britain 
£541.0
£581.2
£481.1

25.40). Ove
% higher nat

ype, showin
rs and 
ally. 

East Mid
10.
17.
13.
10.
11.
9.4
7.2
8.6

12.

 

17 

oyment 
nt figure 
16 but 

e only 
rking 

onal 
tland 
ower: 

00 
20 

0 

er the 
tionally. 

ng that 

dlands 
1% 
3% 
4% 
2% 
4% 

4% 
2% 
6% 
2% 



 

Unem
 

As at A
a nation

This, in 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
12 ONS La

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

U
n
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
C
la
im

an
t 
R
at
e
 (
%
)

mploymen

August 2016
nal average

 real terms,

                      
abour Market 

0

2

4

6

8

0

2

4

6

A
u
g‐
1
0

D
ec
‐1
0

A
p
r‐
1
1

nt 

6 5.6% of the
e of 11.3% (

, accounts f

                      
Statistics, Ma

A
u
g‐
1
1

D
ec
‐1
1

A
p
r‐
1
2

A
u
g‐
1
2

Un

e working a
(and 11% in

for 1,250 pe

 
ain Benefit Cla

A
u
g
1
2

D
ec
‐1
2

A
p
r‐
1
3

A
u
g‐
1
3

Month ‐ Y

nemploym

age client gr
n the East M

eople in Rut

aimants  

D
ec
‐1
3

A
p
r‐
1
4

A
u
g‐
1
4

D
ec
‐1
4

Year

ment Claim

roup were c
Midlands)12.

tland a redu

D
ec
‐1
4

A
p
r‐
1
5

A
u
g‐
1
5

D
ec
‐1
5

mant Rate

claiming ben

uction from 

A
p
r‐
1
6

A
u
g‐
1
6

nefits, comp

1,490 in Au

Rutland

East Midlan

Great Britai

 

18 

pared to 

ug 2011. 

 

nds

n



 

Coun
 

Difficult
in Rutla

Average
below13

Rutland
Notting
Leiceste
Notting
Derby 
Derbysh
Lincolns
Leiceste
Northam
 

The tabl

               
13 Officia

cil Tax/H

ties in low p
and, includin

e Council T
3. 

d 
ham 
er 
hamshire 

hire 
shire 
ershire 
mptonshire 

les below sho

                      
l Statistics – C

Housing 

pay and/or r
ng Council T

Tax (band D

ow the num

                      
Council Tax lev

Benefit

eliance on b
Tax which i

D) for the au

bers claiming

 
vels set by loc

benefits are
s amongst 

uthority and 

£1,5
£1,5
£1,3
£1,2
£1,2
£1,1
£1,1
£1,1
£1,1

g Council Ta

cal authorities

e exacerbat
the highest

neighbourin

528 
517 
354 
291 
236 
165 
129 
127 
111 

x and Housin

s in England 20

ted by high 
in the coun

ng authoritie

ng Benefit Su

016‐17(revise

unavoidabl
ntry. 

es is shown

upport in 201

ed) 

 

19 

e costs 

n 

15/16: 

 



 

 

 

20 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

21 

 

 



 

Crisis
 

Crisis s
unless 

Crisis s
membe
not met

Anyone
(Income
Allowan

The tab
success

Numbe

Year 

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
 

Successf

Ward 

Braunsto

Cottesm

Exton 

Greetha

Ketton 

Langham

Lyddingt

Martinst

Norman

Oakham

Oakham

Oakham

Oakham

Ryhall an

Uppingh

Whissen

Homeles
Rutland)

Total 

s Fund 

support is in
provided wo

support can 
er of their ho
t.  

e can apply 
e Support, J
nce and Un

bles below p
sful and wh

er of applic

5 
6 
7 (upto Nov

ful Applicant

on and Belto

more 

am 

m 

ton 

thorpe 

nton 

m NE 

m NW 

m SE 

m SW 

nd Casterton

ham 

ndine 

ss (connectio
) 

tended to p
ould severe

also provid
ousehold wo

for support
Job Seeker
iversal Cred

provide som
ere the clai

cations rece

Applic

324 
205 

v) 109 

ts and the W

on 

n 

on to 

provide finan
ely disadvan

de emergen
ould suffer s

but the pol
rs Allowance
dit) may be 

me detail of 
mants are l

eived and t

cations rece

Ward area tha

Application
awarded 1

3 

3 

0 

2 

3 

5 

1 

0 

4 

23 

33 

7 

8 

2 

26 

2 

20 

142 

ncial suppo
ntage the ap

cy financial
severe disa

licy does hig
e, Pension 
more likely

how many 
located (the

the decisio

eived App

207
142
94 

at the applica

ns 
5/16 

%

2.1

2.1

0

1.4

2.1

3.5

0.7

0

2.8

16

23

4.9

5.6

1.4

18

1.4

14

10

ort to meet o
pplicant or a

l support wh
advantage if

ghlight that 
Credit, Emp

y to apply du

claims we r
e ward): 

on made: 

lications aw

ant resides in

Ap
16

1%  0

1%  0

1

4%  2

1%  1

5%  4

7%  0

1

8%  2

.3%  18

.3%  34

9%  0

6%  7

4%  3

.3%  16

4%  0

.1%  5

0%  94

or help to m
a member o

here the ap
f their imme

people on c
ployment an
ue to their li

receive, how

warded Ap
or 
11
63
15

n: 

pplications aw
/17 (to Nov)

meet a need 
of their hous

plicant or a
ediate need

certain ben
nd Support 
imited incom

w many are

pplications r
referred 
7 

3 
5 

warded 
) 

% 

0 

0 

1.1

2.1

1.1

4.3

0 

1.1

2.1

19

36

0 

7.4

3.2

17

0 

5.3

10

 

22 

that 
sehold. 

s are 

efits 

me. 

 

refused 

1% 

1% 

1% 

3% 

1% 

1% 

9.1% 

6.2% 

4% 

2% 

7% 

3% 

00% 



 

The follo

people a

 

Crisis Su

In the tw

No. of 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

The reas

problem

Income

 

ESA 

Jobsee

Matern

Undisc

Univers

Mainte

Tax Cre

Wages 

owing table d

are awarded

Item 

Beddin

Clothin

Cooke

Food –

Food –

Food –

Fridge

Fuel fo

Fuel fo

Furnit

Public 

Movin

Toiletr

Washi

Other 

Total 

upport Appli

welve month

Applications

sons given fo

ms, income sp

e Receipt Pro

kers Allowan

nity Allowanc

losed benefi

sal Credit 

enance 

edits 

details the ty

 multiple ite

ng 

ng 

er 

– supermark

– food bank v

– food parce

 

or cooking/h

or vehicle 

ure package 

Transport 

ng expenses 

ries 

ng Machine 

living expen

cations in th

hs there were

s made 

or making th

pent, househ

oblems 

D

1

nce  4

ce  1

its  2

3

 

1

6

ype of item a

ms e.g. a foo

et voucher 

voucher 

l (supplied to

eating 

(Melton Fur

ses 

he twelve mo

e 210 applica

No.

75

20

7 

5 

3 

3 

3 

e application

hold problem

Delays 

1 

4 

1 

21 

3 

1 

6 

awarded in 2

od bank vouc

o RCC) 

rniture proje

onths – 01/1

ations made

. of Individu

ns were as fo

ms, personal 

Reduced 

 

 

 

10 

 

 

1 

 

2016/17 (upt

cher and fue

Nu

1 

2 

1 

4 

41

21

1 

21

1 

ect)  5 

4 

3 

1 

1 

14

12

11/2015 to 3

from 116 in

als 

ollows, separ

issues, and o

Stopped

 

 

 

13 

 

1 

5 

23 

to November

el for cooking

umber award

1 

31/10/2016 

dividuals.  

rated into inc

others: 

d  Interm

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 

r). In some c

g/heating: 

ded 

come receip

mit  Tot

1 

4 

1 

44 

3 

1 

7 

30 

 

23 

cases 

pt 

al 



 

Not dis

Cannot

 

 

Income

 

Bailiffs 

Bank C

Counci

Court F

Hospita

Victim 

Water 

Other/

 

 

Househ

 

Boiler b

Cooker

Electric

Fire 

Fridge 

Gas can

Lost ke

Newly 

Washin

Other h

 

Person

 

Cannot

Fleeing

Health 

No foo

Relatio

 

 

Other A

 

Loans m

sclosed 

t manage/bu

e Spent 

harges 

l Tax 

Fine 

al visit costs 

of crime 

bill 

/undisclosed 

hold Problem

breakdown 

r 

city 

nister  

ey 

housed 

ng Machine 

household it

nal Issues 

t work 

g domestic vi

problems 

d 

onship breakd

Application R

made to a Cou

 

udget   

 

ms 

Bre

1 

 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

1 

tem  2 

iolence 

down 

Reasons 

urt of Protec

eakdown 

ction client 

 

 

 

 

Needed

 

1 

1 

 

 

2 

 

20 

 

 

 

 

2 

12 

105

Tota

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

3 

1 

5 

14 

Tota

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

2 

1 

20 

1 

2 

31 

Tota

1 

6 

4 

3 

4 

18 

Tota

6 

 

24 

5 

al 

al 

al 

al 



 

Moving 

Social Se

Toiletrie

Travel co

No reaso

 

 

Househo

  

Househo

Age not 

Single w

Single Pa

Couple w

Couple w

Single &

Couple &

 

Gender 

Female 

Male 

 

Age Ran

Undisclo

Aged 18

Aged 20

Aged 30

Aged 40

Aged 50

Aged 60

 

Children

Single 

Couple 

 

 

home 

ervices suppo

es needed  

osts 

on given for 

old make‐up

old 

disclosed 

with no childr

arent & Wor

with no child

with children

& Pension Age

& Pension Ag

of Applicant

nge 

osed 

8 to 19 

0 to 29 

0 to 39 

0 to 49 

0 to 59 

0 or more 

n:  0 

178

5 

183

orted – negl

the applicat

p informatio

ren & Workin

rking Age 

dren & Work

n & Working 

e 

ge 

t 

8 

3 

ect 

ion 

n in the twe

ng Age 

ing Age 

Age 

1 

6 

6 

12 

elve months 

Num

11 

146

15 

4 

12 

21 

1 

Num

90 

120

Num

11 

16 

53 

55 

29 

24 

22 

2 

4 

2 

6 

– 01/11/201

mbers 

mbers 

mbers 

15 to 31/10/

3 

5 

2 

7 

13 

1 

1 

6 

15 

42 

/2016 

4 

0 

2 

2 

 

25 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26 

 



 

Child 
 

Child P
increas
wards, 
where h

 

 

Poverty

overty in Ru
e of 70 child
Langham w
has been a 

y 

utland is cu
dren from 4

where there 
6.3% increa

Braunston 
Cottes

Ex
Gree

Ket
Lang

Lyddi
Martins

Norm
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha
Oakha

Ryhall and
Uppin

Whiss

rrently at 8.
435 to 505).

has been a
ase and Lyd

 

and Belton
smore 

xton 
etham 
tton 
gham 
ington 
sthorpe 

manton 
am NE 
am NW 
am SE 
am SW 
d Casterton
ngham 
endine 

.5%, a 1.3%
 Most of thi

a 6.5% incre
ddington wh

% of ch
in low in

fami
n 4.3

3.2
7.6

12.8
5.8

10.8
6.7
5.4
5.1
9.5

14.8
5.4
10%
8%

12.5
14.4

% increase o
is increase 
ease on the
here there h

hildren 
ncome 
lies 

C
la

% 
% 
% 

8% 
% 

8% 
% 
% 
% 
% 

8% 
% 
% 

% 
5% 
4% 

on previous
is concentra

e previous y
has been a 

hange from
ast reported

data 
0.7% 
-0.4% 

3% 
6.3% 
-0.7% 
6.5% 
3.9% 
-3% 
1.6% 
1.7% 
-0.2% 
0.9% 
1.6% 
1.6% 
1.4% 
1.1% 

s data (an a
rated in thre
year, Greeth

3.9% incre

m 
d 

 

27 

ctual 
ee 
ham 
ease: 

 



 

Trans
 

Transpo
practitio
most fre
househ
individu
work, le

In Rutla
van – th
use ten
distance
burden 
to 10.7%

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
14 Car ow
15 Gov.UK

sport Pov

ort poverty 
oners have 
equently as
olds that ow

uals in hous
eaving othe

and there ar
his is relativ
ds to be hig
es travelled
on rural ho

% in urban 

                      
wnership rates
K transport co

verty 

is a difficult
been strugg

ssociated wi
wn a car bu
seholds who
r residents 

re 603 cars 
vely high co
gher in rura
d to access 
ouseholds w
areas15 

                      
s by Local Auth
osts analysis, 2

t concept to
gling to ade
ith those wi
t cannot aff

o only have 
without acc

and vans p
mpared to t
l areas whe
them. Expe

who spend 1

 
hority in Engla
2015 

o describe a
equately def
thout acces
ford to use 
one car tha

cess to priva

per 1000, an
the UK ave
ere services
enditure on 
12.5% of Ho

and and Wale

and one that
fine or mea
ss to a car, 
it for some 
at is used to
ate transpor

nd 87.6% o
rage14. Nev

s are more d
transport co

ousehold in

es (RAC Found

t both policy
sure for ma
but can also
or all journe

o transport a
rt some or a

f household
vertheless c
dispersed a
osts also pl
come on tra

ation), 2012 

y makers an
any years. It
o include 
eys; or to 
a family me
all of the tim

ds have a c
car ownersh
and longer 
ace more o
ansport com

 

28 

nd 
t is 

ember to 
me. 

ar or 
hip and 

of a 
mpared 



 

Fuel P
 

Fuel Po
Under t

The key
fuel pric

• 

• 
• 
• 

 
The tab

 
Rutland
East Mi
England

Recent 
majority

 
 

Poverty 

overty in En
this, a hous

• The
leve

• Wer
belo

y data sourc
ce data esti

There are 3

Household 
Household 
Fuel Prices

ble below sh

d 
idlands 
d 

data at wa
y above the

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

gland is me
ehold is con

ey have req
el) 

re they to s
ow the offic

ces used to
mated from

3 key eleme

Income 
Energy Re

s 

hows the pr

rd level sho
e national av

B
ra

u
ns

to
n

 a
nd

…
M

ar
tin

st
h

or
p

e
Ly

dd
in

gt
on

K
et

to
n

Prop

easured usi
nsidered to 

uired fuel co

pend that a
ial poverty l

o compile th
m quarterly e

ents in dete

quirements

roportion of 

20
13.
13.
11.

ows that fue
verage: 

G
re

et
ha

m
N

o
rm

an
to

n
E

xt
on

W
h

is
se

nd
in

e
U

p
pi

ng
ha

m

portion o

ng the Low
be fuel poo

osts that ar

amount, they
line 

his data are 
energy price

rmining wh

s 

fuel poor h

011 
.6% 
.3% 
.1% 

 

el poverty is

U
p

pi
ng

ha
m

O
ak

ha
m

 N
W

La
ng

h
am

C
o

tte
sm

or
e

N
a

tio
na

l A
ve

ra
ge

of fuel po

w Income Hig
or if: 

re above av

y would be 

the annual 
es and the O

ether a hou

ouseholds a

2012 
11.9% 
13.2% 
10.8% 

 an issue in

g
R

yh
a

ll 
an

d…
K

et
to

n
R

yh
a

ll 
an

d…
N

o
rm

an
to

n
E

tM
id

l
d

oor hous

gh Costs (L

erage (the n

left with a r

English Ho
ONS consu

usehold is fu

against the 

2013 
9.3% 

10.4% 
10.4% 

n a number 

E
as

t M
id

la
nd

s…
U

p
pi

ng
ha

m
O

ak
ha

m
 N

W
O

ak
ha

m
 S

W
U

p
pi

ng
ha

m

seholds

LIHC) Indica

national me

residual inco

ousing Surv
umer price in

uel poor: 

national de

2
10
10
10

of wards w

 

U
p

pi
ng

ha
m

O
ak

ha
m

 S
E

O
ak

ha
m

 N
E

 

29 

ator. 

edian 

ome 

ey and 
ndex. 

efinition: 

014 
0.6% 
0.1% 
0.6% 

ith a 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30 

 



 

Free S
 

Eligibilit

 

U

O

C

T

 

Claimin

 

As the t
of which

In comp
average

 

 

 

 

School M

ty: 

Uppingham 

Oakham Clu

Casterton Cl

Total numbe

ng: 

tables abov
h 272 (91%

parison, res
e for percen

Meals 

Cluster 

uster 

luster 

er eligible 

  

Rutland
Primarie

Rutland

Total el
claimin

ve show, the
%) are curren

search publi
ntage of pup

for Free Sc

d Nurseries 
es 

d Secondari

ligible and 
ng 

ere are 300 
ntly claiming

ished by the
pils entitled 

Tota
num
pup

149

2234

181

chool Meal

N
k
a

and 
1

es 1

2

 children el
g meals, an

e Departme
to free sch

al 
mber of 

ils 

%
fre
m

0 3.

4 7.

5 4.

ls  

Number of p
known to be
and claiming

141 

131 

272 

igible for Fr
nd 29 (9%) a

ent for Educ
ool meals a

% eligible for
ee school 

meals 

.80% 

.30% 

.40% 

pupils 
e eligible 
g 

ree School M
are not. 

cation in 201
and not claim

r Numbe
eligible 
for FSM

57 

163 

80 

300 

Meals in Ru

13 put the n
ming them 

 

31 

r 

M 

utland, 

national 
at 14% 



 

House
 

The Off
small ar
compris

 

Median

 
               
16 ONS Ho

Q
u
ar
te
rl
y 
H
o
u
se
 S
al
e
s 
C
o
st
 ‐

M
e
d
ia
n
 V
al
u
e

e Prices 

fice of Natio
reas. Data 
sed of 5 MS

 price paid 

                      
ouse price sta

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

Q
4
‐1
9
9
5

onal Statisti
is released 

SOA’s as sh

by Middle S

                      
atistics for sm

Q
4
‐1
9
9
6

Q
4
‐1
9
9
7

Q
4
‐1
9
9
8

Q
4
‐1
9
9
9

cs have sta
down to the

hown below

Super Outpu

 
all areas in En

Q
4
‐2
0
0
0

Q
4
‐2
0
0
1

Q
4
‐2
0
0
2

Q
4
‐2
0
0
3

arting publis
e Middle Su

w16: 

ut Area: 

ngland and Wa

Q
4
‐2
0
0
4

Q
4
‐2
0
0
5

Q
4
‐2
0
0
6

Q
4
‐2
0
0
7

Q
4
2
0
0
8

shing data o
uper Output

ales: to year e

Q
4
‐2
0
0
8

Q
4
‐2
0
0
9

Q
4
‐2
0
1
0

Q
4
‐2
0
1
1

Q
4
2
0
1
2

on house pr
t area level.

ending March 

Q
4
‐2
0
1
2

Q
4
‐2
0
1
3

Q
4
‐2
0
1
4

Q
4
‐2
0
1
5

rice statistic
. Rutland is

 

 2016 

Rutland

Rutland

Rutland

Rutland

Rutland

Englan

East M

 

32 

s for 

 

d 001

d 002

d 003

d 004

d 005

d

idlands



 

House 
increas

Percent

 

Rutland 

Rutland 

Rutland 

Rutland 

Rutland 
 

The me
Midland

Average

 

Rutland 

East Mid

Differen
 

The cos
(£600 n

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

prices in Ru
ing by more

tage increa

Medi
year t

001 

002 

003 

004 

005 

edian house
ds. The tabl

e median h

Me
yea

  £68

dland  £45

nce  £22

st of renting
nationally an

utland have
e than the E

se in Media

an property v
to Q4 1995 

£76,500 

£54,750 

£58,500 

£70,000 

£83,000 

e price in Ru
e below sho

ouse price 

edian property
ar to Q4 1995 

8,550 

5,950 

2,600 

g is also hig
nd £525 in t

 risen signif
East Midland

an Price pai

value  Medi
year t

utland is now
ows how th

to East Mid

y  value  M
y

£

£

£

her in Rutla
the East Mid

ficantly sinc
ds average

id between 

ian property v
to Q1 2016 

£267,500

£219,873

£222,250

£275,000

£255,000

w £247,924
his has chan

dlands avera

Median prope
year to 2006

£203,594 

£132,000 

£71,594 

and (averag
dlands). 

ce 1996, wit
 (248.2%).

1995 and 2

value  % i
bet

4 compared
nged betwe

age 

erty value Q1 

ge £625pm)

th 4 of Rutla

2016 

ncrease in me
tween Q4 199

2

3

2

2

2

d to £160,00
en 1995 an

Median p
Q1 2016 

£247,924

£160,000

£87,924 

compared 

and’s 5 MS

edian house c
95 and Q1 201

249.67% 

301.59% 

279.91% 

292.86% 

207.23% 

00 in the Ea
nd 2016. 

property Value

4 

0 

to compara

 

33 

OA’s 

cost 
16 

ast 

e year to 

ators 



 

House
 

Apart fr
median
English

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
17 DCLG (

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

20

e Afforda

rom a ‘dip’ i
 earnings h
 average of

                      
(2016) Table 5

00020012002

R

ability 

n 2009, the
has steadily 
f 4.21) to a 

                      
577 Housing M

20032004200

Ratio of Me

e disparity b
increased f
ratio of 10.8

 
Market: ratio o

05200620072

edian Hou

etween the
from a ratio
82 in 20151

 

of median hou

20082009201

use Price t

 median ho
o of 5.8 in th

7.  

use price to m

10201120122

to Median 

use price in
he year 200

median earning

01320142015

Earnings

n Rutland a
0 (compare

gs by district 

5

s

Eng

Rut

 

34 

nd 
ed to an 

 

gland

tland



 

Home
 

Every y
and oth

In 2015

 
 
 
 
 

There w

The ma
Ward. 

 

 

 

elessnes

year, perhap
hers forced 

5/16 

there were 
34 househo
19 househo
eight were 
one househ

were 334 ho

ap below sh

ss 

ps 2,000 ho
by circumst

67 homeles
olds were a
olds who m
homeless b
hold was in 

ouseholds o

ows the ho

ouseholds in
tances. 

ssness prev
ccepted as 
ade homele
but not in pr
priority nee

on the hous

meless dec

n Rutland, w

ventions by
 unintention
essness ap
riority need;
ed but was 

ing register

clarations re

with some o

y the Housin
nally homele
plications w
; 
classed as 

r at 31st Mar

eceived by t

of these mov

ng Options t
ess and in p

were not cla

intentionally

rch 2016 

the Authorit

ves due to c

team; 
priority need
ss as home

y homeless

ty, broken d

 

35 

choice 

d; 
eless; 

s. 

down by 

 



 

Food 
 

               
18 South 

Banks 

                      
Lincs. Data pr

                      
rovided by Sta

 
amford Foodb

18 

bank. 

 

36 

 



 

Mosa
 

Experia
groups 

Looking

 
A 
G 
H 
B 
D 
U 
E 
L –
N 
M 
F –
J –
K 
I –
C 
O 

 

The Mo
to have
are belo

Househ

 

ic 

an Mosaic u
(and subse

g at Mosaic 

– Country L
– Rural Re
– Aspiring H
– Prestige P
– Domestic
– Unclassif
– Suburban
– Transient
– Vintage V
– Family B
– Senior Se
– Rental Hu
– Modest T

– Urban Coh
– City Pros
– Municipa

osaic data c
e certain cha
ow: 

holds with 

uses data fro
equently into

data for Ru

Living 
ality 
Homemake
Positions 
c Success 
fied 
n Stability 
t Renters 
Value 
asics 
ecurity 
ubs 
Traditions 
hesion 

sperity 
al Challenge

can then be 
aracteristics

an income

om many so
o 66 types).

utland show

4
3

ers 

0
4
5
5
3
3

2
3

e 0

used to ide
s commonly

e of less th

ources to g
. 

ws the follow

Households
4,654 
3,756 
1,557 
1,339 
1,100 
0 
456 
515 
558 
329 
399 
199 
145 
23 
3 
0 

entify those 
y associated

at £15,000

roup and se

wing breakd

s Popul
11,00
9,464
3,951
3,285
2,757
1,704
1,073
992 
939 
851 
781 
316 
315 
39 
8 
0 

groups who
d with pove

egment hou

own: 

ation 
1 4
 
 
 
 4
 
 

4

o are statist
rty, three ex

useholds int

Postcodes 
487 
256 
105 
94 
40 
74 
18 
28 
31 
10 
26 
16 
9 
4 
1 
0 

tically more
xamples of 

 

 

37 

to 15 

 likely 
which 



 

Househ

 

Househ

 

holds suffe

holds wher

ering acute

re occupan

e financial s

nts are like

stress 

ly to be stu

 

 

udents/uneemployed 

 

 

 

38 



 

U
exper

Using this da
riencing som

ata we iden
me form of p

data

tified 6 grou
poverty, (gr
a to map wh

ups who are
roups F, I, L
here these h

e more stati
L, M, N, O) a
households

istically mor
and can the
 are: 

re likely to b
en use the M

 

39 

be 
Mosaic 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

40 

 



 

Case	S
 

1) Be
rela
left
Gra
chi
her
wa
for 
fam
 
Sh
situ
wit
acc
two
sup
diff
up 
 
Be
ove
Be
bed
sum
con
 
Sh
an
wa
me
he
 

2) Su
any
cat
hav
vill

               
19 Case St
(Adults &

Studies19

cky has liv
ationship b
t her Hous
andmother
ildren. She
r Grandmo

as in Leices
Becky, so

mily. 

e approac
uation and 
th Rutland 
commodat
o feet she 
permarket 
fering wee
her hours

cky wanted
ernight on 
nefit she w
droom tax.
ms just we
nsidered fo

he may wel
d the empl

as affordab
ental health
r children c

resh and h
y help ava
tering and 
ve recently
age standa

                      
tudies 1‐4 tak
& Health) Scru

9	

ved with ch
breakdown
sing Assoc
r, as her ex
e claimed d
other she h
ster (a stra

o she ended

hed Citizen
to see if s
County Co

tion. To imp
got a part 
which brou
kly shift pa

s to full tim

d a 2 bed 
occasions

would have
. In additio

ere not goin
or) a 2 bed

ll have bee
loyment w

ble. With th
h problems
could visit 

his wife Sa
ilable for th
the other i

y bought a 
ards, but v

                      
ken from Rutla
utiny Panel 23

hronic diffic
 and ment
iation prop
x-partner w
disability be
had to mov
nge and d
d up sofa-s

ns Advice R
he could g
ouncil to fi
prove her 
time job (t
ught in jus
atterns she
e. 

property so
 but even 

e to pay £4
n she wou

ng to add u
d property.

en allocate
as sustain

he lack of fu
s it was imp
and stay w

arah came 
hem. They
in the care
house in a

very expen

 
and Citizens A
.02.17) 

culties over
tal health is
perty to live
was moving
enefits. Aft
ve out – th
istant place
surfing wit

Rutland fo
get her child
nd her suit
situation a
the only on
st over £11
e was unab

o that her 
though she

40 per wee
uld have to
up. Becky c

ed a 2 bed p
nable, enab
ull time po
possible fo
with her ov

to Citizens
y are both w
e sector. Th
a small vill
sive for a f

Advice Bureau

r a long pe
ssues arisi
e temporar
g back in t
ter a few m
e only hos
e to her) w
h various

r help with
dren back.
table and a

and to try to
ne on offer
5 per wee
ble to get a

children co
e was enti
k towards
pay 25% 

could not a

property if s
bling her to
sitions ava

or her to se
vernight. 

s Advice R
working ful
hey have tw
age. At £2
first-time b

 Rural Poverty

riod. Due t
ng from th
rily with he
to look afte

months of li
stel accom
which was 
members 

stabilising
We worke

affordable 
o stand on
) in a local
k. As the w
another job

ould visit he
tled to full 
her rent d
of her Cou
afford (or b

she was w
o prove tha
ailable and
cure a pro

utland to s
ll-time in R
wo young c
09,000 it w
uyer. They

y Report 2016

to a 
his, Becky 
er 
er their tw
iving with 

mmodation 
inappropri
of her 

g her 
ed closely 

n her own 
l 
work involv
b to make 

er and sta
Housing 

due to the 
uncil tax. T
be 

working full 
at the prop
d Becky’s 
operty so t

see if there
Rutland, on
children an
was cheap
y had to re

6 (Presented a

 

41 

o 

ate 

ved 

ay 

The 

time 
perty 

hat 

e was 
ne in 
nd 
by 
ally 

at People 



 

stre
pay
Th
diff
sch
one
inc
ant
 
Cit
Tax
the
Las
now
inv
up 
her
the
Lei
 

3) Da
cov
of t
we
vis
is r
bot
 
Giv
soc
sho
rec
fun
 
His
day
cle
det
ma
wa
 

etch thems
y the depo
e whole fa
ficult. They
hool runs a
e long jugg

come and t
ticipated. 

tizens Advi
x Credits a

ere. It was 
st week Sa
w she has 

vestigations
work. Citiz

r fears are
e family inc
icester whe

arryl lives in
vered by H
the under-

eek towards
sit regularly
reliant on d
th cheaper

ven the lac
cial housin
ortfall, whic
ceived a di
nded the sh

s debts are
y living and

ear of the p
termined to
aintain a st
as in one-b

selves to g
osit. 
amily love t
y can only 
and shift tim
gle. The m
their transp

ice Rutland
and Child T
the same f

arah went t
been refe

s…. she is
zens Advic
 realised a

come woul
ere prices 

n a 2 bedro
Housing Be
occupancy
s the rent. 
y but do no
disability be
r properties

ck of altern
ng - the clie
ch was not
scretionary
hortfall, bu

e increasin
d pay for h

payday loan
o keep in t
trong relati
edroomed

get a mortg

the freedom
afford one
mes, comb
ortgage pa

port costs h

d looked w
Tax Credits
for any fina
to the Doc
rred to Lei

s very anxio
ce Rutland 
and with the
d be catas
are lower?

oom housin
enefit when
y regulation
He has tw

ot live with 
enefits. Mo
s and thos

ative acco
ent has no 
t budgeted
y Housing 
t does so n

g as he ek
his children
n sharks, b
the house a
onship with
 accommo

gage, and w

m and spa
e small car 
bined with t
ayments th
have certa

with them a
s but their 
ancial help

ctor as she 
cester Roy
ous about 
 looked at 
e high mor

strophic - w
? 

ng associa
n he moved
ns means 

wo children
him. He is
oving is pa
se with only

ommodatio
option but

d for when 
Payment f
no longer.

kes out his 
n when the
but he is no
as long as
h his childr

odation. 

were helpe

ce they ha
and the co
the lack of

hey have to
ainly proved

at the possi
income wa

p towards C
had felt a 

yal Infirmar
the future,
possible b
rtgage they

would they 

ation prope
d in 5 year
that now h
 from a pre
 unable to 

articularly d
y one bedr

n - both in 
t to remain
the tenanc
from the Lo

disability b
y stay. He
ot sure for 
 possible s
ren, which 

ed by Sara

ave, but the
onflicting d
f public tran
o make are
d higher th

ibility of cla
as too high
Council Ta
lump on h
ry for furth
 should sh

benefits the
y are payin
have  to m

erty. His re
rs ago but t
he has to fi
evious rela
work throu

difficult as t
room in the

the private
 where he 

cy was first
ocal Autho

benefits to 
has just m
how much

since he is 
would be 

ah’s parent

e costs ma
demands o
nsport, ma
e 40% of th
han they 

aiming Wo
h for any he
ax. 
her breast a
er 

he have to 
ey could cl
ng, the imp
move back 

nt was full
the introdu
ind £12.37
ationship, w
ugh ill-hea
there is a l
e area. 

e sector an
is and pay

t taken on.
ority which 

o fund his d
managed to
h longer. H
 desperate
very difficu

 

42 

s to 

ake life 
f 

akes life 
heir net 

rking 
elp 

and 

give 
aim if 

pact on 
to 

y 
uction 
 per 

who 
lth and 
ack of 

nd in 
y the 
. He 
initially 

day to 
o stay 

He is 
e to 
ult if he 



 

4) Ge
not
Tax
the
Be
jus
eye
say
do?
sec
rea
can
 
Cit
som
rec
bot
Ad
pro
Co
pos
 
No
una
she
to l
win
 

 

emma cam
tice from th
x Debt acc

e national m
nefit and s

st about ma
e to counc
ys that the
? She just 
condary sc
ally wants h
n’t afford to

tizens Advi
me discuss
ceived both
th get the d
vice Rutla

oduced and
ounty Coun
sition to sta

onetheless,
able to ma
e should a
let Bristow
ndows and

e into Citiz
he Bailiffs, 
crued over 
minimum w
some Coun
anage to g

cil tax paym
y will take 
recently b

chool and w
him to get 
o replace it

ice Rutland
sion they a
h a financia
debt paid o
nd with ful
d an offer o

ncil so the b
abilise her

, Citizens A
aintain the 
rrange for 

w and Sutor
d doors we

zens Advic
Bristow an
several ye

wage (£7.2
ncil Tax Re
et by … if 

ments whic
away good
ought Gar
will need it
on. She ca
t. 

d immediat
agreed to h
al stateme
off and be 
l details of 
of £50 p/m
bailiff actio
r finances.

Advice Rut
repayment
Gareth to 

r enter the 
re shut and

ce Rutland 
nd Sutor, w
ears. Work
20 p/hr) and
eduction, s
you don’t c

ch she just 
ds from the
reth an i-Pa
t for his ho
an’t bear th

tely contac
hold the ba
nt and a re
sustainabl

f her financ
month was 
on was halt

tland advis
ts, and if s
go and pla
premises,
d locked.

anxious th
who were c
king part-tim
d getting T

she and he
count the b
hasn’t bee
e house - i
ad as he is
mework; h
he thought

cted Rutlan
ailiffs for a w
ealistic offe
le. Gemma
ces and a F
agreed be
ted and Ge

sed Gemm
he knew th

ay with frie
 and so sh

hat she had
collecting a
me (22 hou
Tax Credits
r 11 year o
bank loan a
en able kee
s there an

s about to m
e’s a brigh

t of losing t

nd County 
week prov

er of repay
a returned 
Financial S
tween Gem
emma was

a that if sh
hat Bailiffs 
nds, that s

he should m

d received
a large Co
urs per we
s and Hous
old son Ga
and turn a
ep up. The
nything she
move to 
ht lad and s
that becau

Council an
viding they 
yment that 

to Citizens
Statement 
mma and R
s in a bette

he were rea
were com

she did not
make sure 

 

43 

 a 
uncil 
ek) on 
sing 
areth 

blind 
e notice 
e can 

she 
se she 

nd after 

would 
s 
was 
Rutland 
er 

ally 
ming, 

t have 
all 




	Agenda
	7 RALSS PERFORMANCE REPORT
	102-2017 - Appendix A - SAR 15-16 Rutland Adult Learning and Skills

	8 RUTLAND STANDING ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE) ANNUAL REPORT 2015-17
	101-2017 SACRE Annual Report and appendices (not covering)

	9 OFSTED: NEXT STEPS PLAN
	99-2017 - Appendix A Ofsted Action Plan - 270417

	11 POVERTY IN RUTLAND - GREEN PAPER
	91-2017 b Poverty in Rutland - Green Paper v.4 FINAL
	91-2017 c Green Paper Appendix A - Feedback from Workshop (September 2016)
	91-2017 d Appendix B Supporting Data - Poverty in Rutland v.2


